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=2kER BRIEE
GARNERING MOMENTUM, STRIVING FOR EXCELLENCE

Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (0337.HK) is a subsidiary of Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited, one of
Fortune Global 500.

Established on 18 July 1992, Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited (“Greenland Holdings”, stock code: 600606.SH) is
a large enterprise of mixed ownership supervised by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Shanghai Municipal Government headquartered in Shanghai, the PRC.

Ever since its establishment 26 years ago, Greenland Holdings has created a diversified development pattern of “focusing
on the development of real estate market and placing equal stress on Big Infrastructure, Big Finance, Big Consumption,
medical and healthcare and scientific innovation” with a global presence. By adhering to the development strategies of
capitalization, popularization and internationalization, Greenland Holdings has secured its market presence in more than
100 cities of domestic and overseas countries such as China, the United States, Britain, Germany, Australia, Canada,
South Korea, Thailand and Malaysia. By listing entire group on China’s A-share market (600606.SH) and a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong, Greenland has established a capital platform integrating its domestic and overseas
resources. Since being recognized as one of Fortune Global 500 in 2012, Greenland Group has been on the list for six
consecutive years, and is still the No.1 Chinese real estate company on the Fortune Global 500.

By capitalizing on the listing opportunity with the aid of the capital market, Greenland Holdings will speed up its
innovative transformation and build into a local multinational company with prominent principal business, diversified
development, global presence and integration of real estate and financial business with leading edges in the sectors of
real estates, finance, subway, medical and healthcare and scientific innovation and other industries.

As the only overseas-listed real estate platform and brand display window of Greenland Holdings, Greenland Hong Kong
strove to innovate, transform and upgrade its capital platform and industrial sector by materializing the overall strategy
of Greenland Holdings and to promote the strategy of themed towns and increase industrial synergistic effect with a
view to establish a comprehensive industry group with business presence in 17 cities.

Leveraging Greenland Group’s mature brand image, rich resources, large scale and system, advanced management and
passionate corporate culture, Greenland Hong Kong will comprehensively consolidate the existing assets and fully utilize
the advantages of the capital platform in Hong Kong to establish itself as a benchmark in the Hong Kong capital market
for mainland China real estate players.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
YRS

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS %4&i5E

2017 2016
—T—tF —FREF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBEERT ARBESET EE
Revenue s 14,619 16,919 -2,300
Gross Profit EF| 3,591 2,828 +763
Results from Operating Activities 28 B &L & /& BRI 48 2,916 1,267 +1,649
Profit for the year & 4 H) 1,836 1,241 +595
Attributable to: LATN AT FELY -
— Owners of the Company — AR A FIHEA A 1,319 1,113 +206
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE RS 517 128 +389
Eamings Per Ordinary Share (RMB) SR BAR 2 F (A RET)
— Basic and Diluted —EA K #5E 0.46 0.39 +0.07
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equity owners of the Company
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ZE—LEFH BUBEBERERARF
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
MBRE @)
2017 2016
—F—tE —TRE
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBEERT ARKEBESET B
Total Assets & EE 48%8 68,750 54,105 +14,645
Tofal Liabilities & {&#25E 57,165 44,381 +12,784
Total Equity #4258 11,585 9,724 +1,861
REVENUE ANALYSIS Wiz 947
2017 2016
—F-tF —FRF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBEART ARBEST B
Sales of properties #)3& $4 & 14,102 16,431 -2,329
Property management income & other related service
B IR & E AR B AR TS 344 270 +74
Hotel and related services /& K& A8 RE AR 75 137 177 -40
lease of properties #1ZEF & 36 41 -5
Total A8t 14,619 16,919 -2,300
°® Sales of Property
MERIHE
Property management income &
®  iher related service
W E TR U K B A AR B AR TS
Hotel and related services
BIE R Bl E RS

90.54

lease of properties

® yume
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KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEASMOEE

In January 2017, acquired two land parcels with a total GFA of
approximately 625,000 sq.m. in Nanning and Wuxi respectively

In May 2017, acquired one land parcel with GFA of approximately
204,000 sq.m. located in Wujiang dicstrict, Suzhou province

Signed the strafegic cooperation on project regarding the Greenland
Spring City ® Dian Lake International Health Model Town in Kunming
in June 2017

In June 2017, obtained one land parcel with GFA of approximately
258,000 sq.m. located in Jiangnan district, Nanning city

Issue of US$400 million of 4.5% bonds due 2018 in July 2017

In August 2017, obtained two land parcels with a total GFA of
approximately 821,000 sq.m.in Foshan and Jiaxing respectively

Obtained a three-year offshore syndicated loan with an aggregate

amount equivalent to approximately US$250 million with inferest rate
of UBOR+2.8% in the second half of 2017

In December 2017, acquired two land parcels in Nanning and
one land parcel in Kunming respectively with a total GFA of

approximately 1,869,000 sq.m.

R-F—tF— A WEMEDSINEE
MBS R EmMIEA625, 000 F 77 KB Lt

RIZB—HFHA B RBUNEHMNER
LR AR SR IS 49204, 000 75 K Ey -3,

“E—FRA RERKINER  EBE
PRI REIE B R AT BAE A 1

RZF—tFRA  BE—BUREERT
R AR SR 1649258, 0001 77 AR ey 13,

RZB—tF+H BIRZT—/\FIH
400,000,000 T4 SE &S
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B4 SR TR AY821,000-F 73 KBy £ 3t
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
BRIE [ R ER

SHANGHAI - GREENLAND HUANGPU
CENTER

Awarded the “Outstanding Award of Real Estate Design”

SUZHOU - GREENLAND JIANGNAN HUAFU

Awarded the "Real Estate Enferprise of 2017 Suzhou Real Esfate Ranking
in Terms of Strength” by 2500fang.com and Suzhou Real Estate Industry

Association

Awarded the "Top of Suzhou — 2017 Real Estate Enterprise with
Outstanding Contribution” by Suzhou Daily Newspaper Press Group and

Yidianzixun

Awarded the “Property Project of 2017 Suzhou Real Estate Power Ranking
in Terms of Strength” by 2500fang.com and Suzhou Real Estate Industry

Association

Awarded the “2017 Innovative Property Project in Suzhou Real Estate
Market” by Sohu Focus Net

Awarded the “2017 Most Popular Property Project in Suzhou” by

house.qq.com

WUXI - SKY TREE
Awarded the “Most Anticipated Property Project” by Fang.com

Awarded the “Influential Property Project of 2017 China FZG Rankings” by
fzg360.com

Awarded the Golden Property Project Award of “Gorgeous Property Project
in Charming Wuxi" by Wuxi Daily

Awarded the “2017 New City Landmark of the Year” elected by the
Internet at the Wouxi Real Estate Rankings in Decoding the City's Attitude

organised by house. 163.com and Wuxi Real Estate Association

WUXI - GREENLAND XI SHUI DONG
Awarded the "Quality Property Project of the Year” by Fang.com

Awarded the “2017 Wuxi Real Estate Rankings under Internet Election
- Central Landmark Luxury Mansion in Xi Shui Dong of the Year” by

wx.house. 163.com

Awarded as the "Quality Property Project of the Year” on China FZG
Rankings by Fang.com
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AVWARDS AND ACCOLADES (Continved)
RIAN IR (#)

NANNING - GREENLAND WEST TOWN
INTERNATIONAL HUADU

Awarded the 2017 Top 10 Guangxi ZP Property Project” by Guangxi
Real Estate People Festival Committee, ZPGY and zp365.com

Awarded the "Well-decorated Property Project with Rigid Demand” by
Guangxi Daily Media Group

Awarded the “2017 Guangxi Real Estate Strengthen Award — Benchmark
Property Project with Premium Quality” by Nanning Evening Post and
Guangxi Radio

NANNING - GREENLAND NANNING
CENTRAL PLAZA

Awarded the "2017 Composite Project Award of Guangxi Real Estate
Golden Brick Award” by Guangxi Daily and Home Weekly

Awarded the "2017 Top Five in Terms of GFA Sold of Nanning Office
Project”, “2017 Nanning Property Project of Upgrading City Award” and
"2017 Top Five in Terms of GFA Sold of Single Residential Property Project
in Qingxiu, Nanning” of Nanning Real Estate Official Ranking 2017 by
Guangxi Science & Education Channel and Guangxi Radio

Awarded the “2017 Top 10 Golden Property Investment Model with
City Influence in Nanning” by Nanguo Moming Post, Home Weekly and

loupan.com

NANNING - GREENLAND XIN LI*PU YUE

GARDEN
Awarded the “2017 Quality Benchmark of Jiangnan, Guangxi” by
Nanning Evening Post and Guiangxi Radio

Awarded the "2017 Potential Property Project” by China Real Estate
Billboard

Awarded the “2017 Quality Property Confribution Award” by Guangxi
Daily
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES (Continved)
EIE N KRR (18)

NANNING - NANNING GREENLAND CITY

Awarded the “2017 Representative Guangxi Real Estate Property Project
Award” by Guangxi Daily

Awarded the “2017 Role Model of Guangxi Composite Project” by
Nanning Evening Post and Guangxi Radio

Awarded the “2017 Nanning New Sharp Property Project” by Fang.com

KUNMING - THE METROPOLITAN
Awarded the “2017 Property Project with the Highest Commercial Value”
by Leju

Awarded the “2017 Property Project with the Highest Investment Value” by
China Real Estate Billboard

Awarded the “2017 Most Influential Commercial Property” by ynhouse.com

GREENLAND FINANCIAL SERVICES
Awarded the “2017 Top 10 Real Estate Fund in China” by Zero2IPO
Group

Awarded the "2017 Influential Fund of the Year of Popular China Real Estate

Award” by the Boao Real Estate Forum

The 2017 Top 20 Property Fund in China in Terms of Strength” of the 6th
BRIC value Rankings
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRME

In 2017, China's economy transformed from a high-speed growth to
a high-quality development. Under the main theme of de-stocking of
the Chinese government, the domestic real property market maintained
a rapid growth in general, with record-high GFA sold and transaction
amount. It was also a year of moderate and steady growth with confinuous
improvements in industrial and business operations for Greenland Hong
Kong Holdings Limited ("Greenland Hong Kong" or the “Company’|

and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

With the staunch support of the parent company, Greenland Holdings
Corporation Llimited ("Greenland Holdings’), the Group spared
no effort in pushing ahead with the "Real Estate +" strategy. It further
strengthened its regulatory measures in various segments of the real estate
industry, focusing on sfrategic fargefs such as cultural and business tourism,
medical and healthcare, tourism and leisure, and financial services, while
actively exploring innovative business and bringing about fransformation
and upgrade of the capital platform and industrial innovation, as well as
promoting inclusive finance strategy, which in turn enhanced the Group's
overall competitiveness. Since its establishment four years ago, Greenland
Hong Kong has achieved an increase of nearly 10 times in the overall
performance and strived fo maintain not only the pace but also the quality
of growth in the overall sales revenue and land resources, thereby achieving
remarkable results as a whole and laying a sturdy foundation for achieving

the Group's sales target of hundred billion dollars.

HISTORICAL BREAKTHROUGH OF
CONTRACTED SALES

In 2017, the Group precisely defined project positioning and pricing
strafegy, proactively pushed ahead with high-end projects while integrating
the customer resources of Greenland Hong Kong via the internet and
implementing precision marketing. The confracted sales, contracted GFA
sold and the average selling price recorded significant increases, of which
the Yangtze River Delta continued to be the mainstream of the Group's
contracted sales. | am pleased to announce that the annual contracted sales
in 2017 reached a historical high of RMB30.11 billion, outperforming the
annual target of RMB23.0 billion.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continved)
FERE®)

Jun Chen ¢ Executive Director, Chairman and CEO
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENIT (Continved)
EERE#®E)

RAPID INCREASE IN LAND BANK IN CORE
REGIONS

In 2017, Greenland Hong Kong strategically increased its land bank in
core urban areas through various land acquisition strategies and expanded
the development scale as well as market influence. The Group acquired 12
land parcels with a total GFA of 7.24 million square mefers by the date
of this report from 2017, mainly located in two major economic regions,
namely, the Pan-Yangtze River Delta and the Pan-Pearl River Delta. At the
same fime, it actively responded to China’s future development strategy by
penefrating into the cities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area such as Foshan and Zhaoging.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's land bank was sfrategically located
in the prime areas of maijor cities along the Yangize River Delta, Pearl River
Delta, coastal areas of southern China and major cities in the southwest,
which would be sufficient for Greenland'’s development need in the coming
future. The Group will also continue to identify high-quality land projects

with promising potential for development.

COMPREHENSIVE LAYOUT PLAN FOR NEW
EMERGING INDUSTRIES

Since the 18th National Congress, the cultural fourism industry has been a
pillar industry strategically supported by the central government. Greenland
Hong Kong actively responded to the national strategies by capturing
the market opportunities brought by domestic consumption upgrade and
users’ demand upgrade, deploying a comprehensive layout for the new
emerging industries such as medical and healthcare, cultural and business
tourism, and sports and leisure, and establishing a full life-cycle industry
chain. Greenland Hong Kong entered into strategic cooperation with
Shanghai International Medical Center and Australia-based Provectus
Care fo establish the first Shanghai-based medical institution focusing on
Alzheimer's disease in 2018. The establishment of Greenland Spring
City ® Dian lake International Health Model Town, located af Dian Lake
in Kunming, symbolizes a crifical step towards the strategic development of
the medical and healthcare industry. A high-standard product system with
cultural content was introduced to realise high profit margin and sustainable
profits, bringing vigour and profits to the real estate development activities,

and creating synergistic effect of the “Real Esfate +" business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Confinved)
FEREE)

STEADY DEVELOPMENT OF GREENLAND
FINANCIAL SERVICES

In 2017, in response fo the central government's sound financial policy,
Greenland Hong Kong promoted the inclusive financial strategy by
capturing the new room for development brought by the “Real Estafe +
Finance + Infernet” model, establishing three online platforms for wealth
management, asset management services and scientific data services
and strictly controlling and managing risks, with a view to protect assets
and capital safety and successfully realise profits from the internet finance

segment for the second consecutive year.

FULL-RANGE COST CONTROL TO INCREASE
EFFICIENCY

In terms of corporate governance, leveraging on the strengths in the big
data era, Greenland Hong Kong developed an ecommerce procurement
platform for delicacy management of cost control to realise paperless
office and bidding via the infernet, intelligence and delicacy. The Group
continued fo establish the direct procurement platform and the BIM digital
project fullrange control system. The modern management model ensured
low consumption but high production, which in turn fully increased
operating efficiency and realised management and supervision without

blind area through utilization of big data.

SUCCESSFUL IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

In January 2018, the Group implemented the Employee Share Ownership
and Incentive Plan, pursuant to which, a fotal of 124 directors and
management members subscribed for 60.27 million new shares of the
Company. The scheme unleashed internal growth potential, motivated the
management and employees fo continuously create value, built up a mutual
beneficial mechanism for the Company and its employees and facilitated
the Company’s rapid growth and development. The Group also proposed
a "three 100s" talent building scheme to build a stable and competitive
team leading Greenland Hong Kong towards a higher development target

and releasing every employee's infelligence.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENIT (Continved)
EERE#®E)

OUTLOOK

2018 marks the 5th year of Greenland Hong Kong' s establishment and
is of significant importance to the Company’s development. Driven by
the strong domestic demand and relaxed macro-economic policy, it is
expected that China’s economy will maintain a steady growth. In the long
run, pursing high quo|if\/ and striving for high-quohl‘y deve|opmen1 will be
the basic requirement of China's economic development for a period of
fime from now onwards. The Group will pay attention to market potential
and the investment opportunities within the core cities in the Yangtze River
Delta and Pearl River Delta, while improving ifs products to meet the multi-
layered consumption demands in the real estate market. In addition, the
Group made a thorough layout for the future. For corporate governance, the
Group will make use of big data and artificial infelligence to give full play

fo management efficiency

The Group regards social expectation as an internal driving force.
Creenland Hong Kong will strive to cater to the Chinese residents’” desire
for a better life and the increasing demand for spiritual and cultural
content. It will also continue to actively implement a series of precise
employees incentive schemes fo stimulate the strong momentum for the future
development. As a Hong Kong-listed platform of Greenland Holdings,
Greenland Hong Kong will take a top-down approach, capitalise on the
infernational financing platform, actively explore the Group's new business
model, promote globalisation and upgrade of investment model, and create

a better life for people and higher value for its shareholders.

RE
TR E BRI A - WRAARRE
HERAEATE - ERYNFNEROEBH
FEHT - Bt FEEREREERRIET - &
MRE  ERTEE  EDREERRRSR A
B BB RORAER - AREHHLELE
FHROTIBIR - ERETHENARE=A - 3
= AE RO TR AR OFR - EERE N
ARNETSSEROEERE - 5 - AREF
HRRE AERTATHE - FRAEHAAL
BE - EERMEEHEHRSNEE -

AEESHEREHRGEERELENENS S -
ERRPEARKEFEERNBE - HIEHEEA
R RT R - KR EBE HEFTR - 75
RFFERREE—RIBEE TRBEE - B
WEBRKERNEKRE ) o (ERAMIERIE T &
BLEMFE  SHEESLERFARTAERA
MABRRLERETE  BERREBMNEBR
A EBEEZREHRRRERATR - BAR
HRAEENEFNEESN  RERAEEZH
BfE -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Confinved)
FEREE)

APPRECIATION

Thanks fo the unremitiing efforts and loyal service of our employees of all
ranks, Greenland Hong Kong achieved several breakthroughs and steady
development in various segments in 2017. In the future's development, we
believe that by working together, joining efforts and wisdom and further
exploring, Greenland Hong Kong shall be able to adopt a new and
expanded business model and achieve more remarkable performance.
On behalf of the Group, | would like fo take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, fellow board members, and
all business partners for their support and trust. VWe will use our every
endeavour fo promote sustainable development of the Group and generate

substantial reward for our shareholders.

Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited

Jun Chen

Executive Vice President of Greenland Group, Chairman of the Board and
CEO of Greenland Hong Kong
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ERRBEHBIR EFGoCMMBRERHER
PR REHE - RFEKBEEE ) - EPAEE
BB IR - BSRRICREVS IR A8 [ 5 -

G ERIZRARAT

BRE

AR BB TTRIMRE, R EBEFRTBRITH
B
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
YIZEIEE AN

THE MAP BELOW SHOWS THE GEOGRAPHICAL
COVERAGE OF OUR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS.

TEINLFZMMEERIEEMEBEHEE -

CHANGSHU
A

- SHANGHAI

=

NINGBO

BK

HAIK}EOU ﬂ

[ 4




PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

SHANGHAI
L

SUZHOU
)

XUZHOU
R

WUXI

CHANGSHU
E R

NINGBO
=

HANGZHOU
)

JIAXING

RE
HUANGSHAN
=

TAIYUAN

KR

HAIKOU
=20

GUANGXI
BEA

NANCHANG
2=

GUANGDONG
BEXR

SEbEET BMEBERERAT

e Cambridge Forest New Town g+ &

e Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) 5 75 REbt ( BEAE K45 )
e Tiffany (Cambridge Waters) & i & (EEE K 4T)

e Holiday Inn Shanghai Pudong Kangqico /8 H R 4k R BB S
® Greenland Seaside City 4k30/8 3

e Greenland Huangpu Center #xith =178,

e Greenland Yunxiang Tower 4k EFIAE

® Global 188 32%k188

e Triumph Residence gz &P

® Greenland Jiangnan Huafu &%ith)T F 22 /5

® Creenland Suzhou ONE #%ib## 1 ONE

e Greenland lincoln Garden &7t i 5 A £

e China Resources Greenland Triumph Arch 2 B4k Sl i T
e Greenland lakeside Villa £zt 5 58 22

e Greenland Xi Shui Dong % FE 7K 5
e Sky Tree KZofs

o Greenland la Casa &k h]4 = &

e GCreenland Emerald Bay #kih 3522 /&

e Greenland Bihu Infernational 457 ith 28 54 B

e Greenland Cifi City 4%t fB#238

e Tongxiang Central Plaza #@%8r f Z35

* Greenland Taiping Lake Resort & A 5 E R 12

® Greenland Shanding Park £&i L& 41 E

o Greenland The Florea %% 2215,

e Greenland Hai Chang liv #xi)8 &%

® Creenland City &zt

e Greenland Central Culture Center &% A2 g2 32 {b 3,

® The Mefropolitan B = A4

e Greenland Hai Po Lan Ting #%3th)% 345 k=

e Greenland Xiang Shu Hua Cheng &%3th &1 (EH
e Greenland Yunduhui Square 4%t E#E E5

* Greenland Spring City ® Dian Lake International Health Model Town
ARI0 AR @ R B 2 RN 0

e Nanning %
— Nanning Greenland Cenfer %8 4% ith A )
— Greenland International Huadu 4%t B R FE B
— Wouxiang Greenland Cenfer 5 &kt A /s
— Greenland Nanning Central Plaza 4% 28 /0 3R 35
— Greenland West Town International Huadu #% b PE 3 B BR 1E &R
— Greenland Xin Li ® Pu Yue Garden #g3hET 2 o BEIH AR
— Nanning Greenland City F 284k Hb 5
— Greenland Dongmeng International Town £k 58 B2 B BR 35,
e Yulin B4k
— Yulin Greenland City FE#RAR 5

e Greenland Chaoyang Center 4% 30 83F5 5 /Lx

e Foshan f#1L

— Greenland Mountain Time #3155 )1|
o Zhaoging

— Songlong Town REE/NE

15
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

1. CAMBRIDGE FOREST NEW TOWN
RE+E

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

Site area (sq.m) #AEEE(EHXK) : 1,573,113 -
GFA (sq.m) fasemEmiE (k) : 1,077,054

One of the largest low-density residential
developments in Shanghai

PESAMEREEEER 2 —

Within 25 minutes’ driving distance to
the city center

PERET AR 0255 $EEHIZ

2. ORIENTAL GARDEN (CAMBRIDGE WATERTOWN)

5R75 RERR (FRHE7K4E8)

Site area (sq.m| HAREE(FK) : 304,071 -
CFA (sq.m) BEESEEM(THK) 195,548

Brief Introduction IEH 4T :

The Chinesestyle, lakeside villa development

AR RIER

The project has approximately 700 houses;
Located in Qingpu Disfrict, Shanghai; 25km
from Honggjiao Airport
IR EEBERE - BA7008REEAER -
it AN 2 YN

Adjacent fo ancient water fown Zhujigjico;
1,700+ear history and a famous fourist site;
excellent ecological area

HERARK AEESHEERA o RERAR
BB, 7005FFELHKEhHE - AEEE
A ReficiEE (R T 5t



ZE—LFT BHMEBERERATE
PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

3. TIFFANY (CAMBRIDGE WATERS)
FRE(RBKE)

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HBEE(FHK) « 434,317
GFA (sq.m] BREEE(TIK) 590,845

A large-scale property development

comprising mainly residential properties

targeted at middle class customers

'*#{'" _ : E{I%%%%%%ﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬂ%%%@lﬁ
) B UAHERERTIZARER

Within 5 minutes fo the nearest Metro
station and within 20 minufes fo the city
center by the subway

FREE AR EIIE A S DI TIE » 207788
VAT B 3t 8 AT T R O

Tl
n= .___

4. HOLIDAY INN SHANGHAI PUDONG KANGQIAO

LA RGRE EE , :

Site area (sq.m) #ABREE(FH5K) : 42,750
GFA [sq.m) BREER(FHK) : 58,500

The project is located close to the Pudong
airport, the 2010 World Expo site and the
Shanghai Disneyland

ZIA B ABIERES - 2010 FHEES
FTb:| S b= i =

The hotel has 400 guest rooms. This project
also consists of apariments, refail space and
conference facilities

BHAOEBEEHE - A8 - TEEH
REgERi
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

5. GREENLAND SEASIDE CITY

s iR

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FHK) ¢ 697172 - A mixed development of commercial and
GFA (sq.m] BRSEEE(EFK) 151,146 office

—  located in Heging Town, within Shanghai
Free Trade Zone, Pudong New Areq,
Shanghai, 24km to People’s square and
1 1km to Pudong airport
R EERRTRSEE  BLERE
BRI - BPEEARBIS24NE - HRE
HBIRE

6. GREENLAND HUANGPU CENTER

S ERIEL
Brief Introduction IEE 4T :

Site area (sq.m) HAAEE(FFK) - 641980 — A mixed development of residential,

GFA (sq.m) MEREEE(FHK) : 245,550 commercial and office
£ BERHAHABRIER

Shanghai
1535 R HIBH 2 HTHR

—  To be developed info a new landmark in




SE—LESH SMEERRAERAT

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

SHANGHAI PROJECTS LiBIEH

7. GREENLAND YUNXIANG TOWER

B ZIHKE

Brief Introduction IEH & :
Site area (sq.m) #ARERE (FTK) ¢ 11,229 — A mixed development of commercial and
GFA [sq.m) RS (FHK) : 27,346 office

BRI NGRS ERIAR

—  located at east of Cha Xi Road and south of
Jin Mai Road
UAERBEIAR - B
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

SUZHOU PROJECTS ZFIEH

1. GLOBAL 188

IR¥k188

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :
Site area (sq.m) HoAZEFE (F53K) 14,893 —  located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park,
GFA (squm) MEREEFER(THTHK) 149,308 near Jinji Lake, underground connected o the

subway
(LRSS HER RSN TRE T REBR
A - MBS R,

2, TRIUMPH RESIDENCE

&l i & BB

Brief Introduction IEHE &4} :
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FHK) : 158,825 — A mixed development of residential and
GFA [squm] SRR (FH%) : 551,269 CETEE

EERBEFAERIER

—  located in the center of Taihu Lake New
Town in Wujiang District, Suzhou, south of
Kaiping Road, west of Jiangcheng Boulevard
ASERABRM T SRR AR AR DM ER —
FERE AR - TTIRIB AT




PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
MEBEEEN (&

SUZHOU PROJECTS &M IEH

3. GREENLAND JIANGNAN HUAFU
& TR AT

Bt RMEEERERAT

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FFHAK) 2041981
GFA (sq.m] R ETE(EK) : 517,918

"J]H'#

C r:"'"f,,, T rm| ” .| -

"’

4. GREENLAND SUZHOU ONE
4k BX W ONE

— A residential development (X E3£ R 1E B

—  located at Chengnan, Wujiang District,
Suzhou City, which is the core and political
center of Wujiang, as well as a highend new
CBD integrated with financial, commercial
and residential functions
ASERERM DR - ZIREE AR RIT
Wz OME - BERRIIHBUAH D » thE
SOR - S - BE—RBHOSRIEICBD
% 15

Brief Introduction IEB G :

Site area (sq.m) #EREFE (FTK) - 697217
GFA (sq.m) #azsEmia (Ek) 171,143

—  located in the economic and technological
development zone in Wuijiang, north of
Jiangling Dong Road and east of Pang Bei
Road
SR RTAE AR R - TSRS A
1t - BEALERIATR

—  Developed info a high-quality residential
community

REREEETLE

21
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

SUZHOU PROJECTS ZFIEH

5. GREENLAND LINCOLN GARDEN
B EAME

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEHK) - 967212
GFA (sq.m) s (FE7k) : 204,000

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

located in Dongfang Avenue, Shengze
Town, Wujiang District, Suzhou City, Jiangsu
Province

(LT ER& FRM T R T R AR T K

Designated as high-rise and minor high-ise
products, with a developed road network and
comprehensive commercial and educational
faciliies and resources

EREREINEEERM FERMEE B
*  HEREEREZ

A mixed development of residential,

commercial and office

EFE  BEARRANGEERIAR



ZE—EFFH BMEBERERATY 23

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLUO (Continued)
YEBE BN &

WUXI PROJECTS #£518 H

1. GREENLAND XI SHUI DONG
4 FEIK R

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAEEE(FHK) : 249,005 —  located in the heart of Wuxi and in close
GFA (sq.m) BREERE(EHK) - 657,506 proximity o the central commercial and
business district. Currently the largest city-core
development project in VWuxi, fo be a multi
phase and largescale city-centre infegrated
development comprising residential and
commercial compound

ARG TR - BA R REERE - BF
5 BTSRRI TR ORERIER - K
REEAETNEETROAT - ZHIF%
B AR & BETR B

2, SKY TREE

N |
Brief Introduction 15 H

Site area (sq.m) HEEE(FFHK) - 1647643 —  located above the No. 1 subway of Wuxi
GFA (sq.m) MERSEER(FHK) 329,000 Guang Cheng Subway Property Development

Project in Wuxi
RIS B | SR AR LR
FEIA R

—  located in Tai Hu New Town with convenient
fransporiation, good landscape and mature
infrastructure
RAABFT - 2BAE - EREx - B
HE TS AR

— A mixed development of residential,
commercial and office

£  EEENAGEER
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

CHANGSHU PROJECTS E#IEH

1. GREENLAND LA CASA
gtaRE

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEHK) - 1191769
GFA [sq.m) BREEE(FHK) : 96,611

2. GREENLAND EMERALD BAY
#% M i) iERRE 2R

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEH5K) : 107,397
CFA [sq.m) s mm(FK) - 141,588

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

Situated at the foot of Yu Mountain, facing the
national park and with established amenities
and infrasiructures

RELAT - BRERFARE - #E
TE = ML AR S E AR e

A prestigious project in the area consisting of
fownhouses and duplexes units
REEGRIE KB INBIEFEKAEEE
EHE

Brief Introduction IEH 4T :

Situated at the unique location and adjoins
the scenic Shang lake fo the north along with
impressive landscape
ZHEBREREENHAREF - LHEE
TAERB ALK SE



ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Continved)
VBB BN #)

NINGBO PROJECT Z=;KRIEH

1. GREENLAND BIHU INTERNATIONAL
G ih 2B

Brief Introduction IEH &4 :

Site area (sq.m| HAREE(FHK) : 90,974 —  Excellent location at the enfrance to

GFA (sq.m) BRSEER(FHK) 138’603 Hangzhou Bay Bridge linking Shanghai fo its
southwest, City Express Ring Road fo its east,
Yubei Expressway fo its north and is adjacent
fo Xiaoyong Railroad

ASEHEMIPME - FEEATNE
BEELE  REEESEHSEAR - 1L
E el mE R - WABLER &

— A sfrategic move to mark the Group's
expansion info Zhejiang province, and
establish a more comprehensive coverage of
the Yangtze River Delta
EH RSB I A R ERE L T
BAMBEN X EAKEER=A
R A EFE IR E R

25
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

HUANGSHAN PROJECT =LLIEH

1. GREENLAND TAIPING LAKE RESORT
EKXEHERE

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEHK) - 212837733
GFA (sq.m| BREEE(THK) 1,141,867

H_’u?

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

located in the northem part of Huangshan,
close to the legendary scenic Taiping Lake
UREILTIEE - MAERZH R SRR
R

Multi-phase resort development comprising
fivestar hotels, golf course, resort villas and
apartments

REHERNERRIAR - RELERH
B mREHS  ERIERAS

A golf practicing focility designed by world-
renowned Gary Player

At SRIB R S IR AR Gary Player =&t
SRRk

Crowne Plaza Huangshan Taiping Lake, a
standard fivesstar resort hotel with a GFA of
42,092 square meters and a fofal of 247
rooms

&L s 2R R BE S ZEE
TER42,002F 5K - BH247MEE -
= BIREN R E RO REAE



SE—LESH SMEERRAERAT

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

HANGZHOU PROJECT #iIg B

1.

GREENLAND CIFI CITY

b nBEY

Brief Introduction IEH & :
Site area (sq.m) #ARERE (FTK) ¢ 587 789 — A mixed development of residential and
GFA (so.m) RSEEM(FHK) 258,814 commercial

FERBREARRIAR

- located at Hangzhou Olympic and
International Expo Center, Binjiang District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province
RIS T AN TR TR AU RASE T

JIAXING PROJECT EZHI=EH

1.

TONGXIANG CENTRAL PLAZA

HEl BB b R 15 , :

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(F oK) - 335:368 — located in the main district of Tongxiang,
GFA [sq.m) M2 SEEE(FTHK) 341,707 Jiaxing City, Zhejiang, and belonged fo the

economic and technological development
zone in Tongxiang; approximately 3km

from Tongxiang city center; just close to the
old town of Tongxiang, and the only way

fo access from Tongxiang South to the city
center

RISz E AR = - SRR
MAERAF R - BERERAS T /043
RE - ZHRAERE - SRR AR
HEHT AR O AR R 15

— A comprehensive cyber city of residential,
commercial and office

EE - BEARPRANEZE RN

27
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

TAIYUAN PROJECT KI/RIEH

1. GREENLAND SHANDING PARK

£33 LLI FR

Site area [sq.m) HAREHE (FITHK) - 335,368 —  located in Xiaodian Disfrict, southeast of
GFA [sq.m) BEEER(FHK) : 256,281

Taiyuan City, the capital of Shanxi Province,
an area with enormous potential as the local
govermnment infends to develop the area into
a multifunctional residential, commercial and
leisure new town center
LIPS B ARRE A/ VER o 72308
EEEEET  REMBTRERNS
TIREETE - B RIRER T 0

HAIKOU PROJECTS i&#OI8H

1. GREENLAND THE FLOREA

“% i 58 i
Brief Introduction IEHE T :

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEHK) - 2927366 —  located at the firsttier waterfront in the

GFA (sq.m] BREEE(FHXK) : 235,247 eastern part of Haikou, the Florea enjoys
an unobstructed ocean view, comprising

Spanishsstyle residential development
[P/ ATIER ED » Sis Al — S8 PR AR
AR RERTAETEA




ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLUO (Continued)
YEBE BN &

HAIKOU PROJECTS i&#0OI&EH

2. GREENLAND HAI CHANG LIU

i BRR . .

Brief Introduction IHB &4t :
Site area [sq.m) HAEFE(FHK) 339,720 —  located at the core area of New CBD, just
GFA [sq.m) EREER(FHK) 1,000,652 close to the New administration Center of

Haikou
[LFE AT R AZ 0 & 15(CRD) - 246
8 DT TERA L

—  The land connects the Coast Avenue from
North, and faces the International Exhibition
Centre
ZHRI g A M EER SRR ——
BENE  EREERERERR O

3. GREENLAND CITY

5 3:ik

Site area (sq.m) A EE(EHXK) : 2,524, 679 - Alargescale mixed development of

GFA (sq.m) M sEER&(EHXK) 4,36 )6,600 residential, commercial and office
AEEE - BERMAGEERIER

- located in Meilan District, east of Haiwen
Highway, south of Meilan Airport and west
of Nandu River
AERE @ BXERAKAR - M
HUARE - FEELLATE

29
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

HAIKOU PROJECTS /#0018 H

4. GREENLAND CENTRAL CULTURE CENTER
f it o R L

Brief Introduction IEB G4t :

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FHK) : 975,717
CFA (sq.m) izsEmE (Fik) 3,273,100

Site area (sq.m) HAAEE(FEFK) -
CFA (sq.m) #8325 E R (F 75 K)

A largescale mixed development of
residential, commercial and office

REWETE - BENMAGRARRIAR

Located in Xiuying District, west of Chang
Bin Road, east of VWuyuan Lake, north of
Changliu No. 3 Road, south of Haiyu VWest
line

INFRE - FOBAT » IRAAR -
RIR=IREELALL - BHRIPEAE AR

Located along Dianchi Road in the
metropolitan area of Kunming, where the
Provincial Central Administration Offices

are located, is a high quality multiphase
residential and commercial project

P EEATHORAEBIEA - IAERE
BRRITEPRE - A PEROAEE
BEENEXGEIER



PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Continved)

VBB BN #)

Site area (sq.m) #ARmEAE (FHK) -
CFA (sq.m) #BZZEmaE(FHK)

Site area (sq.m) HAEEE(FFHK) -
GFA (sq.m) @32 EEmE A (F5K)

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

A mixed development of residential and
commercial

EErRAFEFAERER

located at the south west side of Er Huan
Road, the east coast of Cachai, the north of
Dianchi and west of Xi Fu Road in Kunming
City

R AT R —IREK TR A - JEMILED -
E8RF - R AR

A mixed development of residential, office
and commercial

FE  MARAFREAERER

Located at west of Jinchuan Road, east of
Guihua Road, north of Chen Jia Ying Road
and south of Guihua Road, the Pan-Asia
Technological New Zone, northwest side of
Wuhua Disfrict in Kunming City

P R BRI A ER PRI F @2 R RHEET
2 RER)IE  AZHE  BERK
B - LB

3l
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Continued)

YD3E1E B fS T (@)
Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FEHK) - - A mixed development of residential, office
GFA [sq.m) MEEERE(THHK) and commercial

EFE BRAREEGARRIER

—  located at west of connecting railway of Kun
Wu expressway, east of extension of Ke Pu
Lu, north of Wang Qiong Gong Road and
south of Chen Jia Ying Road, the Pan-Asia
Technological New Zone, northwest side of
Wuhua Disfrict in Kunming City
IR BT A [ Pt A ()2 sp RS
& - REENSERHRAS - AERIEKITE
& BAREEHRE - LERKEHK

—  located in the area covered by the Kunming
Sit .m) AT CERK) ¢
e et gl ABEEETEA 305 ) Comprehensive Healthcare Industry Innovation

GFA (sq.m) #R2EmE(FHK) Growth Pole and ThaiMalay Comprehensive
Healthcare Corridor

S B BRI R S AR S =A% |0 [ e
SRR REERE RS J8R 5T #E A

—  The project will be established as an
integrated “universal health” project covering
the core industry of “medical and healthcare”,
its upstream industry of “university-industry
cooperation” and its downstream industry of
“cultural and business tourism”

ZIE B ERBORE] BRE R OEEY
Bt - [RS8 | s SR AN XCRsTik/E | T
RN — R A2 |ERIAR

- A mixed development of residential,
commercial and office

EE  BEARRANGEERIAR




SEbEET BMEBERERAT

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

XUZHOU PROJECTS #imIgEH

1. CHINA RESOURCES * GREENLAND TRIUMPH ARCH

& 4k b 5| e P9 : :

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FFK) - 86, 071 — A mixed development of residential and
GFA (sq.m) RRREEH(FITK) 324,312 commercal

EErRAFEFAERER

—  located in Gulou Disfrict, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu
Province, west of Zhong Shan Road (N and
north of Tong Pei Road
M IER B RN TEERE - R ILJEEEBA
7 - SRUMES SALL

2. GREENLAND LAKESIDE VILLA

& AR BE

Brief Introduction IEH &4} :
Site area (sq.m) HAXEE(FHK) : 366,517 — A mixed development of residential and
GFA (sq.m) BRSEEA(FH¥) 328,600 commercial

FERERFARRIAR

— located in the south west of Tongshancheng
District, south of Fenghuang Mountina and
north of Yin Mountain, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu
Province
RIFSTAERE RN TR L= R AL - B2
AR » SRILATE
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

GUANGXI PROJECTS FEfaIEH

1. NANNING GREENLAND CENTER
Eipil

Brief Introduction IEB &Y :

Site area (sq.m) B EE(EHK) : 39,099 -
GFA [sq.m) EER(FH3K)  : 317,390

2. GREENLAND INTERNATIONAL HUADU
b EPRTEER

Site area (sq.m) HAAEE(EHK) - 981629 -
GFA [sq.m) EREEER(THK) 343,287

(W W W W W WO W W OWE RO
]

A mixed development of office and

commercial

MANREFFAERIER

Located south of VWuxiang Avenue, VWuxiang
New Disfrict of Nanning City, Guangxi
Autonomous Region

IRER R AR EDHNEARAEIAR

Brief Introduction IEHE T -

A mixed development of residential and
commercial

EERBEFAERIER

Located on Pingle Boulevard, VWuxiang New
District, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous
Region

IR EPS B AR M E D AR R FLERE



ZE-—LEER BSMEBERERAT

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

GUANGXI PROJECTS EfaIEH

3‘

WUXIANG GREENLAND CENTER
ARG

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREE(FFK) - 23,479 — A mixed development of commercial and

GFA (sq.m] BREEM(FAK) 116,300 office
EEMBAGEEEEER

located east of Pingle Boulevard, Wuxiang
New District, Nanning City, Guangxi
Autonomous Region

R EPE B)R R R ET ARFTR FEEE
R

GREENLAND NANNING CENTRAL PLAZA
L ER R RS

Brief Introduction IEH & :

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(FFHK) 138,172 — located in the extended secfion of Dongge
GFA [sq.m) M2 SEEE(FITHK) 5097558 Road and close fo the intersection of Dongge
Road, Binhu Road and Jinhu N. Road.

The project has topHier urban facilities and
convenient fransport infrastructure

AR BIEIERER « MR BEE - B
R o T8 B RBTAR T AR
MM mEE

— A mixed development of residentil,
commercial and office with fopier urban
facilities and convenient transport infrastructure
EE  AEREPRGAER - URATAR
W R R BRI EERE
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

GUANGXI PROJECTS FEfaIEH

5.

GREENLAND WEST TOWN INTERNATIONAL HUADU

it PO g B PR TE D

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

Site area (sq.m| HEREE(FH5K) : /4,000 -
GFA (sq.m] BREEE(ES*K) : 296,200

GREENLAND XIN LI PU YUE GARDEN
IR o BB AE

Located in Xiangsihu subdistrict in Nanning,
west of Luowen Avenue and east of Luoxian
Avenue

AR ERBMOE - & XNBATNE
BARBEAR

Located in the Nanning's center of culiure,
education and scientfic research development

IRFEEXL - B RRFERAHO

A mixed development of Residential and
Commercial

EFERBEGARR

Brief Introduction IEH 4} :

Site area (sq.m) HAAEE(EHK) : 86,087 _
GFA (sq.m] BRSEEE(EH*) : 258,260

Located in Jiangnan disfrict in Nanning. The
land is in the east of Sanjin Avenue and north
of Zhixing Street

(IR E TR R =R AERA - B EEK
gl

Developed for residential purpose. Redevelop
the old fown fo vitalize the city
RAERETRE - ZHHE - REEHT
EHOE )
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
VBB BN #)

GUANGXI PROJECTS EfaIEH

7. NANNING GREENLAND CITY

M= Ak

Site area (sq.m) HAREFE(F5K) - 336,417 — located in Santang Town, Xingning District,
GFA [sq.m] BEREER(FHK) : 003,059 Nanning City

(VRS EaE A R

—  Planned fo be developed info a complex
with fen categories such as ecological living,
international education, creative industries,
commerce and enterfainment, sports and
leisure
REFTE—REARER - BRHE - Al
BEX HERE BEARS L8
AR SR

8. GREENLAND DONGMENG INTERNATIONAL TOWN

ok it 5% 24 B PR3

Site area (sq.m) HAREAE (T F0K) - 4627002 —  located in the core area of ASEAN Economic
GFA [sq.m) 2 SEEME(FK) 872’891 Development Zone, Nanning

I E R BRI

—  Planned to be developed into a future city
with thousand mu and six categories such as
commercial center, garden and residence,
family activities, rehabilitafion and medical
services, themed hotel and international
education
REFTE— R ZED L  FERERM - B
FEE - RERE  TEEE  BRHE
FNfL—BEH) TEAR A T
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO (Confinved)
WEBB BN #)

GUANGXI PROJECTS FEfaIEH

9. YULIN GREENLAND CITY

ErkaEt

Brief Introduction IHHE &4} :
Site area (sq.m| HARERE(EHK) : 437,525 - located in Highend Residential Lot, Yudong
GFA (sq.m] RESEER(THHK)  : 999,414 Lake, Yuiin, Guangd

(LR VS EME RS S /S (E IR
—  Planned fo be developed info a future city

with thousand mu

AREIBEITIER — BT BRI

— A mixed development of residential and

commercial

EERBENGFAERIRR

JIANGXI PROJECT ;IFHIEH

1. GREENLAND CHAOYANG CENTER

L b ERPZ R

Brief Introduction IEH &4} :
Site area (sq.m) HoEREITE(FHHK) 110,189 — A mixed development of residential,
GFA (sq.m) BREEE(FH¥) 473,809 commercal ond offce

EFE  BEMINGAERIER

- Situated at the infersection of the old town
of Xihu District and the new town area in
Chaoyang Disfrict, Nanchang
(AR & PO = 0 S B R RS T AR SR

LA AR AR R AR

—  Planned fo be developed info a landmark

fo showcase Nanchang's urban renewal

achievements and represent the important
provincial capital in the middle of Nanchang
City

BT ER A — AR & ERBUEK
R KRBETHHREEE TR
HHAR
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PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLO (Continved)
VBB BN #)

GUANGDONG PROJECTS E5RIEH

1. GREENLAND MOUNTAIN TIME
ikl

Brief Introduction IEH &4 :

Site area (sq.m) HARTEFE (E7K) 778,697 —  located in Jingulang, Genghe Town,
GFA (sq.m] REREER(THK) - 4797398 Gaoming Disirict, Foshan City, and close fo

Hehe Avenue and State Road No. 525
URELTERRESESRE  BHE
FMAZE 525838

—  Planned fo be developed info a quality
themed fourism resort project
BN EFTER A mE E R IR E fRE
BH

— A mixed development of residential and

commercial

EERREENFAEEREAR

2. SONGLONG TOWN

SRBE/NE
Brief Introduction IEHE4 :

Site area (sq.m) MBER(THK) : 792,500 = L?cgfed in the -|—|Ui|or19 Town Lot, Gaoyao
District, Zhaoging City, Guangdong,
GFA [sq.m) #@EEER (FI7K) - 1,585,000 adjacent o Gaoming District, Foshan City,
and situated in the onehour economic and
commuting radius of Guangzhou and the
three-hour economic and commuting radius of
Hong Kong
UNEREET = EREREHERIE - ik
IS BRREE - BN PAREIMN A LA
/NIRRT A BTN AR B R R D 3/ R
OB ERE

— Inifially planned to be developed info the best
destination for comprehensive culture and
experiential fourism in South China
R EEITERE R BEARE XL
RBER = ki B Hhie

- A mixed development of residential,
commercial and hofel

FE  BEARBENGFSEREAR

39
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT
MERE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND #HEXBREFMIFERERRGE
SALE BY THIS REPORT L3

Name of property and location Group's interest % Property Status Scheduled completion
MELZHRALE FREREZES LUE v EEER A

(1) Combidge Forest Newfown 08.24%  Apariment AF Completed Completed
Xiuyon Rd., Pudong New Area, Shanghai Commercial 752 2% 2%
LETRRARALR

(2)  Tifony (Combridge Woters) 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Shuichan Rd,, Baoshan Distict, Shanghai Commerciol 5% 2&R 2R
BRE (k)

LETBILEKER

(3] Oriental Garden [Cambridge Waterdowr| 100% Vil B2 Completed Completed
Fuxing Rd., Qingpu Distict, Shonghai BIER BIER
SRk (R
LETERRERR

(4] Holiday In Shanghai Pudong Kanggjoo 100%  Hotel jBE Completed Completed
Xiuyan Rd., Pudong New Area, Shanghei Senvice opartment BN BN
DERRBBREE RBEALE
LETRRAMEA N Commerciol 7%

(5] Greenlond Seaside City 50%  Office HRZE Phase | - superstruciure 2018
Heqing Town, Pudong New Areq, Shangha Commercial 7% work in progress —TN\E
SRS TEREHET S
LETRRAEAER

(6] Greenland Huangpu Center 100%  Apariment A% Supersiruciure 2019
Wligico Area, Huangpu District, Shanghai Office #RE work in progress —T-NF
BHEBET Commercial F% LERERTYD
HETERRLERE

[7)  Greenland Yunxiang Tower 100%  Office HAZE Completed Completed
Nanxiong Town, Commerciol 7% BEMR BN
Jioding District, Shanghai
B EMRE
LETREEREME

(8)  Clobal 188 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
No. 88, Suhui Rd., Suzhou Industry Park, Office HAZE =3 (25374
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Commercial g%

RIK188
IFEBMNTERN TXERHEHRO0H

(9)  Triumph Residence 50%  Apariment AF Phase I - supersiructure work 2019
Taihu Loke New Town, Wujiang district, Suzhou City, Commercial 5% in progress —E-hE
Jiongsu Province E-H- FEREETH
Bl
TEAFMTRIIE AW

(10)  Greenlond Jiangnan Huofu 100%  Apariment A% Phase Il - superstructure work 2018
Chengnon, Wujiang District, Suzhou City Vila HIZ in progress —2-N\F
BTEER FoH-LEREHIT
BRI R ERA

(11) Greenland Suzhou ONE 100%  Residential {2 Supersiructure 2019
North of Jiangling Dong Rd and east of Pang Bei Road Commercial 7% work in progress —E-NE
Wajiang District, Suzhou City Office R Z TERSEHIP

ERBERMONE
BT RIRITREREML - Bl RIAR

(12)  Greenland lincoln Garden 99%  Residential {¥% Supersiructure 2018
Dongfang Avenue, Wujiang District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province Commercial 7% work in progress —T-N\F
oy Office #AZE LEREHT
THEHMRIER A Kb

(13)  Greenland Xi Shui Dong 100%  Apariment A% Phase VI - supersiructure work -~ 2020
No. 122, Jiankang Rd., Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province Commercial 7% in progress %%
BIBFKR FN - FERERTY
THREESMREE1 225

(14)  SkyTree 90%  Residential £ Supersiructure 2020
Tai Hu New Town, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province Commercial 7% work in progress “T-%F
Rt Office H#RE LEREHT
TEHAESTRAIN

(15] Greenland La Casa 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
No. 688, Yushan Rd NJ., Changshu City, Jiangsu Province 25374 AR
RiphSE

THEEAMELIEO88%H



SEbEET BMEBERERAT

PROPERTY INVESTMENT (Confinved)
MERE ®)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND #HEXREIFWIFERRERGE
SALE BY THIS REPORT (Continued) M%&)

Name of property and location Group's interest % Property Status Scheduled completion
MEEWRIE FRENERT R R BEERAH

[16]  Greenland Emerald Bay 100%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Huanhu Rd (3., Changshu City, Jiangsu Province Villa 5|2 BER Bk
hERE
IHEFRMRARS

[17) Greenland Bihu Infemational 100%  Apariment AB Completed Completed
Cicheng Town, Jiangbei Distrct, Villo B2 DER DR
Ningbo City, Zhejiong Province Commerciol %

BB
HTAERT LIt EERR

[18)  Tongxiang Central Plaza 70%  Residentiol Preliminary stoge 2020
the main urban area of Tongxiang, Commercial 5% KR “ECTE
Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province Office HAZE
A RES
WIERETRATHE

[19)  Greenland Shanding Park 100%  Apariment A% Phase II - superstucture work -~ 2019
No. 86, Dongfeng Rd., Xioodian Disfict, Taiyuan City Vilo 52 in progress —T-NE
el FH- LERERT S
AR/ NERRERB05E

[20)  Greenland Taiping Lake Resort 100%  Hotel JEE Phase VI - superstructure work -~ 2019
No. 1, Binhu Boulevard, Taiping Lake Town, Apartment A8 in progress —T-NF
Huangshan District, Huangshan City, Anhui Province Golf BfRXHIS EAH- FERERTH
AT HERE
ZHABLUTRLRATHEENAEIR

(21) Greenland The Florea 100%  Apariment A8 Completed Completed
No. 3, Haidian 6 East Road, Haikou City, Hainan Province Villa 712 BEK [Rh53
5SiESE]

BEEEOmEE RN

[22)  Greenland Hoi Chang Liu 50.1%  Apariment A% Phase IV - superstructure work 2018
No. 319, Binhai Boulevard, Xiuying District, Haikou City, Commercial 7% in progress —T-N\&
Hainan Province FNH- FEREM TS
RiBRR
BEEEATARREEAEI0%

(23] Greenland City 100%  Apariment A% Phase IIl - supersiruciure work 2018
Jingxian Rd., Meilan District, Haikou City, Hoinan Province Office PAZE in progress —E-\E
it Commercial 7% F=H- FERERETS
BEEEATXERHER

(24)  Greenland Central Culture Center 100%  Apariment A8 Phase l - superstructure work 2018
Wuyuan River Areq, Xiuying District, Haikou City, Hainan Province Office HAR in progress —EN\E
b RLH Commerciol 3 FoH- LEREHTD
BEEEATARELRTHE

[25] The Mefropolitan 100%  Apariment A% Phase IV - superstructure work 2018
No. 77, Jinniu Rd., Xishan District, Kunming City, Yunnan Province Commercial 7% in progress —Z-\F
DTN FMH- LEREHTT
ERERATRLRSS /75

[26)  Greenland Hai Po Lan Ting 55%  Apariment DB Phase Il - superstructure work 2018
Xishan District, Kunming City, Yunnan Province Vilo 52 in progress —T-N\F
SR Commercial 7% E-H- FERERTH
EBERATALE

[27) Greenland Xiang Shu Hua Cheng 55%  Apariment A% Completed Completed
Wuhua District Kunming City, Yunnan Province Office RZE BER BEN
BB Commercial 7%

EMERATLER

(28)  Greenland Yunduhui Square 55%  Apariment AB Completed Completed
Wuhua District Kunming City, Yunnan Province Office AR BER BER
BHEHEES Commercial F%

EH4RATLER

[29)  Greenland Spring City  Dion Lake Infemational Health Model Town 100%  Residentiol {2 Phase | - preliminary stage 2019
Dayu District, Dianchi Intemational Tourism Resort, Kunming Commercial 7% F—H—-FRER —E-NF
hEg B ERRRREN Office HAR

IRREEREARNE
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT (Confinued)
MERE #®)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AND #HEXBREFMWIFERERARGE
SALE BY THIS REPORT (Continued)

(30)

(31

(32

(33)

(34)

(33)

(36]

(37)

(38)

39

(40)

42)

43)

44)

Name of property and location
MELZHRALE

Greenland Cifi City

Hangzhou Olympic and International Expo Center,

Binjiang District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province
syl

MIEMMTETIERMRERES

China Resources®Greenland Triumph Arch

Binggong Road, Xuzhou City, Jiangxi Province

B Sl

IFARMTELR

Greenland Lakeside Villa

Jiooshan Lake Area, Xuzhou City, Jiangsu Province

b EE

THREBMNTRLRE

Nanning Greenland Center

Waxiong New District, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous Region
BEELAL

ERBRREETLSHRE

Greenland Infernational Huadu

Pingle Boulevard, Wuxiang New District, Nanning City,
Guangxi Autonomous Region

BB

ERRRRREETISHNETERE

Waxiang Greenland Center

Waxiang New District, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous Region
AREESAL

ERBRREETLSHE

Greenland Nanning Central Ploza

Dongge Road, Nanning City, Guangxi Autonomous Region
FHEEPRES

ERBRREETREH

Greeland West Town Infemational Huodu

Xiangsihu subdistrict, west of Luowen Avenue and

east of Luoxian Avenue, Nanning, Autonomous Region
BRI
BERRREXAENAREENENRERANE
Greenland Xin LiPu Yue Gorden

Jiangnan District in Nanning City,

Guangxi Autonomous Region

S EL VN
ERMREAEEET IR
Nanning Greenland City

Santang Town, Xingning Disfrict, Nanning City,
Guangxi Autonomous Region

s

ERfREAEEETAER A

Greenland Dongmeng International Town

Dongmeng Economic Development Zone, Nanning City,
Guangxi Autonomous Region

bR BB

EREMtKE RN ETR BEEREE

Yulin Greenland City

Yuling City, Guangxi Autonomous Region

B s

EFEAtERREEMRD

Greenland Chaoyang Center

Infersection of Xihu District and the new fown area

in Chaoyang Disfrict, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province
EHAGTL

PG S

Greenland Mountain Time

Genghe Town, Gaoming District, Foshan, Guangdong Province
el

EREBUTEHEERE

Songlong Town

Huilong Town, Gaoyao District, Zhaoging City, Guangdong Province
RIENE

EREZEENREEMEARMY

Group’s interest %
FREREZES
50%

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

18%

100%

15%

100%

42.5%

100%

100%

70%

T (&)

Apariment A
Commerciol 5%

Apariment A8
Commercial 7%

Townhouse BHERIZ
Commerciol 5%

Office HRZE
Commercial 5%

Apariment AE
Commercial 7

Office HRAZE
Commercial 7%

Residential (£
Commercial 7%
Office AR

Residentiol {2
Commercial 5%

Residential (£

Residential (£
Commerciol 5%
Office HAZ

Residential (£
Commercial 7%
Office HAZE

Residential {2
Commercial

=

Apartment A
Office HRAZE
Commercial 7%

Residential (£
Commercial 7%

Residential (£
Commercial Fj%
Hotel JHi/&

Phase I - supersiruciure work
in progress

F=H-LERERTT

Phase Il - supersiructure work
in progress

F=H-LEREETY

Phase | - superstruciure work
in progress

EoH-FEREHTT

Completed
BEK

Completed
BEM

Phase l - superstructure work
in progress

FoH-FERERTY

Supersiruciure
work in progress

TERERTS

Superstructure
work in progress

LERERTS

Preliminary stage

MNFEE&

Preliminary stage

NERE

Preliminary siage

MEHEE

Phase | - superstructure work
in progress

F-H-LERERTY

Superstructure
work in progress

LEREHTT

Design stage
RetER

Scheduled completion
BEEREH

Completed
B

2020
“F-TE

—=%—%

2019
—T-hE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmL N DA

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results

With the fransition from the high-speed growth to the high-quality
development, China’s economy was experiencing a crucial period
characterized by transforming the mode of development, improving the
economic sfructure and changing the driver behind economic growth in
2017. The national economy enjoyed strong vitality and resilience, and
steady progress. The reform of supply side in the real estate market was
pushed forward in rental business, land supply and financial regulation in
2017 The Group achieved a business result more than its expectation. The
tofal contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB30, 111 million, with
a yearonyear increase of approximately 65%, and the contracted gross
floor area ["GFA") sold amounted to approximated 2,271,386 square

meters, with a year-on-year increase of approximately 55% for 2017.

The Group recorded a fotal revenue of RMB14,619 million in 2017, a
decrease of approximately 14% from 2016, while profit for the year from
confinuing operations was approximately RMB 1,836 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 73%, primarily as a result of
the sharp improvement in gross profit margin to 25%. Basic and diluted

eamings per share affributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
RMBO.46 compared with RMBO.39 in 2016.

FET5 LR

E 35

“E—tF hELEEHSRERERENRE
BERREER  FRRBEZRITA - BLELES
B ERERHHNRERE  KEZRENNE
M BhEE o —T—tF  BHEMSHHER
HEEHEEMS - LHE  SRERSZEREE
RAEE - ARERERRBHEY  —T—+F
& HERBENRARKE30,111,000,0007T -
BREERENOSL - MEERNBRZEERAOS
2,271,386F 75K  RERRLN/S5% °

R-IE—LF  FEEEFSRERZARE
14,619,0000007T * |8 =& — R F R/ 2 4
14%  MABHBELENFRENORARE
1,836,000,0007T * #FIEEH73% » TERE
RENERABIERE25%MH - AR BHEE AEMNG
BRERNNEERNABARKE046TT - —F—KX
FRARMKO.39TT



44

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2017

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)
EEEWLR DN E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Results (Continued)

The total GFA of the property sales sold and delivered in 2017 was
1,247,502 square meters, staying stable with 1,233,561 square mefers in
2016. The average selling price ("ASP") was approximately RMB11,037
per square meter. The revenue derived from the property sales was
approximately RMB14,102 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
by approximately 14% compared with approximately RMB16,431 million
in 20106. The details of complefed and delivered properties in 2017 are as

follows:
Item City
I5H Wh
- Property
— %
Greenland Nanning Central Plaza Nanning
R EDRES MmE
Greenland City Haikou
AR g
Greenland Hai Po Lan Ting Kunming
Kt B IARIBE B
Greenland Jiangnan Huadu Suzhou
AR ZENT ERON
Greenland Cifi City Hangzhou
AR BRI M
Greenland Central Culture Cenfer Haikou
AR R sau
Greenland Infernational Huadu Nanning
AR EIRRTEER FEE
Creenland Hai Chang Liu Haikou
g RR 3
Greenland Xiang Shu Hua Cheng Kunming
AR B TE =3
China Resources ® Greenland Triumph Arch Xuzhou

DA S HEPT M

EIOIRE(4R)

E 3¢ )

R-ZFE—tF BELRRXNBERNAZERER
1,247 502F 7K » B-TE—XFM1,233,561F
TRERHEERE - PHEE(FHE/DOAS
BFHARARKE 0377 - MEHEWROB/A
[R#14,102,000,0007 * Mm-ZE—RFEHARK
16,431,000,000TTRE R DK 14% « BB —+
FRTRXMOYEFBOT

Approximate Approximate

GFA sold and sales
delivered recognized Average
in 2017 in 2017  selling price

—F—tF —T—tE

EH R fER2HY
R RmE B ERE FEHEE
sqm RMB'000 RMB/sqm
P K AREETFT AR®T/
126,766 1,532,928 12,093
190,592 1,518,245 7,966
97,884 1,484,136 15,162
Q6,104 1,352,889 14,077
48,676 1,313,515 26,985
134,404 1,139,553 8,479
110,684 953,030 8,610
/9,533 647,494 8,141
89,246 586,248 6,569
48,556 498,843 10,274



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
EREWmAR DN E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Results (Continued)

—E—tEEH

EORE(R)

L€ )

Approximate Approximate

BHWEBZRERALTF

GFA sold and sales
delivered recognized Average
in 2017 in 2017  selling price
—F—tF —B—tF
ltem City B R3Eft T2
IHH W B EEE BHISHERR EHEER
sqm RMB'000 RMB/sgm
TR AREFT AR¥ETT
Greenland Lakeside Villa Xuzhou 47,098 404,709 8,593
KRR SR =M
Cambridge Forest New Town Shanghai 18,884 380,953 20,173
RE¥S B!
Greenland Huangpu Center Shanghai 2,703 333,493 123,379
AR EEEL i
Greenland Taiping Lake Resort Huangshan 45516 328,386 7,215
HLAXFHERRERE =L
Greenland Bihu International Ningbo 20,467 304,408 14,873
At ERH B IR B
The Metropolitan Kunming 24,087 251,681 10,449
BRI R E A
Greenland Xi Shui Dong Wuxi 17,012 248,330 14,597
AR PEIKER EiS]
Greenland Yunduhui Square Kunming 21,850 143,897 6,586
BB G ES B
Greenland Shanding Park Taiyuan 12,037 140,636 11,684
AL SR E AR
Global 188 Suzhou 3,873 76,714 19,807
IR¥K188 BN
Greenland Emerald Bay Changshu 6,264 71,899 11,478
ArhE5ERE B
Wouxiang Greenland Center Nanning 4,769 49 413 10,361
AREEH AL [
Greenland The Florea Haikou 402 6,173 15,356
K3 ER 5 s
Greenland Lla Casa Changshu Q5 1,090 11,474
=g B
Sub-total 1,247,502 13,768,663 11,037

et

45
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)

EEEWLR DT E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Confinued) 27 E A (4)
Results (Continued) ES (¢ )]
Approximate
sales
recognized
in 2017
—T—tF
ltem City FERZEY
HH W BMOHER
RMB'000
ARBETT
- Carparking lot
—{FE i
Greenland Cifi City Hangzhou 140,042
AR BB UM
Greenland International Huadu Nanning 88,849
AR PR TE R S
China Resources ® Greenland Triumph Arch Xuzhou 44,345
=S ! RN
Greenland Jiangnan Huafu Suzhou 30,588
KT R EERT ERN
Tiffany Shanghai 10,435
ik s}
Greenland Yunduhui Square Kunming 8,887
= e ES =]
Cambridge Forest New Town Shanghai 3,857
EREES =
Greenland Hai Chang Liu Haikou 3,638
s RR psqm
Wouxiang Greenland Center Nanning 1,504
FREEHR L ME
Greenland The Florea Haikou 707
AR ER I sqn
Sub-total 332,852
et
Total 14,101,515

A
[=0-]




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
EREWmAR DN E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Contracted Sales

leveraging the scale advantage and brand influence of its parent company,
Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited ("Greenland Holdings’
(600606. SHJ), the Group properly understood the project positioning
and pricing strategy and actively promoted the high-quality projects. In
2017, the Group recorded the fotal contracted sales of approximately
RMB30,111 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
65%, and the contracted GFA sold amounted to approximately 2,271,386
square mefers, with a yearon-year increase of approximately 55%. The

average selling price for 2017 was RMB 13,257 per square mefers.

The property market in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta was still the Group's
main source of confracted sales income in 2017. The bulk of contracted
sales Derived from projects in the Pan-Yangize River Delta region, including
those in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai, accounting for 25%, 5% and
10%, respectively. The other major projects mainly included Hainan projects

(22%), Guangxi projects (17%) and Jiangxi project (13%).

Strategic Cooperation

In June 2017, the Group entered info the strafegic cooperation on project
regarding the Greenland Spring City®Dian Lake International Health Model
Town in Kunming. The project involved a diversity of industries such as
international health check, medical treatment and aesthetics, resort hotel
and venture capital base for health research which are beneficial to the
development of Yunnan's current mega-health industry. The cooperation
echoes with the development of Kunming as a "city of health” in China
and is in line with Greenland Holdings' nationwide strategic layout of
"themed fown" as well as its commitment to innovation and fransformation.
It also conforms fo the requirements of “stabilizing growth and promoting
investment” of the central government, and Shanghai and Yunnan
governments, and is expected to become another example for mutually

beneficial cooperation between local govemment and enterprises.

In March 2018, the Group officially announced the development
strategy for medical and healthcare industries. It will focus on medical
and healthcare businesses by leveraging its strong brand advantages
and deploying cutting-edge medical and healthcare resources at home
and abroad fo create a firstclass life and health service platform. It will
also partner with Provectus Care, a renowned Australian elderly care
company, and Shanghai International Medical Centre, a domestic top
medical institution, to establish the first Shanghai-based medical insfitution
focusing on Alzheimer's disease. The Group formally unveiled in the release
conference the establishment of ifs healthcare investment company which

will serve as the Company’s life and health service platform.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

EORE(R)

BHHE

B R BRI B R AR ([ i izh
[600606.SH) BB IE BT R mEwE N » NEE
ERIEERR EL L EERE Bk EsmE
BHA - —F—1F - AEERBEOEEABROA
R#¥30,111,000,0007T © ILEEMNKI6S% - TE
ERNEREEERNR2,271,380F 7K » 125
EINAI55% o« —FE—LFNFHEERTFITARA
R¥13,2577T °

RIB—+F  ZR=EZAMREERAEEEH
HEBENTIERR - KEZE=ZAMWREENA
WHERET  I&H MIL EBEBSRIEE
T25% 5% R I0%HEHIHER - Rt LIER
T2BEEMIAR22%  EMIER 17%MIFER
13% °

BEES{E

R-ZZB—tFRA  REERERFHFR « B
BIUREIIR B AT BB A 1F - %R B P RERE
o BEEX  REEREEREEFEEIRE
o BETREZSHENARREZFZRNZEE
REE  BNAERITETERECBNTE 1
FaER e/ M | BREERMR - B8
BURRNFE  ENATANLE  EEMit
[TRER - REREINFR - HESKATEEE
BEHERA X —#H

“E)N\E=R AREEABMBREEXERE
B - REBRBER - MABRANMEES - 5B
FEEAIMGHEREER @ TE—REmRERS
FE o WERAMBARBRNEZHBERABRK
fEEER  EANIRREEERE DERREEG.OHK
R#%E @ Z LA RMBZBMESRRRER
B AEENREREQARERME LIEXERE -
ERARBENITEN ERRERE T A -

47



48

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)
EEEWLR DT E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Finance Business

In 2017, focusing on the three core strategies including “online wealth
management, asset management and scientific information services”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Shanghai Greenland Financial
Information Services Co., lid. ("Greenland Financial Services’)
sustained a steady growth. By 2017, Greenland Financial Services

achieved the profit for the second year consecutively since its establishment.

For asset management, Daokun Asset Management ("Daokun’), as the
part of Greenland Financial Services, enjoyed dynamic growth trend in
which Daokun actively deepened its cooperation with China’s leading
property developers, constantly promoted strategic layout and increased
the total size of asset under management. As at the end of 2017, the
accumulative assets under management of Daokun Assef exceeded RMB10
billion and Daokun was recognized as “Zero2IPO Group's Top 10 Real
Estate Funds of China”,
Estate Forum — China’s Most Influential Fund 2017”, and China’s Top 20
Most Powerful Real Estate Funds 2017”, ranking high among China's real

"China Real Estate Fashion Award of Boao Real

estate funds.

For platform construction, Greenland Guangceai (4%i1E87) ('Greenland
Guangcai’|, as a platform which is engaged in online wealth
management business, experienced steady growth. Specifically, the
company issued and promoted the wealth management products with the
total amount of RMB10,372 million and more than one million registered
users in 2017. The company has always complied with regulatory
requirements and promoted compliance construction. The company formally
became a member of National Infernet Finance Association of China in
April 2017, and concluded the bank custody agreement with CITIC Bank
in June 2017. Because of the company’s strict risk control, Greenland
Guangcai has ensured “no overdue and no bad debt” for all assets since

launched online in August 2015.

In 2018, Greenland Financial Services will continuously improve the online
wealth management platform, keep the platform’s competitiveness, deepen
and optimize sfrategic layout, expand and strengthen its real estate funds,
fully exploit the industry’s leading technological advantages, expand
data and information service business, make steady progress and deliver
innovative growth based on the Company’s overall development strategy,
which in turn will boost the coordinated development of the Company's

different operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
EREWmAR DN E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Land Bank

By the annual report date from the beginning of 2017, the Group acquired
12 pieces of lands with a total GFA of approximately /7,240,000 sq.m in

Pan-Yangtze River Delta and Pan-Pearl River Delta Regions.

On 12 January 2017, the Group enfered info an equity fransfer agreement
with Wuxi Mefro Group Co., ltd ("Wuxi Metro”) fo acquire 90% equity
interest in VWuxi Guangcheng Metro Above-Station Property Development
Co., lid. ("Wuxi Guangcheng”) which owned a parcel of land
situated in Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, at a total consideration
of approximately RMB2,340 million. As at 31 December 2017, the land
plot will be used to develop residential, commercial and office units with
an estimated GFA of approximately 329,000 sq.m.. The acquisition has
further strengthened the position of the Group in the Pan-Yangize River Delia

area and enriched the Group's property porifolio.

On 24 January 2017, the Group successfully bid for a land parcel located
in Nanning, Guangxi of the PRC, at a fotal consideration of approximately
RMB535 million for a GFA of approximately 296,200 sq.m. with Guangxi
Baota Industrial Park Development Investment Company limited* (EFHE
ETEXREMAERERR AT and Haixia Capital Management Co.,
Ud.* [BIK[EEEEILEELEEFMR AT The land parcel is located ot
Xiangsihu sub-district, Nanning of the PRC, which is a cultural, educational,
scientific and research development center situated at the west of Nanning

City of the PRC and on the upstream of Yongjiang.

On 18 May 2017, the Group enfered into an equity fransfer agreement
to acquire 99% equity interest in R THERMERERR AR A
(Wujiang Shenying Real Estate Development Co., ltd.*] at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMBAOT million. The GFA of the projects
is approximately 204,060 sqg.m.. The project will further increase the
Company’s market share and brand influence in Wujiang, Suzhou of the

PRC.

In June 2017, the Group successfully bid for a land parcel located in
Jiangnan District, Nanning, Guangxi, the PRC, af a total consideration of
approximately RMBQO4 million. The total GFA is approximately 258,260
sq.m. for residential purpose. The acquisition of land not only demonstrates
the high importance the Company attaches to the unique regional
advantage of Guangxi of the PRC, but also injects further impetus to the

long-term development of the Company in the prime locations of core cities.

* For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continved)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Land Bank (Continued)
In August 2017, the Group successfully acquired a project in Foshan,

Guangdong Province of the PRC, af a tofal consideration of approximately
RMB1.18 billion. The project consists of the land for residential and
commercial purposes with a site area of approximately 400,000 sq.m.
and the land for agricultural fourism purpose of 380,000 sq.m. located in
Genghe Town, Gaoming District, Foshan of the PRC, with a tofal GFA of
approximately 479,398 sq.m.. The Group aims to develop the land into a
high-end town with special characteristics, featuring with enrich ecological

resources for developing tourism property.

On 30 August 2017, the Group won the bid for three plots of land located
in Tongxiang Economic Development Zone in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang
Province of the PRC at the tofal consideration of RMB673 million with a
fotal GFA of approximately 341,707 sq.m.. It is the Company’s first foray
into Jiaxing market. The project will be developed into a mixed development

for residential, commercial and offices.

In December 2017, the Group held comerstone laying ceremony for
the large-scale rehabilitation project, Greenland Spring CityeDian Lake
International Health Model Town (‘Health Model Town Project’),
in Dayu disfrict in Kunming of the PRC. The Health Model Town Project
will be developed in three phases. On 8 December 2017, the Company
successfully acquired the first plot of land with a fotal GFA of approximately
980,000 sq.m. including 520,000 sq.m. for residential purpose and
460,000 sq.m. for commercial purpose.

In December 2017, the Group acquired a plot of land for Greenland
Nanning Central Plaza with a total GFA of approximately 225,958
sg.m,. The project will be o mixed development of residential, commercial
and offices. In the same month, the Group additionally acquired a plot
of land for new project, namely Nanning Greenland City, in Sanfang
Town (=3&$H], Xingning District, Nanning of the PRC, with a fofal GFA
of approximately 663,059 sq.m for residential, commercial and office

purpose.

In January 2018, the Group won the bid for several plots of land for the
project, located in Dongmeng Economic Development Zone in Nanning of
the PRC with a total GFA of approximately 872,891 sq.m for residential,
commercial and office purpose. In the same month, the Group further
acquired a plot of land located in Yulin City, Guangxi Province of the
PRC, with a tofal GFA of approximately 999,414 sq.m for residential and

commercial purpose.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Land Bank (Continued)

On 23 January 2018, the Group entered into the equity transfer agreement
to acquire 70% of equity interest in EEF B EEILE B AF] (Zhaoging
Hengchang Industrial Investment Co., lid.*) ("Zhaoqging Hengchang’),
which holds the property project in Zhaoging City, Guangdong Province
of the PRC, at a total consideration of RMB 1,855 million with a total GFA
of approximately 1,585,000 sq. m. for residential, commercial and hotel

purpose.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group held a land bank of
approximately 19 million sq.m. strafegically located in the prime zones of
maijor cities in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta and Pan-Pearl River Delta regions
of the PRC.

Offshore Financing

In July 2017, the Group issued 4.5% bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of USD400 million due 2018. The proceeds from the issuance was
applied to the refinancing of its offshore debt.

In the second half of 2017, the Group also successfully obtained a three-
year offshore syndicated loan with an aggregate amount equivalent
to approximately USD250 million with interest rate of LIBOR+2.8% for

refinancing purpose.

* For identification purposes only
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Outlook
The 2018 Central Economic Work Conference emphasized steady

progress as an important longferm principle for sfate governance of China.
Driven by the strong demand in the domestic market and the loose macro-
economic policy, it's expected that China will maintain its steady economic
growth. In the long run, the quest and promotion of high-quality development
is the fundamental requirement for China’s economic development in
the days to come. For the property market, the Central Economic Work
Conference proposed the establishment of a housing system with supply by
multiple market players, guarantee through multiple channels and balance
between lease and purchase. The longeffect mechanism that can improve
and promote the steady and healthy development of the real estate market
may be introduced to maintain the continuity and stability of regulatory
policies in the real estate market and a clear distinction in the responsibilities
between the Central Government and the local governments, in order fo
achieve differentiated regulation. In response to the market condition with
upgrading of consumption, the Group will work hard to make products to
meet consumers’ different demands in the property market while paying
affention to the market potentials and investment opportunities in the core
cities of the Pan-Yangtze River Delta and the Pan-Pearl River Delta. The
Group will make flexible use of differentiated strategies and select those
cooperation projects capable of enhancing the Company’s brand influence
through its abundant operation experience in the real estate market. The
Group will utilize its professional advantages in product, development and
sales, and forge the parinership with land owners and capital owners fo
expand development scale and market influence and increase ifs overall

competifiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
EREWmAR DN E)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

The total revenue of the Group was decreased by approximately 14%
to approximately RMB14,619 million from approximately RMB16,919
million, in 2016, mainly due to the decrease of the revenue arising from

sales of properties.

As the core business of the Group, the sales of properties generated
a revenue of approximately RMB 14,102 million in 2017 (2016:
approximately RMB16,431 million), accounting for approximately 96%
of the total revenue, and representing a decrease of approximately 14%
as compared with 2016, mainly a result of different regions and types of
the delivered properties in 2017. The revenue of the Group from other
segments included hotel operation income, property management and other

related services, and rental income from leased properties.
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14,618,872 16,919,188 (2,300,3106)

Cost of Sales SHERE

Cost of sales decreased by approximately 22% from approximately
RMB14,091 million for 2016 to approximately RMB11,028 million. The
cost of sales mainly comprised land costs, consfruction costs, capitalized

finance costs and sales tax.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit increased to approximately RMB3,591 million from
approximately RMB2,828 million in 2016, and margin rose from 17% to
25% during 2017 from those in 2016.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

Other Income, Gains and Losses and Other Operating
Expenses

Other income, gains and losses and other operating expenses increased
from a loss of approximately RMB64 1 million for 2016 to a gain of
approximately RMB285 million for 2017, which was mainly due to the
foreign exchange gain arising from the appreciation of Renminbi in 2017

Operating Expenses

With the sustainable business development and expansion of the Group,
selling and marketing costs increased from approximately RMB4 16 million
in 2016 to approximately RMB587 million in 2017 while administrative
expenses decreased from approximately RMB500 million in 2016 to
approximately RMB438 million in 2017.

Net Finance Costs
Net finance costs increased from approximately RMB6S million in 2016 to

approximately RMB 129 million.

Revaluation gain on investment properties

The Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties of
approximately RMB329 million for the year, as compared with a gain of
approximately RMB688 million in 2016. The fair value gain was mainly
attributable to gain on investment propertfies in Shonghoi and Jioxmg of the

PRC.

Income Tax

Income tax increased to approximately RMB 1,420 million in 2017 from
approximately RMB 1,025 million in 2016 mainly due to more corporation
income tax and land appreciation tax provision for the property delivery

with higher margin.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income for 2017 amounted
fo approximately RMB1,836 million, an increase of approximately 48%
compared with approximately RMB1,241 million in 2016

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total equity was approximately
RMB11,585 million (31 December 2016: approximately RMB9Q,724
million), fotal assets amounted to approximately RMB68,750 million (31
December 2016: approximately RMB54,105 million) and total liabilities
stood at approximately RMB57,165 million ({31 December 2016:
approximately RMB44,381 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's business operation proceeds and bank loan raised have been
the primary sources of liquidity of the Group, which have been applied in

business operations and investment in development projects.

As at 31 December 2017, net gearing ratio [total interestbearing loans
and bonds less cash and cash equivalents (including restricted bank
deposits) over tofal equity) decreased to a level of approximately 84% (31
December 2016: approximately 121%). Total cash and cash equivalents
(including restricted cash) amounted to approximately RMB7,857 million,
with fofal borrowings of approximately RMB 17,590 million and an equity
base of approximately RMB11,585 million.

Treasury Policy
The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB.
Aport from fund raising fransactions in the copHo| market, there is limited

exposure to foreign exchange risk.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of
enhancing the control over treasury functions and lowering the costs of
funds. In providing funds to its operations, funding terms have been centrally

reviewed and monitored at Group level.

To minimize the inferest risk, the Group continued to closely monitor and
manage its loan porﬁoho by its existing ogreements' interest margin spreod

with market interest rates and offers from the banks.

Credit Policy
Trade receivables mainly arose from sale and lease of properties and are
settled -in accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale & purchase

agreements and lease agreements.

Pledge of Asset

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged properties and time
deposits with a carrying value of approximately RMB8.6 billion to secure
bank facilities, and the total secured loan balance outstanding amounted to

approximately RMB5.8 billion.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Financial guarantee
As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided guarantees to banks for:
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Property under development and investment ERIHAMBR NGRS BB ER

properties under development contracted but not FHREERNERTMER

provided in the consolidated financial statements BRPIREYE

11,138,547 6,751,193

Human resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 3,153
employees (31 December 2016: 2,678). The Group has adopted a
performance-based rewarding sysfem to motivate ifs staff. In addition to
a basic salary, yearend bonuses are offered to staff with an outstanding
performance, share award schemes were adopted to attract and refain
falent. The Group also provides various training programs to improve their

skills and develop their respective expertise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confinved)
EREWmAR DN E)

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties pertaining
to the Group's businesses. The following are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in
addition fo those shown below which are not known to the Group or which

may not be material now but could tum out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group's core business will be affected by various
factors, including but not limited to economic conditions and the
performance of property markets in regions where the developments or
investments are located, which would not be mitigated even with careful

and prudent investment strategy and srict control procedures.

Impact of Government Policies and Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government policy,
relevant regulations and guidelines established by the regulatory authorities.
Failure to comply with the rules and requirements may lead to penalties,
amendments or suspension of the business operation by the authorities. The
Group closely monitors changes in government policies, regulations and

markets as well as conductfing studies fo assess the impact of such changes.

Foreign Exchange Risk
For details of the Group's exposure in foreign exchange risk, please see
paragraph headed “Financial Performance — Treasury Policy” of this

"Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Third-Party Risk

The Group relies on third-party service providers in certain parts of its
business. While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realises that such operational dependency may pose a threat
of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service including reputation
damage, business disruption and monetary losses. To address such
uncertainties, the Group engages only reputable third-party providers and

closely monitors their performance.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, insofar as the Board was aware, there
were no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that had a significant impact on the business and

operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are its valuable assets. Thus, the
Group recognises the accomplishment of its employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
internal fraining appropriate to individual needs. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments fo conform to the market level. Further, the Group provides a
healthy and safe workplace for all employees and no strikes and cases of

fatality due to workplace accidents occurred during the year under review.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-term goals.
During the year under review, there was no material or significant dispute

between the Group and its business pariners or bank enferprises.
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ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company freasure shareholders’
confidence and trust in the ability and vision of the management team and
have pledged to maintain an open and responsive attitude in shareholders’
communications that are af least on a par with other leading corporations
in the industry. The Board has been adamant in upholding best practices
in corporate governance to ensure the timeliness, transparency and faimess
of disclosure to maximize the Group's corporate values and will continue
to enhance its disclosure practices to display an exemplary corporate

governance practice.

It is the Board's belief that a sound corporate govemance system has been

and will remain an instrumental element to the healthy growth of the Group.

Corporate Governance

The Company has strictly complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code during the year ended 31 December 2017, except for code
provisions A.2.1, A.4.2 and E.1.2 as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, Mr. CHEN Jun
had undertaken the role of both chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company. The Company considers that the combination of
the roles is conducive fo the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group's strategies and policies and such combination has not impaired the
corporate governance practices of the Group. The balance of power and
authority is ensured by the management of the Company’s affairs by the
Board which meets regularly to discuss and determine issues conceming the

operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code provision A.4.2 sfipulates that all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject fo election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. Pursuant to the Articles, any person
appointed as a director by the Board shall stand for re-election af the next
following AGM. Such arrangement is considered appropriate in light of
the requirement of paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 to the Llisting Rules which
requires that any person appointed by the directors to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only unfil the next following AGM and shall then be eligible

for re-election.

Code provision E.1.2 sfipulates that the chairman of the Board should
affend the AGMs. The chairman of the Board did not attend the AGM held

15 June 2017 due to other business commitments.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance

practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for dealings
in securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry by
the Company, all Direcfors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required sfandards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2017
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Business Model

In 2017, as China's economy showed signs of vitality and resilience,
the supply-side reform of the real estate market was further deepened in
various segments such as the lease market, land supply and financial
management. Greenland Hong Kong carried on with past successes and
created fruitful achievements. In line with the integrated strategy of our
parent company Greenland Holdings, the Company implemented the
"Real Estate +" strategy which focused on real estate development while
speeding up the adjustment pace, actively exploring innovative business
and the transformation of lightasset model, and regarded creating a better
life as our own responsibility. Our target is fo maintain a sustainable, rapid
and high quality growth to accelerate the integration of industries and lay a

sturdy foundation for the Company's sale target of hundred billion dollars.

Strategy

Greenland Hong Kong will further focus on an integrated strategy by
enhancing the synergistic effect of the “Real Estate +”, focusing on the
strategic targets such as cultural and business tourism, medical and
healthcare, tourism and leisure and financial services, further penetrating
info the Pan-Yangize River Delta and the Pan-Pearl River Delta and steadily
planning the nationwide layout. At the same time, the Company upgraded
our capital platform and industrial areas, and operated our business bigger
and stronger to promote the overall advantages of the Greenland Family in

capital markets and throughout the industry.

Upgrade the real estate sector

Boasting powerful insights and a strong capacity for innovation, Greenland
Hong Kong continues to create mature product lines and multi-format
combinations within the real estate sector. Moreover, based on the
characteristics of different markets, we are investing in mefropolitan cities
such as Shanghai as well as other fast-growing second and third tier
provinces and cities across China in order to develop large-scale, high-
end properties while we further invest in Yangtze River Delta and Pearl
River Delta regions and continue fo innovate. Our ultimate goal is to boost
profitability by maximizing the synergy between the Group's real estate

secfor and innovation industry.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

Strategy (Continued)

Upgrade the real estate sector (Continued)

Greenland Hong Kong adopted localised and timely strategies towards
land acquisition. In addition to operating with influential brands, it also
forged partnership with land owners and capital providers by way of
merger and acquisition, investing with minority interests, and joint ventures
by utilising its advantages in products, development and sales, which in
turn expanded the development scale as well as market influence. Since
2017, Greenland Hong Kong has added approximately 7.24 million
square mefers of land bank and acquired 12 land parcels in eight cities,
mainly located in two major economic regions, namely, the Pan-Yangtze
River Delta and the Pan-Pearl River Delta. In 2017, the Company actively
responded to China's future development strategy by penefrating info the
cities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area such as
Foshan and Zhaoging.

Creating synergistic effect

For industrial innovation, Greenland Hong Kong actively responded to
the central government's strategies. By leveraging on its experience and
resources in the industry and commercial operation and making reference to
project posifioning and land acquisition strategy, the Group focused on the
core business of building an innovative commercial system, thereby bringing
vigour and profits to the real estate development and creating synergistic

effect.

By capturing the domestic consumption upgrade and users’ demand
upgrade, the Group made a comprehensive layout plan for the new
emerging industries such as medical and healthcare and cultural and
business fourism to establish a full life-cycle industry chain. In striving
to become a "Happy Llife Creator”, the Group entered into strategic
cooperation with Shanghai Intemational Medical Center and Australia-
based Provectus Care to establish the first Shanghai-based medical
institution focusing on Alzheimer's disease. The establishment of Greenland
Spring City  Dian Lake International Health Model Town, located at
Dian loke in Kunming, symbolizes a critical step towards the strategic
development of the medical and healthcare industry. A high-standard
product system with cultural content was infroduced to realise high profit

margin and sustainable profits.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

Strategy (Continued)

Creating synergistic effect (Continued)

Greenland Hong Kong will continue to make use of Greenland Group's
extensive resources by strengthening the coordination with the government
and by way of acquisition of and cooperation in projects, in order to
continuously secure more high-quality strategic projects. By capturing the
national strategies and market opportunities, Greenland Hong Kong will

provide all Chinese residents and people with a better life.

Since its establishment in May 2015, Greenland Financial Information
Services Co., ltd ["Greenland Financial Services’) has been
penetrating vertically info the real estate sector by service and product
innovations to build three major p\oﬁorms of "online wealth management,
asset management services and scientific data services”, which in turn
established an infemet platform for Greenland's industrial chain covering

wealth management and investment, social finance and community finance.

Greenland Financial Services will continue to response to the sound
financial policy of the government in the future by implementing sfringent
risk control. Without compromising safety, Greenland Financial Services
will also enrich its assef sources and speed up expansion of the Company's
asset management scale while fully leveraging its leading technological
strengths to actively develop data information services business and support

the synergistic effect and development of the principal business.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:
CHEN Jun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WANG Weixian (Honorary Chairman)
HOU Guangjun (Chief Operation Officer)
WU Zhengkui
WANG Xuling
YOU Defeng (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:
CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

FONG Wo, Felix, Jp

KWAN Kai Cheong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Board has exfensive
management experience in the property market in the PRC. The Board
has the required knowledge, experience and capabilities to operate and
develop the Group's business and implement the Company’s business
strategies. The biographical details and experience of the Directors and

senior management are set out on pages 96 to 103.

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests
of the Company. The Directors are aware of their responsibilities and
accountability to shareholders and for the manner in which the affairs of the

Company are managed and operated.

Directors have timely access fo relevant information prior to each board
meeting to enable them to make an informed decision and to discharge
their duties and responsibilities. Directors can attend board meetings either

in person or by electronic means of communication.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers them fo be independent.

Ms. WANG Xuling, an executive Director of the Company, is the sister of
Mr. WANG Weixian, the Honorary Chairman of the Group. Apart from
this, to the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationship among members of the
Board.

The Company provides Directors with directors” and officers’ liability
insurance coverage to protect them from loss as a result of any legal

proceedings against the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year, the Company held fen board meetings. Sufficient notice
convening the board meetings were despatched tfo the Directors setfing
out the matters o be discussed. All Directors were given an opportunity fo
include matters in the agenda for the board meetings and had access to the
Company Secretary fo ensure that all board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations were followed. The Board also enabled the Directors
to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense in
appropriate circumstances. At the meefings, the Directors were provided
with the relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The minutes of
board meeting are kept by the Company Secretary or other professional
service provider and they are open for inspection by the Directors and
members of Board commitiees. The secretary of the meefing is responsible
for taking the minutes and all the matters considered and the decisions
reached in the board meeting are recorded in sufficient detail. The draft
minutes are sent to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after

each meeting and the final versions are sent to all Directors for their records.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company held its AGM
on 15 June 2017 and two extraordinary general meetings on 4 July 2017
and 21 December 2017 respectively. The following is the attendance

record of the Directors in the oforesaid meetings:
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held
HEEHRRY,BITHRRY

Board meetings General meetings

Name of Director ESna EEEE: BEXE
Mr. CHEN Jun BRE AL 7/10 0/3
Mr. WANG Weixian ITEERE 2/10 0/3
Mr. HOU Guangjun BRELE 10/10 3/3
Mr. WU Zhengkui RIFERAE 5/10 0/3
Ms. WANG Xuling FHRZEZL 6/10 0/3
Mr. YOU Defeng Pl S
(resigned with effect from 15 June 2017) (R=—T—+F

NATHBEHE) 3/10 0/3
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry RIF A 4/10 1/3
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, Jp AL CKFML) 4/10 0/3
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong RS Rt 4/10 0/3
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. CHEN Jun currently serves as the chairman of the Board and the chief

execufive officer of the Company.

The chairman is responsible for the overall business and investment
strategies of the Group. The chairman is also responsible for overseeing
effective functioning of the Board and application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The chief executive officer is
responsible for managing the Group's overall operations and execution of
the Group's long term business development policies. The Board, led by the
chairman, sefs the overall directions, sfrategies and policies of the Group.
Under the |eodership of the chief executive officer, the management is
responsible for executing the Board's strategy and implementing its policies

through the day-o-day management and operations of the Company.

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management who shall report fo the Board.
The Board reviews on a periodic basis such delegations to ensure that they

remain appropriate.

Important matters are reserved for the Board's decision, including:

J long-term objectives and strategies

e extension of the Group's activities info new business areas
®  appointments fo the Board and the Board committees

o annual risk management and internal controls assessment
e annual budgets

*  material acquisitions and disposals

J material connected transactions

] material banking facilities

J announcements of inferim and final results

J declarafion or recommendation of dividends

ERFRATHAER
BE LT AL N F S ERERITRR -

TRBEASEENBBERRICERE  TBEE
RESENANEERRITCEEATENEFD
BRIER - (TRAEHABEEERNEE N EREEL N
ERATAEENRBEBERECR - EF5SHER
EE - BEYFIAEENER SR - R RBUR

ETRBRNEET  EEEEENTEEFRE
BRANFNABER R EEEMREEER

EFERTARNAEERNEREEENERRITH
Bat - EESTHRARERE - RREHRE
NEEE

UTNEZEREMEETSRERERE - B
o  REIBHRERHE

o BAKENEFERENEFAL
s EFENEFERBRENZM

o FERBEERAMIESGFG

o FEEE

e BRKBRHEZRA

s BAHERH

o  ERRTEFEE

o FHIRREIZEGE QMM

o EREZEEE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continved)
TEERRE @)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have diversified
backgrounds and industry skills and one of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate accounting qualification as required by the
Listing Rules. With their expertise, they offer experience, independent
judgement and advice on the overall management of the Company. Their
responsibilities include maintaining a balance between the interests of all

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

All the independent non-executive Directors are members of the audit,

nomination and remuneration committees.

All the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
one year renewable by mutual agreement on an annual basis. Under the
Articles, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject fo retirement by rotation and re-election at each AGM provided that

every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the remuneration committee on 19 September 2006
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and responsibilities. In compliance with the CG Code, the Board has
adopted new terms of reference for the remuneration commitiee which have
been posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the remuneration
policy and specific remuneration packages of all executive Directfors. In
formulating the remuneration policy, the committee takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, employment
conditions and responsibilities, and individual performance of the
Directors, senior management, and the general staff. The committee can
seek independent professional advice fo complement its own resources to

discharge its duties.

The remuneration committee currently comprises Mr. CHEN Jun, Ms.
WANG Xuling and all the independent non-executive Directors namely
Messrs. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, FONG Wo, Felix, JP. and KWAN
Kai Cheong. Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong was the chairman of the committee
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The Company has adopted the model that the remuneration committee

make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out

in note 14 to the financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management paid for the year ended 31

December 2017 fell within the following bands:

EEHN(E)
AARERMFHER GBI TESRBRE
BENOHIES EFEREEBREH -
SHEFRIERTINOB S ST RS MR

140

REE T+ F+-A=+—RHIFEINTS
HEREABNFTHERLT

Number of Individuals

AE
RMB1,000,000 or below AREET 000,0007T8 AT 5
RMB1,000,001-RMB2,000,000 ARHET 000,001 752 AREE2,000,0007T 1
RMB2,000,001-RMB3,000,000 AR¥2,000,0017E AR¥3,000,0007T 2
RMB3,000,001-RMB4,000,000 AR#3,000,0017L2 AR 4,000,0007T 1
RMB4,000,001-RMB5,000,000 ARHE4 000,001 752 AREES,000,0007T 0

The above remuneration includes fee, basic salaries, allowance, bonus,

share-based payments and other benefits.

Two meetings were held by the remuneration committee in 2017 to discuss

remuneration related matters. Individual attendance of the members is set

out

Mr
Mr
Ms
Mr
Mr

below:

. CHEN Jun

. KWAN Kai Cheong

- WANG Xuling

. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry
. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

LAFHMEEAE EAFE R/ B4 RO
S REMFE

FMZEER T tFRT T MAEE AR R
BERIEE - ERIKEHEBERNAT

PRE L 2/2
BRI E . 2/2
Q-3 tum 2/2
SRIEFEE 2/2
TS (K F4L) 2/2
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established o nomination committee on 1 April 2013 in
compliance with the CG Code. The nomination committee is responsible for
nomination and selection of Directors. Proposed new Directors are selected
based on skills and experience that will enable them to make positive
confributions fo the performance of the Board. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. CHEN Jun and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The principal

functions of the nomination committee include:

* o review the structure, size and composition [including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to

complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

® o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nomination for directorships;

® o assess the independence of independent non-execufive Directors;
and
*  io make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

reappointment of Direcfors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular chairman and chief executive.

The nomination committee currently comprises two executive Directors,
namely Messrs. CHEN Jun and HOU Guangjun; and all the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry,
FONG Wo, Felix, JP. and KWAN Kai Cheong. Mr. CHEN Jun was the

chairman of the committee during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

One meeting was held by the nomination committee in 2017 to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, evaluation of performance and
contribution of the retiring Directors and the independence of the refiring
independent non-executive Directors. Individual atfendance of the current

members is sef out below:

Mr. CHEN Jun

Mr. HOU Guangjun

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

AN NN

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the audit committee on 19 September 2006 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. In compliance with the CG Code, the Board has adopted
ferms of reference for the audit committee which have been posted on the

respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The committee is responsib\e for formu|0ﬂng and reviewing the financial, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company. The committee
is also responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor and
considering any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditor. The
committee can seek independent professional advice fo complement its own

resources fo discharge its duties.

The committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely Messrs. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, FONG Wo, Felix, JP.
and KWAN Kai Cheong. Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong is the chairman of the

committee during the year ended 31 December 2017
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in 2017 Individual

atfendance of the members is set out below:

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 2/2
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 2/2
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 2/2

During the year, the committee reviewed, Togefher with the senior
management and the Auditor, the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Company, statutory compliance, other financial reporting matters,
the risk management and internal control systems. The audit committee
also reviewed the Group's interim results for the six months ended 30 June

2017

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LEE Mei Yi of Tricor Services Limited, an external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its Company Secrefary since September
20006. The primary confact person of the Company is Mr. Rain Lei, Board
Secretary of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. LEE Mei Yi has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professioncﬂ training during the year
ended 31 December 2017

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. Management provides such explanation and information to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the matters put before
the Board for approval. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for

preparing the financial statements for the Group.

The statement of the Auditor regarding its responsibilities for the financial
statements of the Group is set outf in the report of the Independent Auditor’s

Report on page 132 to page 139.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of the controls on financial, operational and compliance to

safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The head of the Internal Audit Department reports to the audit commitiee
on key ﬁndings regording internal controls. The audit committee, in turn,

communicates any material issues fo the Board.

With the continuous efforts of the Board, management and all staff, the
Group has established a relatively comprehensive and effective risk
management system for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance
on compliance with laws and regulations by the Company in its operation
and management, assef security, financial reporting and the authenticity
and completeness of the relevant information. The Group has complied with
Code C.2.4 of Appendix 14 to the listing Rules by adopting the following

system:

1. Identification: The Company paid close aftention to external and
internal changes in the conditions through a variety of methods,
and understood the risks involved and analyzed the reason for the

potential risks on an ongoing basis.

2. Assessment: The Company analyzed the possibility and impact of

risks and made corresponding assessments.

3. Management: The Company considered risk response to ensure
effective communication of the Board regarding the risks and

confinuous moniforing on residual risks.

The Board is responsible for the Company's risk management and infernal
control systems and for reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. They
are responsible for the assessment and determination of the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to undertake to achieve
its strategic objectives, as well as the establishment and maintenance of
appropriafe and effective risk management and infernal control systems.
The risk management and internal confrol systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in leading the management of risk
management and internal control systems and managed and oversaw its

composifion, execution of duties and supervision.

The Infernal Audit Department is responsible for conducting an independent
review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
infernal control systems and adopting risk confrolbased auditing methods.
lts annual work plan, which covers the major tasks and procedures of
the Group's business segments such as real estate development, property
services, business management, Internet finance and building and
construction, has been approved by the Board and the Audit Committee.
It also provided the Audit Committee and the Board with its findings and
recommendations for improvement. The Infernal Audit Department will follow
up on the audit findings so as fo ensure that its recommendations have been
properly implemented and will regularly report to the Audit Committee on its

progress.

The head of the Internal Audit Depariment reported directly fo the chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Group and the chairman of the Board.

Under the support of the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and infernal control systems through
reviewing management reports and internal audit findings twice a year
and considered that the Company'’s risk management and internal control

systems for the year ended 31 December 2017 are effective and sufficient.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte is primarily responsible for providing audit services in connection
with annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration in
respect of audit services provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted o

RMB2,615,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing duties relating to corporate

govemance funcfions as sef out below:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporofe governance,

® o review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;
p g 9 ry req

® o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual [if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

e toreview the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board developed and
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices, including the
revised terms of reference for the remuneration committee, audit committee

and nomination committee.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According fo the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution fo the

board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance issues
under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and enhance their
awareness of their confinuing obligations as Directors and good corporate

governance practices.

During the year, the Company provided the Directors with materials
regarding the CG Code. Each of the Directors provided the Company
with their respective training record pursuant to the CG Code. During the
year, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development by ways of attending training or reading materials relevant to

the Company's business or to Directors' duties and responsibilities.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening of an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

Pursuant fo article 58 of the Articles, shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than oneenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Requisitionist(s)’) may, by written requisition [the “Requisition’)
to the Board or the Company Secretfary, to require an EGM) to be
convened by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in the
Requisition. The Requisition shall be deposited at the head office of the
Compoany in Hong Kong (namely Unit 5711, 57th Floor, The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong). The EGM shall be held within two
months affer the deposit of the Requisition. In the event that the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM within twenty-one days of the deposit
of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s] may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisiﬁomstls] b\/ the
Company. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled

at Shareholders’ meetings for approval or adoption.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

EEE
RIBEEERTRIMTANEXEA 650K 2%
FR2EFBEZEZR  FALEHEMNB R
B UERESFEETEABEEEMRIEMHN
BRTHESSELER -

PREFCHEEHEABEALTARNESTNREK
BEENEETREIATAREENZ - ARFHE
BRERREEH LETRANMEMEREEREN
BEE  BREFETEBRAERENRES
REHERERNRBEREMRITEEEATRN

72
poask ©

FA - ARRAEFEHEEECXEATINE
o EFEEARBEXEATRIAARR R
SXENEIRKE - FR - 2REFHCEBLERE
EISMEERA R ARG A EERE LA TARN
AR 2EEENFERERER -

R SRFER
BRBREHHIXERRERKE LIRE R
RHMREFF

RIBARESS G REXZFRAHHAETIRA
REBRBEA(HERARBBERERNE LREAE
M)tz —mBR(2RADERBAARRE
EFeYNARNERLERZA((2F]))  BRES
BARBRRENIAE  MRIE2FTEANTAE
e EREXREARANEBRMEE LU RE
BEEANEFIIRFIRPLS7/ES7E)  BIR
FRIRSENER Z2HEMIEARETT - MEER
EFR-_T—HR BEFERERIITHARBR
FRIRE - AIZBAF AR —A R BRRRERIAR
g MARRERZFABEEREESREARH
ZAEMABHMARENX - M ERFIVERAR
RETERERAS UHHESRABREATRHSR

75



76

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Confinved)
TEERRE @)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for convening of an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings (Continued)

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. In respect of other enquiries, shareholders may put forward enquiries
fo the Board through Mr. Rain Lei, Board Secrefary of the Company, who

will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

The contact details are as follows:

Address: No. 193 Xiehe Road, Changning District, Shanghai,
China

Email: rainlei@greenlandhk.com

Tel number: 8621 61353777

Fax number: 8621 6135 3732

INFORMATION ON SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2017:

Authorised share capital: HK$5,000,000,000.00, comprising
7,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares of HK$0.50 each and 3,000,000,000
CPS of HK$0.50 each.

Issued and fully paid-up capital: HK$1,396,838,341.50 comprising
2,793,676,683 Ordinary Shares.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ARTICLES

There were no amendments made to the Articles in the year ending
31 December 2017.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect fo the procedures and infernal controls for the handling and

dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Compony is aware of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Main Board Listing Rules

and has established the inside information/price-sensitive information

disclosure policy in connection with the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside

Information” issued by the Securities and Future Commission.

The disclosure policy includes, among other things:

(al

(b)

()

(d)

Directors or senior management shall report any potential /suspected
inside information to any of the executive Directors as soon as
practicable for him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for
determining the nature of developments, and if required, for making
appropriafe disclosure. Every senior management member must
take all reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that proper
precautions are in place to prevent a breach of the inside information
provisions and the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules by

the Company;

Officers of the Company shall keep all the inside information strictly
confidential prior to the publication through the HKEx-EPS and ensure
that the employees and external advisers of the Company have

strictly complied with the principle of confidentiality;

Any officers or employees of the Company who are in possession of
inside information are prohibited from trading or otherwise dealing

with the securities of the Company; and

The responsibility for communications with regulatory bodies, media,
analysts and the market primarily lies with designated personnel
of the Company. Unless authorized by any of such designated
personnel, any officers or employees of the Company are not
allowed to take part in the aforesaid duties. Enquiries on information
which may constitute inside information of the Company must be

handled by the designated personnel.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") Report is prepared
according fo the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules’) for
the purpose of providing stakeholders a comprehensive overview on our

financial results and our ESG policies, initiatives as well as performance.

The report covers the information relating to the Company's ESG
management directions and strategies during the period from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017 [the "Reporting Period"). It focuses on
the Compony/s efforts in environmental profection (regordmg emissions,
use of resources, environmental and natural resources) and social aspect
[regarding employment, health and safety, development and training, labor
guidelines, supply chain management, product liability, anti-corruption and
community investment). We have engaged our management and staff of
all departments to review their respective operations, identify relevant ESG
issues, and assess their materiality/relevance to our business. The dafa
disclosed in this report cover relevant data of the Company's headquarters

and its project management companies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continved)
REE - HERERBRE @)

A. ENVIRONMENT

A1l. Emissions

A. IRE
Al. HER

The Company is an infegrated conglomerate “focusing on the
development of real estate market and placing equal sfress on
emerging sectors like Big Infrastructure, Big Finance and Big
Consumption”. The principal businesses including property
development (with outsourced land construction projects),
property management and financial services do not involve
direct emissions, but on|y involve the emission of nitrogen
oxides, sulphur dioxide and greenhouse gases arising from
fuel consumption in the course of using vehicles for business
purposes. The Company pays close attention to and strictly
abides by national laws and regulations on environmental
profection, including but not limited to the requirements set
out in the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution Law of the PRC, Prevention
and Control of Aimospheric Pollution Llaw of the PRC and Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Confrol of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste.

The Company atffaches great importance to environmental
protection, energy conservation and emission reduction.
Although property development is outsourced to external
contractors so that the Company is not involved in any direct
emission of greenhouse gases and solid or liquid emissions,
such confractors produce cerfain amount of greenhouse gas
emission, dusts, waste water in construction sites and wastes
from construction projects. Therefore the Company pays
a lot of attention to the qualifications of confractors and ifs
supervision and management of the construction processes on
construction sites, so as fo minimize any possible emissions.
The Company engages those contractors which have sound
environmental and safety record for the development of the
Company's projects. It requires contractors to strictly comply
with environmental laws and regulations applicable in the
place where the development projects are located, care about
the materials used in those projects, construction methods and

on-site environmental management.
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A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Al. Emissions (Continued)

Direct emissions during the year are sef out below:

Al.1 Emissions

IRIR ()
Al BRI (4R)
RAAEEERFRERIT :

Al 1 BERIER

Amount of
emissions
g
Source of emissions lkg)
Type of emissions HeRhER PERURR (F7)
Nitrogen oxides [NOx) A&t (NOx) Vehicles owned by the Company
NEIEBEH 302
Sulphur oxides [SOx) — &b (SOx) Vehicles owned by the Company
NEIEBER 2
Particulates (PM) FERL (PM) Vehicles owned by the Company
NEIBAEH 27

Note: Emission of particulates set out above are all from
the emission of nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and
parficulates arising from fuel consumption during the

course of use of the Company s vehicles.

The project management deporfmem of the Company
occasionally arranges specific projects to rectify
contractors’ problems of dust pollutions on construction
sites. By requiring fencing of construction areas,
covering of exposed soils, fixation of consfruction
pavements, use of closed vehicles for transporting slags,
rinsing of vehicles that go in and out of construction
sites, wet demolition of buildings and other measures to
confrol over dusts on property projects. In addition, it is
required that waste water should not be directly drained,
but should instead be emitted affer treatment, to avoid

the impact on surrounding environment.
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REE - HERERBRE @)

A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Al. Emissions (Continued)

A1.2 Emission of greenhouse gases

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

A. ERE(ER)
Al. BB (4R)
Al.2 BERBAHK

Amount  Total amount
Scope of of emission of emission
emission of PR E BB E
greenhouse Source of emission (tons) (%)
gases REREEREE BERURR (W8) (Bot)
Scope 1 &E1 ¢ Unleaded gasoline and
Direct emission BEHN diesel oil consumed by
self-owned vehicles
s BEEEEWEREL
FEEL M 52 432 11%
Scope 2 giE2 e Consumption of e\edricity
Indirect emission I HE o TIHME 3,471 86%
Scope 3 #E3 e Sewage freatment
Other indirect HoAth R HE R by government
emission o BTSRRI 133 3%
Total st 4,036 100%

Direct carbon emission of the Company is relatively
low. This is mainly from the emission of greenhouse
gases arising from the unleaded gasoline and diesel
oil consumed by self-owned vehicles. Meanwhile,
the Company encourages green travel and advises
employees fo use public fransportation for minimizing the

emission of greenhouse gases.

During the year, the Company’s indirect carbon
emission amounted to 3,471 tons. These are the
indirect emission arising from the use of electricity af
the Company’s headquarters and project management
offices. In daily management, the Company requires
procurement departments to prioritize the use of energy-
saving products in sourcing electrical appliances for
offices, for example energy-saving light bulbs, energy-
saving air conditioners and so forth; and requires that
lights and office equipment such as computers should
be tumned off when not in use. Security guards are also

arranged fo check against any omissions.
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RiE - HERERRE (@)

A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Al. Emissions (Continued)

A1.2 Emission of greenhouse gases (Continued)
Other indirect emissions from the Company mainly
include the use of airplanes for business trips and
sewage freatment by government. The Company
advocates paperless offices and has installed distant
conference system in conference rooms to minimize
unnecessary business trips. At its headquarters and
project sites, the Company has labels to remind saving
on water use, cultivate employees’ awareness for

saving, and require reuse of water in daily life and

construction.

A1.3 Harmful/Harmless wastes

Certain solid wastes are produced in the course of
property project development. It mainly includes harmless
wastes, including construction disposals like steel bars,
concrete and bricks and files. While the Company is
basically not involved in the physical construction of
projects as construction is oufsourced to professional

contractors, the Company requires contractors fo screen,

shatter or reuse.

In addition, daily-life trash is produced from the daily
office operations of the Company. As such trash is

handled by municipo| environmental authorities, the

relevant amounts cannot be quantified.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE-HER

A v
ERIRE#)

A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Al. Emissions (Continued)

Al.

3 Harmful/Harmless wastes (Continued)
Other than management and control in the course of
project construction, the Company is also aware of
environmental protection in product design. For example,
under its residential brands such as "IBAEZR", "E EB 4L
B BEE, "BHER, "Z2K" and so forth specific
to different residential projects, customized design in
green construction sysfems is available such as intelligent
new ventilation replacement system, ecological 3D
green system, sensation-based humanity-locked system,
scattered energy and so forth. Meanwhile, regarding
pollution control in completed properties, dedicated
water purification systems are available in some

projects, such as:

e Water source purification, whereby unleaded
pipes are used so that thorough purification of
water is made possible from the source to water

taps;

e Muting technology, whereby new noise reduction

plates are used to fully cut off noises;

J Intelligent new ventilation purification system,
whereby air from outside is purified before
channeling to indoor, while polluted air from

indoor is exhausted:;

o Interconnection technology, whereby air quality
is monitored on a realtime basis, and data from
such interconnection sefup can be shared, so that
landlords can be provided with greener indoor

environment of higher quality.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had
no material non-compliance incidents in relation to

environmental laws and regulations.
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RiE - HERERRE (@)

A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources

The Company has always attached great importance fo

energy conservation and advocated green and energy-saving

construction, caring for environmental protection, pollution

prevention and confrol, compliance with rules and regulations,

cutting down on energy use and related cosfs, with a view to

achieving sustainable development through standardized site

construction.

Energy consumption of the Company during the year is sef out

below:

A2.1 Total energy consumption and intensity

A. IRE(EH)
BiRER
AR-BERGOLR - BELEHE

A2.

T -

KT - TERR  BES

R BETRL BMRRA BBEE
fETibiEsR - BREFNAFHERR

REAAFERERFEABFRMOT

A2 ] BERAEFEBREE

Intensity
Amount of Consumption,/
consumption person
Type of energy consumption HFEREREARY HREE HIEE, A
Electricity (kWh) & (kWh) 4,292,250 1,502
Gasoline (ltre) AU (RF) 159,600 N/A
TNEH

Other than the aforesaid measures for energy saving, B Bl EnBIEFELASN - RAEIEK

the Company requires employees to use energy such
as town gas and gasoline in a reasonable manner,
encourages employees to abide by green travel, for
energy conservation.

A2.2 Total water consumption and intensity

Total water consumption {fons| 325,380

Infensity (amount of water consumption 114

(fons]/person)

In designing property projects, the Company fakes info
account the particularities of the respective projects and
construct rainwater collection and reuse systems so that
rainwater can be collected, blocked from pollution,
filrated, stored and used in greenery constfruction,
rinsing, irrigation of landscape, and supplementing
cooling water. For large-scale projects, mid water
treatment stations are also designed for secondary
use of water resources after construction is completed.
The Company encourages contractors fo reuse water
in construction and daily use. On market side, in
the course of daily office operation, the Company
also advocates conservation in water use to avoid
unnecessary wasfage.
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A2.2 BFEKEBREE
areKE () 325,380
R (FOKE W)/ A 114
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A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

A2.3 Consumption of packaging materials
The Company's principal business is property
development and its production and operation process
does not involve the use of packaging materials. This

indicator is not applicable.

Other than the aforesaid measures on the conservation
of energy and natural resources, the Company conducts
overall planning af the stage of property project design.
Based on the particularity of the respective projects,
scattered energy system is designed, focusing on
maximizing energy and environmental efficiency in
determining modes and capacities, and systematically
integrates and optimizes the various energy needs of
users and resources allocation. Demand-based design
and modular configuration are adopted so that energy
utilization efficiency becomes more reasonable, and less

dissipation and pollution is caused.

A3. Environmental and Natural Resources

Adhering to the notion of “Create better life” (4% » B4 JE
¥ E147), the Company proactively promotes and safeguards
sustainable development and advocates green living. The
Company is firmly devoted to environmental protection and
sustainable development. In the design, development and
operation processes at each project, the Company is proactive
in adopting measures for environmental protection, while
energy saving measures are adopfed on a reasonable basis
such as sponge city, intelligent energy use, scattered energy
systems and so forth. Gardening with high greenery rate and
roof-fop greenery projects are also designed for the protection

and improvement of the ecological environment of cities.
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BRI - HERER

==Ae )

B. SOCIETY

Employment and Labor Practices

B1.

Employment

The Company considers employees as one of its most
important assets. The Company is committied to a harmonious
corporate culture and the concept of sharing under the
Greenland umbrella, looking for win-win situation with social
progress, customer safisfaction, corporate development and
staff career growth. In sirict compliance with relevant laws
and regulations including the Labor Law, the Labor Contract
Law and so forth, the Company protects the legitimate
interests of employees and fairly freats employees of different
nationdlities, ethnicities, genders and ages and strictly prohibits

discrimination.

To aftract and retain falents, the Company proactively builds
up its career platform on which employees can have their fast-
tracked career development. A scientific and effective talent
cultivation mechanism is in place to provide employees with
competifive remuneration and benefits. Staff acfivities are also

arranged fo boost a sense of bliss and belonging.

Staff structure and tumover rate of the Company during the

year are sef out below:

BI1.1 Total headcount
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had a
headcount of 3,153, all of whom were full-time
employees, comprising 6 senior management members,
34 middle management members and 3,113 basic-

level staff members.

Breakdown of participants by gender
EEMAIEE

B. #&
EBiERE THER

B1.

Over 50

years old

5080 £
4%

&=
RARREEREEREENEEL
— B - HEAE BN
RERGGES FFME  BXHE
R -BENENZHRF/E - RA&E
BIEBE) (BBHERE)EHH
ERERRE  NEREBREESEE
@ APHGEIRBEE - Bk M
Al FERMET  BEAIERK -

RAB/WIIAT - BEAS - BEIT
ERRERNEXTE  BUMESF
M AT BB AEEREHEAR
FHFMERENGE  ABSREN
BTA%  EaESERE BB -

ARAEEIE BRI R ER
T

Bl.] ES#2
HE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—
A RalH*E3,153%EE &
REBES  HRSREEAE
ON HEELAB3MA  EE
AB3,113A °

Breakdown by age
BEFRER




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continved)

RIE - HERERRE @)

B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Employment and Labor Practices (Continued)

B1.

Breakdown of leaving employees, by gender

BiREE MR 2

B2.

Employment (Continued)
B1.2 Turnover rate

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no
material non-comphonce incidents in relation to labor

practices.

Health and Safety

The Company attaches great importance fo the protection of
employees’ rights and interests, a safe working environment
and health protection. Firmly upholding the philosophy of
safety first and prevention prevails, strengthening control over
sources of hazards and relying on standardized, systematic,
networked and modemized management, the Company cares

about employees' life and health.

At the construction sifes of property development projects, the
Company seeks to protect the health and safety of everybody,
irrespective of their roles as the on-site managers of the
Company or staff members of confractors. The Company has
put in place a production safety work duties mechanism, with
responsibilities to be taken by the individuals, who take charge
of regularly inspecting production safety for each project; a
project manager duties mechanism regarding on-site safety
implementation; and a safety roster mechanism regarding the

safety duties of project depariment.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no incidents
of work-related injuries or death, nor were there any material

violations of any health and safety laws and regulations.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Employment and Labor Practices (Continued)

B3.

Development and Training

The Company believes that employees are ifs precious assets.
For the ongoing enhancement of the professional knowledge
and skills required for different job functions and to uplift
work quality and efficiency, the Company provides trainings
that cater to the needs of employees at their respective job
functions. Such trainings are designed and arranged based on
the Company's rules and systems, job duties of employees and

the skills required for their work.

During the year, the Company arranged training courses
that covered corporate culture, safety spirit, construction
management, operation management, procurement
management, cost management, enhancement of property
project quality and so forth. 733 training sessions totaling

4,276 hours were provided, with 28,969 participants.

Overall training is as follows:

Breakdown of participants by gender
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Employment and Labor Practices (Continued)

B4.

Labor Guidelines

The Company has established mechanisms and recruitment
rules to avoid illegal employment. All recruitment and employee
procedures are in srict compliance with the Labor Law and the

Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.

Business departments of the Company are sirictly prohibited
from illegally employing child labor, signing labor contracts
in violafion of the genuine intention of the counterparties, or
forcing employees to work overtime. Meanwhile, the Company
requests on-site managers to regularly check if there is any
child labor or forced labor employed by its general contractors

and sub-contractors during the course of business operations.

The Company has made reasonable arrangements for the
working hours based on the statuory standard working hours,
including the implementation of 8-hour working days as well
as annual leaves. It provides leave benefits such as paid leave
and sick leave in accordance with the labor law. Forced or

compulsory labor in any form is strictly prohibited.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material
non-compliance incidents in relation to the labor guidelines
stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations. No material
risks pertaining fo the use of child labor or forced labor by any

major sub-contractors or suppliers have been identified.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

#HE (&)
EIERE TEHR(ER)

B4.

E TR

AR BRI R IEE R RO &
BB - AERERERERFBRR
BREPEARKNBNEHERSBA
D% o

REBIREREEBAPITFIRER
RET  TREFTERETEEEM
MEEBER  ENGHRAEBBET
- Al - AR ERITREBRGH
HEEABENRETIRABENE
TREBEETPRETEMBEMNETS
TFESR I BB HYIB ©

REEREEBN TIERREEENRE
TEREBENM T AIELH - RES
N ARSI R FREBHIE - WARES
EL THHBRAARRRERRE
M BRI AR RE SR HI S8 -

RRAFPRIRE AR EELEBRER
EREBTEANERTERER
NABRGEEAEETESBEX
HEFEEAETEAT LB HEHD
E e

89



Q0

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

The Company is committed to building perfect homes in
cities and is well aware of the importance of selecfing sound
suppliers to secure quality of the Company’ projects. To
better control the various segments along its supply chain,
the Company has introduced a reform of the approach to
tendermg for procurement on a holistic manner since 2017,
adopting a “Party A Supply and Direct Procurement” approach

and vastly implementing standardize cost management.

As part of this supply chain reform, the Company adopts
supplier list catalogue management, whereby only
manufacturers are in principle accepted as candidates
for suppliers, while cooperation with companies with bulk
purchase offers are encouraged. Meanwhile, the Company
also explores channels of resources by making good use of
the online wechat public accounts of the Group's suppliers,
arranges business departments for recommendation and
arranges infroduction of high-quohT\/ external supp|iers, with a
view to uplifting its deployment capability in the competition for

resources.

Through regular appraisal of the cooperation with suppliers
affer contract seflements, the Company ranks and categorizes
suppliers each year based on the result of appraisal, with
suppliers meeting being held each year to screen and star-
rate those suppliers on a meritocratic manner, thereby
augmenting the Company’s brand effect and attractiveness
of its resources. In view of the characteristics of procurement
of major construction materials and recruitment of labor in the
confinuance of property development projects, the Company
generally selects qualified suppliers in the locality for the

purpose of energy saving and emission reduction.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued) B. #H&E (&)
Operational Practices (Continued) ZEEM(E)
B6. Product Liability B6. EmREE

While the real estate sector forms the core of its businesses,
the Company offers products of various functionalities including
ultrarhigh-rise, urban complex, residential and industry property,
in ongoing pursuit of product sophistication in both intrinsic

and exirinsic terms.

Attaching great imporfance to construction management in
respect of its construction projects, the Company adopts
innovative technology and uses BIM (Building Information
Modelling) system management platform in many of its projects
for managing construction. This platform enables real-time
understanding of the progress of projects and swift checking of
professional information, model information, photos depicting
scenes of construction, and information on on-site inspection
and verification as well as supervision, thereby achieving
intensive management of the whole process of construction,
uplifting construction quality, fostering industrialization of
construction and sustainable development. Meanwhile, the
BIM system management platform can exclude most floor
plan mistakes, minimize refurned work, speed up construction

progress and achieve energy saving and emission reduction.

For product inspection and verification, the Company shall
arrange for joint inspection by engineering, property and
customer service departments or third-party inspection three
months prior to product delivery. Rectification notfice will be
issued in respect of any problems identified. Re-inspection will
be conducted one month prior to product delivery to ensure

that all problems have been rectified.

Subsequent to product delivery, customers’ inspections are
facilitated with the Company’s mobile building inspection APP,
which enables realtime communication with mobile customer
service personnel for feedback on problems raised. Cusfomer
services department of the Company regularly follows up with

problems raised by customers for better customer experience.

Further, a customer services hotline is available to take
complaints from customers and transfer the same to the relevant
departments for further handling. The hotline team will follow
up with the progress of handling complaints af regular intervals

and provide feedback to the customers concerned.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Liability (Continued)

The Company atftaches great importance to customers’
opinions and conducts satisfaction survey every & months to
fake opinions from prospective landlords, new landlords and
existing landlords, thereby gathering their views and in turn

uplifiing service level of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, there was no litigation arising

from the quality of our products or services.

Anti-corruption

The Company strives to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations on anticorruption and money laundering, including
but not limited to the Criminal law of the PRC and the Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the PRC.

The Company has developed infemal rules on anti-corruption
and anti-fraudulent behaviors. It has established the audit
depariment as the standing body for anfi-corruption, being
responsible for investigation info issues under whistleblowing as
well as daily audit items. Whistleblowers may, through letters
or by electronic mails or phone calls, report any misconducts
or illegal activities discovered such as suspected corruption,
fraud and so forth. Conducts in violation of national laws
will be referred to judiciary authorities for their further actions

according fo law.

The audit department of the Company has always played an
active role in performing its supervisory function. This year,
one independent and holistic corruption questionnaire was
conducted with respect to major supplier(s) of the Company,
seeking to identify any improprieties such as bribe taking
or giving by staff members of the Company in the course of

cooperation with suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, there had been no corruption-
related litigation cases raised and completed against the issuer

or its employees.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)

B8.

Community Investment

Helping those in danger and difficulties is a traditional virtue
of the Chinese culture. Bearing corporate social responsibilities
in mind, the Company’s development has always been in
tandem with giving back to society. During the Reporting
Period, the Company proactively participated in the following

public welfare activities:

1. In April, the Company title-sponsored “Beijing
International Mountain Walk”, in advocacy of low-
carbon green living. The Beijing and Tianjin business
division of the Company contributed ideas and efforts
fo this Mountain Walk event, setting a series of fun
activities along the walking routes as free-of-charge

benefits to mountain walk lovers who attended the event.

Meanwhile, inviting the participation of the Accessibility
Development Research Institute of Tsinghua University
and the Blindness Association of Chaoyang District,
Beijing and so forth, the Company also set up
charitable and interactive fun games including “darkness
experience” for participating walkers. The activity
enabled participants to experience the difficulty faced
by vision-disabled people in their daily living and
aroused a lof of awareness of and intention to help
those vulnerable groups in our society. On the day,
lovers of outdoor activities experienced the meaning
of green, energy-saving and simple living under a
joyful atmosphere, appreciated the natural beauty of a
green city, and enjoyed their a day of low-carbon and

environment-cared life.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)
B8. Community Investment (Continued)

2.

4 July: "love and Care for Students” Guangxi Charitable
Walk. Following the Company's call for donation to
poor students in Guangxi Guzhu Elementary School,
its Guangxi business division took the initiatives in
arranging donations among all staff members and
business partners. RMB60,000+ cash, 100+ books,
Q0+ clothing items and 40+ toys were all donated
to Guangxi Guzhu Elementary School, seeking to
contribute fo some improvements in student’s learning

conditions.

May: “Greenland Heart Program — love at Southwest”
2017 Green — love Charitable Walk activity series.
Pursuant to the deployment and arrangement of “targefed
poverty alleviation” conducted by central provincial and
municipal governments, in May 2017, the Company
embarked upon its “Greenland Heart Program — Love
at Southwest” 2017 Green — love Charitable Walk
1,180 students from
Chengguan No. 4 Wanquan School, Litang County,

activity series, targeting at the

Ganzi Prefecture as far as the first stage of “love and
Happiness” under this series of activities. Through this
3-day trip of more than 1,000 kilometers in walking
distance, volunteers from the Company brought a
special Children’s Day to the 1,180 students from the

“world highland city” Litang, Ganzi in Sichuan Province.

@ August: Second disaster alleviation in Jilin. In early
August, Jilin suffered from catastrophic flooding caused
by persistent heavy rainfall. Right from the start of the
disaster, the northeast business division of the Company
already devoted efforts to helping with disaster
alleviation and postdisaster rebuilding. In late July, the
Company held the first charitable disaster-relief activity
fo help the suffering public. On 9@ August, the northeast
business division of the Company held the second
charitable disaster-relief activity, going deep again
into the disaster-stricken areas in Jilin and sharing the

hardship of people there.
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B. SOCIETY (Continued)

Operational Practices (Continued)
B8. Community Investment (Continued)

5.

10 August: “Wen County Triple Disaster” disaster-
relief acfivity. Wen County in Longnan, Gansu suffered
serious disaster under the catastrophic debris flow
caused by heavy rainfall along with the magnitude 7.0
earthquake hitling Jiuzhaigou in Aba Prefecture, Sichuan
Province, both of which happened within 3 days. The
Company swiftly started a disaster-relief program called
""love Without Boundary, Mutual Help and Support’
— Greenland Hong Kong's Care for Earthquake-
stricken Areas in Action”, to actively organize donations
among employees and call for helping hands among
the community at large. Donations and disasterrelief

supplies were sent to the disasfersfricken areas prompily.

This is a summary of the Company's series of efforts in

environmental protection and community care during the year.

Coing forward, we will keep up with our work and continue

to discharge our duties as a corporate cifizen in environmental

and social ferms.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EERSREEEAEGN

Executive Directors

CHEN Jun, 43, is a member of the communist party and the Executive
Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. CHEN Jun is responsible for the overall planning,
formulation of strategies and overall daily operations of Greenland Hong
Kong. Mr. CHEN Jun has more than 20 years of experience in the real
esfate and consfruction industry, with extensive management experience in
the industry. Since he joined Greenland Holdings group in February 2001,
Mr. CHEN Jun has served as project manager, assistant general manager,
deputy general manager and general manager of the Business Divisions of
Greenland Holdings group and vice president and executive vice president
of Greenland Holdings group. Mr. CHEN Jun also serves as the honorary
chairman of Shanghai Chamber of Commerce in Shaanxi, vice chairman of
the Airport City Development Committee under the China City Development
Research Society and a member of the 10th standing committee of the
Shaanxi Youth Federation. He has also been elected as a deputy of the
11th and 12th People’s Congress of Shaanxi Province successively. Mr.
CHEN Jun obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial and civil architecture
from the College of Architecture and Engineering of Nanjing University
of Technology, a master's degree in architectural and civil engineering
from Xi‘an University of Architecture and Technology, an EMBA degree
from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management and a
PhD degree in national economics from the Chinese Academy of Social

Sciences.

WANG Weixian, 54, is the Executive Director, Honorary Chairman
and founder of the Company. Mr. WANG Weixian has over 20 years of
experience in finance, construction, property investment and development.
Mr. WANG Weixian graduated from South China University of
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in building materials and University
of Technology, Sydney (Australia) with a bachelor’s degree in commerce.
He is also a councilor of the Shanghai Soong Ching ling Foundation and a

standing member of the Shanghai Overseas Exchange Association.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (Confinved)
EENRSNEEBAER N (#)

HOU Guangjun, 46, is a member of the communist party and the
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Mr.
HOU Guangjun has over 20 years of experience in the real estate and
construction indusiry, with exfensive management experience in the industry.
Since he joined Greenland Holdings group in November 1996, Mr.
HOU Guangijun has held the posts of engineer, project manager, assistant
general manager, deputy general manager and general manager of the
Business Divisions of Greenland Holdings group. Before joining Greenland
Holdings group, he worked for Shanghai Railway Sub-administration.
Mr. HOU Guangjun also serves as a member of the People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Jinan, Shandong Province, China. Mr. HOU
Guangjun graduated from Tongji University with a bachelor’s degree in

materials engineering.

WU Zhengkui, 44, is the Executive Director of the Company. Mr. WU
Zhengkui is also the deputy general manager of the Finance Department
of Greenland Holdings group. Mr. WU Zhengkui graduated from
Fudan University with a master's degree in accounting. He also has the
professional fifle of intfermediate accountant. Mr. WU Zhengkui has over
15 years of experience in the real estate and constfruction industry, with
extensive experience in financial management within the industry. Since he
joined Greenland Holdings group in January 2002, Mr. WU Zhengkui has
served as Finance Manager, Director and Supervisor of the subsidiaries of
Greenland Holdings group and Assistant General Manager of the Finance

Department of Greenland Holdings group.

WANG Xuling, 57, is the Executive Director and the General Manager
of Commercial Management Department of the Company. Ms. WANG
Xuling graduated from Ji'nan University (Guangzhou). Prior fo joining the
Company, Ms. WANG was the executive director and deputy general
manager of Mission Hills Golf Club [Mission Hills Group), responsible
for sales and marketing of properties. Before joining Mission Hills Group
(Mission Hills Golf Club), Ms. WANG Xuling had about 12 years of
experience in the news and media business. Ms. WANG Xuling joined the
Company as Executive Director in 2007 and was once the Chief Executive

Officer of the Company since April 2011.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHEONG Ying Chew Henry, 70, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2006. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics and a Master of Science
degree in Operational Research and Management. Mr. Cheong is also
an Independent Non-executive Director of CK Asset Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Cheung Kong Property Holdings Limited),Cheung Kong
Infrastructure Holdings Limited, CNNC International Limited, Hutchison
Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited, New World Department
Store China Limited, Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited and TOM Group
Limited. Mr. Cheong currently serves as an executive director and the
deputy chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company listed on the London
Stock Exchange. He is also an Independent Director of BTS Group
Holdings Public Company Limited, o company listed on the Stock Exchange
of Thailand. Mr. Cheong was previously a member of the Securities and
Futures Appeals Tribunal and the Advisory Committee of the Securities and

Futures Commission.

FONG Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, 67, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2006, a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong and is also qualified in Canada and England. He is appointed by
the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-Appointed Attesting
Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. FONG is a consultant and the founding
pariner of the Hong Kong law firm, King & Wood (formerly known as
Arculli Fong & Ng), and has practiced law for over 30 years, including
eight years in Toronfo. Mr. FONG is an independent non-executive director
of a number of listed companies, namely Guangdong Land Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited), Evergreen
International Holdings Limited, China Investment Development Limited
(formerly known as Temujin Infernational Investments Limited), Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Llimited, and Xinming China Holdings Limited
and WuXi Biologics [Cayman) Inc., whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Fong is also an independent non-executive director of Bank
of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited. From May 2010 to May 2016, Mr.
Fong was an independent non-executive director of China Qilfield Services
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. FONG is a member of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (9th and

10th Sessions), a director of the China Overseas Friendship Association,
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a director of the Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and
an executive director of the Guangdong Overseas Friendship Association.
He is a director of the Hong Kong Basic law Institute and also the former
chairman of the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene and
a member of the Hong Kong Communications Authority. Mr. FONG is a
member of the first Selection Committee for the purposes of electing the
Chief Executive for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a founding
member of the Canadian International School of Hong Kong, a member of
the Board of Advisers for the Faculty of Business of the University of Victoria,
British Columbia, Canada and a visiting professor of the School of Law of

Sun Yatsen University China.

KWAN Kai Cheong, 68, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since 20006, holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honors)
degree from the University of Singapore and is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. KWAN is presently Chairman of the Board of
Utopa Llimited, a commercial property operating company in China and the

president of Morrison & Company Limited, a business consultancy firm.

Company Secretary

LEE Mei Yi, 50, is a Director of Corporate Services of Tricor Services
Limited (“Tricor”), a global professional services provider specializing in
integrated Business, Corporate and Investor Services. Ms. LEE has over
25 years of experience in the corporate secrefarial field. She has been
providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies
(including H share companies) as well as multinational and private
companies, companies limited by guarantee and offshore companies.
Ms. LEE is a Chartered Secrefary and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries ("HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered
Secrefaries and Administrators ("ICSA”] in the United Kingdom. She is a
holder of the Practitioner's Endorsement from HKICS. (Nofe: The Company
has engaged Tricor Services limited as external service provider and
appointed Ms. LEE as the Group’s Company Secrefary since September
20006.)
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Senior Management

GU Mingi, 42, is a member of the Communist party, the Vice President
of the Company and General Manager of the Guangxi Company. Mr.
GU Mingi obtained a bachelor's degree in industrial and civil architecture
from Zhengzhou University. He is a senior engineer with the qualifications
of National First Class Registered Architect and National Supervision
Engineer. With more than 20 years of experience in the real esfate indusiry
and excellent management capability in real estate companies, he held
senior management positions with several renowned property developers
in Henan and Shanghai for a long period of fime. Mr. GU Mingi joined
Greenland Hong Kong at the end of 2013 and was recognized as the
"Model Staff of Greenland Group for 2014", "Outstanding Manager of
Greenland Hong Kong for 2016", “Person of the Year of Greenland Group
for 2016" and "Person of the Year of Greenland Group for 2017

DUAN Weili, 42, is a member of the Communist party, the Vice
President of the Company, and the General Manager of the Guangdong
Company and Yunnan Company. Mr. DUAN Weili obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Metallic Materials and Engineering from Central South University
and a master’s degree in Business Administration from City University of
Macau. With extensive experience in operating and managing multi-
project development and control, he held senior management positions with
several renowned property developers in Shenzhen, Huizhou, Nanjing,
Kunming and Guangzhou for a long period of fime. Mr. DUAN Weili
joined Greenland Hong Kong in August 2017 and was previously the chief
of office of Shenzhen Fuchun FEOSO (Group) Limited Company, the deputy
general manager of Business Unit in Shenzhen Vanke Real Estate Co., Lid.
and the general manager of Guangzhou Company and Kunming Company
of AVIC legend Co., lid.

JIANG Zhongmin, 49, is a member of the Communist party and the
assistant to the president of the Company. Mr. JIANG Zhongmin obtained a
bachelor's degree in Economics and Management from China Agricultural
University. With 30 years of experience in the real estate industry, he
held senior management positions for a long period of time with extensive
experience in investment and development of real estate projects. Mr.
JANG Zhongmin joined Greenland Group af the end of 1993 and was
previously the principal staff member, assistant to the general manager of
the ancillary depariment of the Group and assistant fo the general manager
of the second division of Jinlu Company. He previously worked in Shanghai
Electronic Instruments Bureau Real Estate Company | /@M EEBEHER
7)) [formerly known as Electronic Instruments Housing Office G4 B1EE##).
Mr. JIANG Zhongmin joined Greenland Hong Kong af the end of 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (Confinved)
EENRSNEEBAER N (#)

LEl Yu, Rain, 45, is the Secretary fo the Board and General Manager
of legal and Risk Control Cenfer of the Company. At the same time, he
is one of the person-in-charge of Capital Market Department and Internal
Audit Department. Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, graduated from Fudan University with
a bachelor's degree in law and a master's degree in public administration.
He also obtained a master's degree in business administration of senior
management from China Europe International Business School. Mr. LEI Yu,
Rain is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and has over 20 years of working
experience in compliance and internal risk control of listed companies,
mergers, acquisitions and reorganization of companies, project investment
and ﬁnoncing and contract negotiation, efc. Prior to joining the Compon\/
in May 2003, Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, worked at Grandall Law Firm (Shanghai),
where he was mainly engaged in corporate mergers and acquisitions and
IPO projects. Mr. LEI Yu, Rain, was recognized as the “2014 Industrial
Honorary Role Model of Greenland Group”, “Outstanding Manager of
Greenland Hong Kong for 2015", "Outstanding Manager of Greenland
Hong Kong for 2016, "Model Staff of the Group for 2016", "Model Staff
of Greenland Group for 2017" and “Outstanding Manager of Greenland
Hong Kong for 2017".

LI Peng, 35, is the General Manager of Marketing Management
Department of the Company. Mr. LI Peng graduated from Shaanxi Normal
University with a bachelor’s degree in education. He also obtained a
master's degree in business administration of senior management from
China Europe International Business School. Mr. LI Peng joined the
Northwest Business Division of Greenland Group in 2007 and has more
than 10 years of experience in real estate marketing. He was awarded
the Champion for Annual Sales of Weimar Mansion of 2008, the Top
Market Manager of 2010 and the One-Star Market Manager of "Benfeng
Award” in 2010. In 2011, the team led by Mr. LI was also awarded
the Champion for Annual Project Sales of the Year — Northwest Business
Division. In 2012, Mr. Ul was recognized as the “Business Role Model” of
the Year of Greenland Group, "Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong
Kong for 2016", “Model Staff of Greenland Group for the Year” and
"Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong Kong for 2017".
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GU Guanghui, 32, is a member of the Communist party and the General
Manager of the Investment Development Department of the Company.
Mr. GU Guanghui graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor’s degree in management studies. He has nearly
10 years of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. GU Guanghui joined
Greenland Group in 2009 and was the General Manager of Xining/
Urumqi companies under the Northwest Business Division of Greenland
Group. Mr. GU Guanghui joined Greenland Hong Kong in November
2016. He was awarded "Advanced Staff of Greenland Group for the
Year” and "Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong Kong for the Year”
in2017.

SUN Yu, 42, is the General Manager of Technology Research and
Development Department of the Company. Mr. SUN Yu graduated from
Dalian University of Technology with a master's degree in architecture.
He is a Class | registered architect and intermediate engineer. He has
15 years of experience in architectural design. Prior to joining Greenland
Group in 2010, Mr. SUN Yu worked in East China Architectural Design &
Research Institute and was responsible for the management of various large-
scale ultra-high-rise urban complex projects, such as Changsha Greenland
Center, Wuhan Greenland Center, Greenland AD 1860 and Greenland

Gu Cun Park Business Plaza.

LI Qiang, 43, is a member of the Communist Party and the General
Manager of Cost Management Depariment of the Company. Mr. LI Qiang
graduated from Tongji University with a bachelor's degree in project
management and is an intermediate engineer. With over 20 years of
experience in cost and budget management, Mr. LI Qiang is seasoned
in dynamic cost calculation and control throughout the entire process of
a project. After joining Greenland Group in 2006, he has served as the
Deputy Cost Manager of the Commercial Group, Deputy Cost Manager of
the Property Operations Il Department and Cost Director of the Shandong
Sales Department. Previously, he worked at Shimao Group and Widnell
ltd. He was awarded "Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong Kong” in
2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (Confinved)
EENRSNEEBAER N (#)

GAO Xiang, 37, is the assistant fo the President of Shanghai Greenland
Financial Information Services Co., ltd, a company under Greenland
Hong Kong, and the general manager of Daokun Assets Management
Company Limited. He graduated from Xiangtan University and Tongji
University with a master's degree in project management. With more
than 10 years of experience in the real esfate investment and real esfate
fund, Mr. GAO Xiang held senior management positions such as the vice
presidem of Jindi Wins Investment, and the executive director of Ping An
Industrial Fund in Ping An Securities. Mr. GAO Xiang was recognized
as the "Special Award of General Manger of Jindi Wins Investment”,
"Outstanding Manager of Jindi Group for 2013" and he was the one of
the first players and management personnel of real estate fund. Mr. GAO
Xiang joined Greenland Hong Kong in March 2016, and was recognized
as the "Outstanding Manager of Greenland Hong Kong for 2016". He
manages several investment management companies under Greenland
Hong Kong, of which Daokun Assets Management Company Limited was
awarded the “TOP 10 China Real Estate Fund for 2017" by Zero2IPO,

with accumulated scope of asset management of over RMB 10 billion.

GE Hao Long, 44, is the General Manager of a property company
of the Company. Mr. GE Hao long graduated from Hebei University of
Economics and Business with a bachelor's degree in finance. Mr. GE Hao
long is a standing member of Shenzhen Property Management Association,
a member of the Discipline Inspection Committee of the association, and
a visiting professor of Shenzhen Real Estate and Property Management
Advanced Training College. Prior to joining the Company, he worked in
China Vanke and Shenzhen Poly Property
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EETHE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. lts subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development, property and hotel investment

and property management.

An analysis of the Group's sales and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017 and a discussion on the Group's future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 13 and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” on pages 43 to 58 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2017 using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “"Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 fo 13 and “Financial Highlights”

on pages 2 to 3 of this annual report.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies, relationships with its
key stakeholders (including our employees, customers and suppliers and
others that have a significant impact on the Company) and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are confained in the "Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on

pages /8 fo 95 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continved)
EEERE @)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 1.84% of the Group's sales in the year while the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for about 35%, and the largest customer
of the Group accounted for about 1.14%, while the largest supplier

accounted for about 12.91% of the Group's purchases in the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
on page 140.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no fransaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiary was a party, and in which a director of the Company or an
entity connected with such director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant fo the Arficles, the Company will indemnify its directors out of ifs
own assefs against any liabilities incurred by them in the execution of their
duties or respective offices, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said directors. The relevant provision of the Arficles was in force during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 and as of the date of this annual
report. The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers

liability insurance policy in respect of such indemnity.
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.15 per
Ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December 2017

There is no arrangement pursuant to which a Shareholder has waived or

agreed fo waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 23 May 2018. A notice
convening the AGM will be published and despatched in due course fo the

shareholders of the Company in the manner required by the Listing Rules.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 17
May 2018 to Wednesday, 23 May 2018 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine
the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share cerfificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 16 May
2018.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed final
dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 31 May 2018. In order
fo defermine the identity of the shareholders who are qualified to receive the
proposed final dividend, the register of members will be closed on Tuesday,
29 May 2018 to Thursday, 31 May 2018 (both days inclusive], during
which period no fransfer of shares will be effected. All duly completed
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Invesfor Services Limited, af level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 28 May 2018.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continved)
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FIXED ASSETS

Defails of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set ouf in nofe

18 1o the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified under
current liabilities. Details of the long-term borrowings are sef out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements. Interest and other borrowing
costs capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in note 10 fo the

consolidated financial statements.

MOVEMENTS OF SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are

set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 25 July 2014, the Company established the US$2,000,000,000
medium term note programme (the "Programme’) established by
the Company under which it may issue medium term notes that may
be issued from time to time (the "Nlotes”] by the Company under the
Programme in series or tranches of aggregate nominal amount of up fo
US$2,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies) outside the
United Stafes in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act.
The Notes will be issued in series with different issue dates and terms
and may be denominated in any currency subject to compliance with all
relevant laws, regulations and directives. To assist the Company in meetfing
its obligations under the Notes and the trust deed dated 25 July 2014
entered into between the Company, Greenland Group and the Trustee,
Greenland Group entered info a keepwell deed with the Company and
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (as frustee of the
Notes; hereinafter "HSBC" or “Trustee’) and the deed of equity interest
purchase underfaking between Greenland Group and the Trustee dated
25 July 2014 in relation to the Notes. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcements dated 28 July 2014.
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ISSUE OF DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, the Company did not issue any debt securities for
the year ended 31 December 2017

(i)

(il

On 27 June 2017, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Credit Suisse (Hong Kong] Limited, The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, China Everbright
Bank Co., lid, Hong Kong Branch, Haitong Intemational Securities
Company Limited and UBS AG Hong Kong Branch in connection
with the issue of 4.5% bonds due 2018 in the aggregate principal
amount of USD200,000,000 (the "Bonds 2018"). The Bonds
2018 were issued by the Company on 6 July 2017 at the issue
price of 100.00% of the principal amount of the Bonds 2018. For
details of the Bonds 2018, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 27 June 2017, 28 June 2017 and 6 July 2017,

respectively.

On 24 July 2017, the Company entered info a subscription and
placement agreement with Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
(the “Sole Placing Agent’), ceriain subscribers and the swap
counterparty [i.e. such professional, insfitutional or other investor(s)
procured by the Sole Placing Agent to invest in the Additional
Bonds) in connection with the issue of 4.5% additional bonds due
2018 in the aggregate principal amount of USD200,000,000 (the
“Additional Bonds"). The Additional Bonds were consolidated
and formed a single series with the Bonds 2018. The Additional
Bonds were issued by the Company on 27 July 2017 at the
issue price of 100.00% of the principal amount of the Additional
Bonds plus an amount corresponding fo accrued interest from, and
including, 6 July 2017 to, but excluding, 27 July 2017. For details
of the Additional Bonds, please refer o the announcements of the
Company dated 25 July 2017 and 27 July 2017 respectively.

RESERVES

Defails of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in note 50

to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves

available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was

RMB2,5606,486,000 (2016: RMB3,410,629,000).
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DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB320,000 (2016: RMB249,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on pages 282 to

284.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Jun [Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Weixian (Honorary Chairman)
Mr. HOU Guangijun (Chief Operation Officer)
Mr. WU Zhengkui
Ms. WANG Xuling
Mr. YOU Defeng (Chief Finanical Officer)
[resigned with effect from 15 June 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. WU Zhengkui, Mr. CHEONG Ying
Chew, Henry and Mr. FONG Wo, Felix will refire from the Board at the
forthcoming AGM. Being eligible, they offer themselves for reelection.

None of the Directors has a service confract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is nof terminable within one year without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continved)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR’S CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmations from each of the

independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to eliminate Directors’ interests in businesses competing with the
Group, on 19 September 2006, Mr. WANG Weixian enfered into a
deed of non-competition with the Company (the "Deed"”).

In accordance with the terms of the Deed, Mr. WANG Weixian has
provided the Company with an annual confirmation that he and his

associates (other than the Group) have complied with the terms of the Deed.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the matters relating to the compliance and enforcement of the Deed by Mr.
WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the Group| and confirmed

that Mr. WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the Group) have
complied with the Deed.

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors of the Company
is considered fo have inferests in businesses which compete or are likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was expired on 18 September 2016. There
were no options oufstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed

during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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EEERE@)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Ordinary Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of ifs associated corporations [within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO)) which were required fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, 1o be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

Aggregate long position in the Ordinary Shares:

EENEFIER

BTXHAREEN  RZBE—tF+A=+—
B ARRIEERITBEEN AR R S AR
ZEE(EERLEFES B FRGIEXVER) 80 E B -
R BREESTREREE BRIEE S MR F
BIEXVERE7 R ES DRI E AR B MBS 2T (B
REFREE S MG RGN A RIS E (FRIE
BAMEDIORR)  HARBFS RAEEIE
352MGREE I AL GBI AT 2 B Re i - SAIRIBIRAE
STRIFIE AR F R AT E AR SOAR

REBERMREER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity and nature of interest Ordinary Shares capital (Note 4)
REAATEET
AR E
BEE R
EEiE S RiERME LEREE (BzEa)
Mr. WANG Weixian Inferest of controlled corporation 32,958,571 1.18%
[Nofe 1)
FEERE R AT R (HzE)
Founder of discretionary trust 367,254,133 13.15%
[Nofe 2)
WEEFREIA (b))
Ms. WANG Xuling Beneficial owner 4,000,000 0.14%
FlREZ L EnEBA
Inferest of controlled corporation 7,010,448 0.25%
[Note 3)
S NG (HI5E3)
Beneficiary of a discrefionary frust 367,254,133 13.15%
[Note 2)
WEEEXEA (FI5E3)
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry Beneficial owner 500,000 0.02%
SRIES A ExBEAA
Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP Beneficial owner 500,000 0.02%
FREE(KFaT) ExBEAA
Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.02%
BRIE R E ExEBA




REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continved)
EEERE @)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)
Aggregate long position in the Ordinary Shares: (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. WANG Weixian was deemed to be interested in 32,958,571 Ordinary
Shares which were held by Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited. The enfire issued

share capital of Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited was beneficially owned by
Mr. WANG Weixian.

2. Each of Mr. WANG Weixian and Ms. WANG Xuling was deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 367,254,133 Ordinary Shares, which were
held by The Duanyuan Trust.

3. Ms. WANG Xuling was deemed to be interested in 7,010,448 Ordinary
Shares, which were held by Boom Rich Invesiments Limited which was in tum
entirely beneficially owned by Ms. WANG Xuling.

4. Representing the issued and fully paid-up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2017 comprising 2,793,676,683 Ordinary Shares.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arangements to enable the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, and no Directors or chief executives
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted any right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company

nor exercised any such right.
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EEERE@)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, there were no persons (other than Direcfors
and chief executive of the Company) having any interests or short positions
in the Ordinary Shares and underlying shares of the Company, other than
those recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

FEIRE

RZE—tF+ZRA=+—H BT XPrEReEn
BIRFE S R AERAIEI30KAFENE D MERE
SIRRIN > BEAL(RRBESRITHRAZR

SFO as set out below:

SRR BB SRR P AR TOAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest Ordinary Shares capital (Note 6)
REATEHET
AR E
BEatt
BREEH Sy RigianE TiERYE (BizE6)
Gluon Xima International Limited Beneficial owner 1,650,244,409 59.07%
[Nofe 1)
REAFEEERAF BREBA (FE1)
Hong Kong Vee Eight limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,650,244,409 59.07%
[Nofe 1)
BRBEBRAT R AR (P&ET)
Creenland Group Inferest of controlled corporation 1,650,244,409 59.07%
[Nofe 1)
nEE g VNGl (P&ET)
Greenland Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 1,650,244,409 59.07%
[Notfe 1)
RRIFERR ST UNIE o (P&ET)
Reach Top Holding Limited Inferest of controlled corporation 367,254,133 13.15%
[Note 4)
g VNGl (MI5E4)
SPG Investment Holdings Lid. Beneficial owner 256,741,641 9.19%
[Note 2)
BRBEBA (M5E2)
SPG Asset Management Lid. Inferest of controlled corporation 256,741,641 9.19%
[Nofe 2)
g VNGl (M7E2)
Brilliant Bright Investment Limited Beneficial owner 110,512,492 3.96%
(Note 3(al)
BRBEBA (P53l
Inferest of controlled corporation 256,741,641 9.19%
Nofe 2)
g VNGl (M7£2)




REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEERE @)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

ZE—tFEFW

FERR(ER)

BHWEBZRERALTF

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company’s

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest Ordinary Shares capital (Note 6)
REATEET
BARFRE
BHEatt
BR & B RiERME LERHE (BtaEe6)
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee 367,254,133 13.15%
(Note 4]
XA (frsE4)
Ace Omate limited Person having a security inferest in shares 248,741,641 8.9%
[Notes 2(b) and 5)
FEARAR HARGREEROA (BIEE2(b) 25)
Diamond Path Infernational Interest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
Investments Limited [Notes 2(b) and 5)
SRR (FiE2(b) R25)
Diamond Path Investments Limited Inferest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
[Notes 2(b) and 5)
REH DB (BIEE2(b) 25)
Huarong Investment Stock Interest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
Corporation limited [Notes 2(b) and 5)
ERRERNBRAT SR A RS (FE2(b)R25)
Right Select Infernational Limited Inferest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
[Notes 2(b) and 5)
EREE AR AT REH DA (BIEE2(b) 25)
China Huarong International Holdings Lid Interest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
[Notes 2(b) and 5)
B E R BRI AR A 7 RIS (FE2(b) R25)
Huarong Real Estate Co., lid. Inferest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
(EREXBREMTLT] [Notes 2(b) and 5)
EHEFERATAT REH DA (BIEE2(b) 25)
Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Interest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
Management Co., Lid. [Notes 2(b) and 5)
ERBEREEEERAMRH SRR (FE2(b)R25)
China Huarong Asset Management Co., lid.  Inferest of controlled corporation 248,741,641 8.9%
[Notes 2(b) and 5)
HREEREEERROHARLH REH DB (BIEE2(b) 25)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

1.

1,650,244,409 Ordinary Shares were held by Gluon Xima International

Limited ("Gluon Xima’) which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong

Kong Vee Eight Limited. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Vee

Eight Limited was held by Greenland Group. The entire issued share capital of

Greenland Group was held by Greenland Holdings. Each of Hong Kong Vee

Eight Limited, Greenland Group and Greenland Holdings was deemed to be
interested in 1,650,244,409 Ordinary Shares under the SFO.

[a)

(b)

[a)

(b

256,741,641 Ordinary Shares were beneficially held by SPG
Investment Holdings Lid. ("SPG Investment’) which was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SPG Asset Management Limited ("SPG Asset’).
The entire issued share capital of SPG Asset was held by Brilliant Bright
Investment Limited ("Brilliant Bright'). The entire issued share capital
of Brilliant Bright was held by Reach Top Holding Limited ("Reach
Top'). Each of SPG Asset, Brilliant Bright and Reach Top was deemed
to be interested in 256,741,641 Ordinary Shares under the SFO. Mr.
WANG Weixian was a direcfor of each SPG Investment and SPG
Asset.

Out of the 256,741,641 Ordinary Shares, 248,741,641 Ordinary
Shares were pledged to Ace Ormnate Limited ("Ace Ornate’) on 19
September 2017.

110,512,492 Ordinary Shares were beneficially held by Brilliant
Bright which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reach Top. Reach Top
was deemed to be interested in 110,512,492 Ordinary Shares under
the SFO.

On 18 September 2017, all the 110,512,492 Ordinary Shares were
pledged to an independent third party.

FERR(ER)

PEE

B ,650,244,409 B8 % 58 AR TS i 148 e 75 35 B R
BRAFR([BERTE NS - BREFBR/EER
BERARZE2EFRA - BEREARARZ
PRIAECBITRA ML EERA - S REZ AT
BERTRARKERSE - REEFRHE

16431 -

EBBERRAT - A EE R

FBEHIERAB 1,050,244, 4000 E AR < #4s o

(a)

(b)

(a)

(o)

7 B 256,741,641 Bk & B R Ty BB SPG
Invesiment Holdings Lid.([SPG Investment|)
EmiFH ' SPG Investment & SPG Asset
Management Limited([SPG Asset])~ &
BT RF o SPG AssetZ FTEEBITIRANEH
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Bright |)#54 © Brilliant Brightz Fi A 2 817
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Asset ~ Brilliant Bright&Reach Top% B #i48
AEE256,741 641 REBR 2 HEZ - £
BB 54 TISPG Investment ZSPG Assets B
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Confinved)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

FERR(ER)

BeE : ()

The entire issued share capital of Reach Top was held by HSBC International
Trustee Limited which was the frustee of: (a) a trust, namely Duanyuan Trust,
of which Mr. Wang Weixian was the founder and his the family members
(including Ms. WANG Xuling) were discretionary objects in respect of
367,254,133 Ordinary Shares.

Out of the 367,254,133 Ordinary Shares, (i) 110,512,492 Ordinary
Shares were pledged to an independent third party on 18 September 2017,
and (i) 248,741,641 Ordinary Shares were pledged to Ace Ornate on 19
September 2017, respectively.

Out of the 367,254,133 Ordinary Shares held by HSBC International Trusfee
Limited, 248,741,641 Ordinary Shares were pledged to Ace Omate on 19
September 2017. Ace Ornate was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Diamond
Path International Investments Limited (“DPI"), which in turn is o wholly-owned
subsidiary of Diamond Path Investments Limited (“DPI"). DPI is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited (“HISC"), which
was held as to 50.99% by Right Select International Limited ("RSI"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Huarong Infernational Holdings Limited ("CHIH").
Meanwhile, CHIH was held as to 88.1% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Lid.
(EmEEZARSEAAA) ('HRE') and as to 11.9% by Huarong Zhiyuan
Investment & Management Co., ltd. ("HZIM"). Each of HRE and HZIM was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong Asset Management Co., Lid.
("CHAM').

Accordingly, each of DPIl, DPI, HISC, RSI, CHIH, HRE, HZIM and CHAM
was deemed to be inferested in the 248,741,641 Ordinary Shares under the
SFO.

Representing the issued and fully paid-up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2017 in 2,793,676,683 Ordinary Shares.

Reach TopZ T B #ATIAHHSBC International
Trustee Limited$$8 + MHSBC International Trustee
Limited : (apmREE(ER EEELERKEIA
MERGEKE(BREEMEL L) SRBEETER)
#9367,254,1 33ME MAAIFFE 2 RFEA ©

367,254,133 EBARER - (i) 110,512,492
TERER—E—+tFNAT/\BERT %28
SNEZT  R(ii) 248,741,641 BREBRER -Z
—tFNA+hBERFLE -

1E HSBC International Trustee limited ¥ & &9
367,254 133 E B E T - 248,741,641 fx &
BRERZZE—tFNRTIAERTERE - %
i J5Diamond Path International Investments Limited
(IDPI]) z2&F A7 DPIIJyDiamond Path
Investments Limited([DP1]) 2 2&FAF] ° DPIJTY
ERIRERGERAT(THISC]) - HISCHER
BB B RN R (TRSI)HFHHES0.99% » RSITyH E %
R IER AR AR ([CHIH]) 2 2&F AR °
A - CHHBEEREXAREE LT ([HRE])
FAESB IV RERBEREEEEREERT
(THZIM ) E11.9% » HRERHZIME B A B
MEEEERNERLAT(CHAMD) Z2&F 2
e

E Ut - DPII ~ DPI ~ HISC ~ RSI » CHIH » HRE
HZIM B CHAMIR % 78 75 I 53 & 16 B 448 78 70
248,741,641 [ & BT B S o

BARBR -ZE—tF+-A=+—HHEET
R RIRA - B3E2,793,676,6830% EBAR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered info the

following transactions and arrangements with persons who constituted
"connected persons’ which were required fo be disclosed for the

purposes of the Listing Rules:

On @ May 2017, BO&MENBEEABR A A (Hoikou Hongxiang
Property Co., lid.] ("Greenland Haikou"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, enfered info a confracfor agreement with _E/S4kHb 2L
TRAMR AR (Shanghai Greenland Construction Engineering Co., Lid.)
(the "Contractor A’), a 100%owned subsidiary of Greenland Holdings
and a connected person of the Company, to appoint Contractor A as
the contractor of the urban renewal project [phase one) to be constructed
on land parcel no.A-10 situated in Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan
Province of the PRC (R E/ERE/EAMERR) for an estimated total
contract sum of RMB365,480,400.

On 9 May 2017, /804 AR E EBR AR (Haikou Wuyuan Property
Co., ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
contractor agreement with Contractor A to appoint Contractor A as the
contractor of the cultural and sport center reconstruction project (phase one)
fo be constructed on land parcel no.CO8 situated in Xiuying District, Haikou
City, Hainan Province of the PRC (R BEIERIE /B O M K an eslimated
fotal contract sum of approximately RMB347,577,713.

On 9 May 2017, &IN&EBE HEBR AR (Greenland Lvying Property Co.,
lid.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered info a contfractor
agreement with JT#EAERETIEEE AR AR (Jiangsu Construction
Engineering Co., lid.) ["Contractor B"), a 55%owned subsidiary of
Greenland Holdings and a connected person of the Company, to appoint
Contractor B as the contfractor of the real estate development project to
be constructed in Wujiang District, Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province of the
PRC (B TERG ERMTIRITIR) for an estimated total contract sum of
RMB363,030,462.

FEX S
RBE-Z—tH+-A=t—AILFE  ~%H
SL58 75 AR & AT BRREAE 49 A AT T
ATHBHZSREH

RZZE—tFHANA  ARFZ2ETFRREA
B ABEXAR AR (@O )8 FiFk
BRETRERAF(RRBE | - RARMIZERE
B100% MmN F AR RARREEAL)FIL
AEBEWHE  NEEFABEARLNTEEEE
BOMEBHRAIOME EEFRNOTREZEER
(F—HNABHE  HBa0NSBERARK
365,480,4007T °

R-ZZ—+FHANE  ARFIZEFRARED
i TREZEBR A A EF AR BT AR
FUNEEFABHR/UNTREEREEOTH
H@CO8MM LR REET LERIAR
(B—H)NABRE A EANSBRORARE
347,577,7137¢C »

RZZE—tFRANR » FRRZEFRREME
AEEARARETIHEZETESEBRAR
([Z%BE | BEIIERAEGSSWERTNF AR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
On 12 May 2017, &5k it & B ¥ AFM AR (Wuxi Guangcheng
Metro Above-Station Property Development Co., Ltd.) ["Wuxi
Guangcheng'), a 90%owned subsidiary of the Company, entered info
a confractor agreement with Confractor B to appoint Contractor B as the
confractor of the property development project to be consfructed in Binhu
District, VWWuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (FREIT #r& 85 E H&)
for an estimated total contract sum of RMB165,163,759.

On 9 May 2017, #iEHE (ERARE) EHEREAR AT (Greenland
(Kunming Wuhua) Development Co., lid.], a 55%owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered info a contractor agreement with /G847t L
(&) AR A7 (Shanghai Greenland Construction (Group) Co., Ltd.)
(the “Contractor C'), a 49%owned subsidiary of Greenland Holdings
and a connected person of the Company, to appoint Contractor C as the
contractor of the steel and glass roof construction project to be constructed
on the Roof of Block A1 Commercial Building of Yunduhui (E#F€) situated
in Xishan District, Kunming City, Yunnan Province of the PRC (R BIZZFg
L EBAMPAILIE) for an estimated fotal contract sum of approximately
RMB3,489,408.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a main contractor
agreement with the Contractor A, to appoint the Contractor A as the main
contractor of the urban renewal and property development project of West
Area (78 [&) o be constructed on the land parcel no. A-O1 (Bid-section 1-1)
situated at Cier Road on the east, Cijiu Road on the south, Ciyi Road on
the west, Haiyu Avenue on the north, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan
Province of the PRC (FEISEAESOMEMEREZXN I - 2NN
P& RN —BS - SEEEBRIABAO SRR (1-11268)) for an estimated
total contract sum of RMB143,124,690.18.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

FRER 5 (4E)

HoE—+FFA+—B ESHERE FEs
EBRAR([HEBER | - A DQ BB O
FARE)EFRBEE AR AR - WEEL &
BEANKRBRI&HEEHTENRERNEH
ERZEEENASE G860 EAARK
165,163,7597T °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 3 November 2017, Wuxi Guangcheng entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor B, to appoint the Contractor B as the main
contractor of the property development project to be constructed in the
Southern District of the Xuelangping Railway Station (Z R 8 uk) situated
af the northern side of the intersection of Pinghu Road and Shangde Road,
Binhu District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (FRBIIT &5 #85 &
AR AR B =8 22 X O 4E ) for an estimated total contract sum of
RMB125,450,969.

On 7 November 2017, FE4 B R E ¥ AR 2 7 (Nanning Greenland
Yingcheng Property Co., lid.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
enfered info a confractor agreement with the Contractor B, to appoint the
Contractor B as the main contractor of the property development project for
the Greenland Xinli Puyue Mansion (4%1th#7 2 e BEL A £R) situated af the
interchange between Sanjin Avenue and Zhixing Road, Jiangnan District,
Nanning City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC (F B & ot
TEERREET LR = REEE B ZER) for an estimated fotal
contract sum of RMB273,752,175.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A, to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the fine decoration works to be undertaken on three levels
of the commercial building no.11 of the Haikou lingshan Greenland City
(8O LARIDI) situated on the land parcel no.C-01 (27), East Area,
Lingshan Town, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province of the PRC (R
EgmAEOmERRE LERFE CO1(27)55 ) for an estimated
total contract sum of RMB5,176,523.09.

FAEX 5 (&)
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STAERY - BT AR AR EIIHE
S TR T BS SR B 2 X DAL R SR 47
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A, to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the fine decoration project (Bid-section 1) to be undertaken in
the Haikou Lingshan Greenland City (/& O Z& 1L &7 i35 situated on the land
parcel no.A-13 (21), East Area, Llingshan Town, Meilan District, Haikou
City, Hainan Province of the PRC (R BRI A/ OMEREE LHERF &
A-13(21)85 b 338) for an estimated total contract sum of RMB19,936,452.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A, to appoint the Contractor A as the
confractor of the fine decoration project (Bid-section 2) to be undertaken in
the Haikou Lingshan Greenland City (8 A 1L &7 th35k) situated on the land
parcel no.A-13 (21), East Area, Llingshan Town, Meilan District, Haikou
City, Hainan Province of the PRC (Bl 4 /8 A EM R E LUHERA 2
A-13(21) f3th38) for an estimated fotal contract sum of RMB23,121,219.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered info the contractor
agreement with the Contractor A, to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the external wall painting project in respect of building nos. 1
to 14 situated on the land parcel no.A-13, East Area, lingshan Town,
Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province of the PRC (FE/&F& /&0
MEBREILER S RA 135 ME) for an estimated total contract sum of
RMB6,816,677.04.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the earth and stone works construction projects in respect of
the urban renewal and property development project of West Area (785
[%) to be constructed on the land parcel no.AO1 (Bid-section 1-1) situated
at the West Area, lingshan Town, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan
Province of the PRC (FREBEA/E I mEREE LEMA RAO SRR
(1-14ZE%)) for an estimated total contract sum of RMB4,258,033.39.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the foundation excavation retaining and protfecting project
to be undertaken on the land parcel no.AO1 (Bidsection 1-1) situated at
West Area, lingshan Town, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province
of the PRC (RGO MEMEE LEFAEAO] ST (1-112E8R)
for an estimated total contract sum of RMB8,433,824.30.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A, to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the pile foundation construction project in respect of building
nos.1,2,3,7,8,12,13, 13-1 and basements located at the land parcel
no.AO1 (Bidsection 1-1) situated at West Area, Lingshan Town, Meilan
District, Haikou City, Hainan Province of the PRC (FBI/8 R4 /8 A Th 3R
&% AT EAO SRR (1-142E])) for an estimated fotal contract sum
of RMB10,704,796.83.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Confractor A to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the pile foundation festing project in respect of building nos. 1,
2,3,7,8,12, 13, 13-1 and basements located at the land parcel no.A-
01 (Bidsection 1-1) situated at West Area, Lingshan Town, Meilan District,
Haikou City, Hainan Province of the PRC (BRI &8 I EH IR E
LA A RAO1 SRR (1-14ZE]) for an estimated total contract sum of
RMB214,502.49.

On 3 November 2017, Greenland Haikou entered into a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A to appoint the Contractor A as the
confractor of the external wall painting project in respect of building nos.4,
5, 6 and 18 situated on the land parcel no. AOT, West Area, Lingshan
Town, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan Province of the PRC (1 BY)&
HEAOTMERMEEILERSRAO SRR for an estimated total contract
sum of RMB3,844,677.

On 3 November 2017, BrRFAEEFREBR A7 (Hainan Tianhong
Jiye Investment Co., ltd.) ("Hainan Tianhong’), a 50.1%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a confractor agreement with the
Contractor A to appoint the Contractor A as the contractor of the decoration
projects to be undertaken at Phase 4, Haichangliu, Changbin 4th Road,
Binhai Avenue, Haikou City, Hainan Province of the PRC (FBU/SRI4 &
OmEEAERBMNEER RN for an estimated total contract sum of
RMBT,398,863.04.
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FAEX 5 (&)

RoB—tE+—A=R  BOQBETF RN
SARBEHE - AEETAARANRFEEEY
BOTEREELRES BAO (11 12R)
BB 237812 13RIZFIFEFUR
EEENR TIRORERE - EHRANSER
AR#214,502.497T °

RZT—+tF+—H=H ' BO4EMER R
SABENE  AREFAEBAMLRPESEE
BOmERBRELFEANBEAOCIRHR(1-1ZRER)
E%4 -5 6RIBHEBFHIME MR TIENAR
B EETHRA SRR ARKS,844,6777T

WoT—+F+— A=A - FAREHE0. %%
T A RSERAE LR A ARA R (HERA])
RPRBETARE HE - BT REEARN
R EERAS O RS A S SRS &R
ETHEHTROEBE @ S BANSEAAR
#1,398,863.047T °

123



124

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Confinved)
EEERE@)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 3 November 2017, Hainan Tianhong entered info a contractor
agreement with the Contractor A to appoint the Contractor A as the
contractor of the external wall painting projects of building nos. 1, 2, 8, 9,
10 and $-1 to be undertaken at Changbin 4th Road, Haikou City, Hainan
Province of the PRC (Bid-section 2) (FEIEEEEOMRBNE (—1Z6K)
for an estimated total contract sum of RMB3,148,872.55.

Details of the above agreements were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 9 May 2017 and 20 October 2017 as well as the
circulars of the Company dated 14 June 2017 and 1 December 2017.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had entered into the following
continuing connected fransactions with persons who constituted “connected
persons” which had not expired and were required fo be disclosed for the

purposes of the Listing Rules:

On 24 April 2015, the Company entered info a cooperation framework
agreement ("2015 Framework Agreement’) with gl EFR/E
EMBEBR A El(Senmao Landscape Engineering Co., lid) ("Senmao’), a
60%owned subsidiary of Greenland Holdings and a connected person of
the Company, to engage Senmao to undertake the landscape consfruction
and greening works fo be provided pursuant to the 2015 Framework
Agreement (2015 Landscape Greening Works"| in respect of the
real estate development projects of the Group in the PRC for which Senmao

may be engaged to carmy out the 2015 landscape Greening Works.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The annual contracted amount payable for the 2015 Landscape Greening
Works to be provided by Senmao for the three years ending 31 December

2017 shall not exceed the amounts set out below:

For the year ending 31 December 2015: RMB124.60 million;

For the year ending 31 December 2016: RMB109.02 million; and

For the year ending 31 December 2017: RMB16.07 million.

Details of the above 2015 Framework Agreement was sef out in the

announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2015.

On 21 April 2016, the Company entered info a cooperation framework
agreement ("2016 Framework Agreement’| with Senmao fo engage
Senmao to undertake the landscape construction and greening works
(2016 Landscape Greening Works') to be provided pursuant fo
the 2016 Framework Agreement in respect of the real estate development

projects of the Group in the PRC.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The annual contracted amount payable for the 2016 Landscape Greening
Works fo be provided by Senmao for the three years ending 31 December

2018 shall not exceed the amounts set out below:

For the year ending 31 December 2016: RMBQ0.07 million;

For the year ending 31 December 2017: RMB45.75 million; and

For the year ending 31 December 2018: RMB9.24 million.

Details of the above 2016 Framework Agreement was set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 21 April 2016.

On 9 May 2017, the Company entered info a cooperation framework
agreement ("2017 Framework Agreement’) with Senmao fo engage
Senmao to undertake the landscape construction and greening works
(2017 Landscape Greening Works’) to be provided pursuant to
the 2017 Framework Agreement in respect of the real estate development

projects of the Group in the PRC.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The annual contracted amount payable for the 2017 Landscape Greening
Works to be provided by Senmao for the three years ending 31 December

2019 shall not exceed the amounts set out below:

For the year ending 31 December 2017: Approximately RMB110.53

million:

For the year ending 31 December 2018: Approximately RMB41.22

million; and

For the year ending 31 December 2019: Approximately RMB13.12

million.

Details of the above 2017 Framework Agreement was sef out in the

announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2017.

On 29 June 2017, HUNHIIEZEAR AT (Hangzhou Tuojiang Zhiye
Co., lid.) ("Hangzhou Tuojiang’), an indirectly wholly-owned
company of JEEHBRZAF] (Xu Bao Co. lid.) ("JV Company’), enfered
into a credit facility agreement with SPG Investment XVII [BVI) Limited
("Borrower A’ (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which holds
50% of the entire issued share capital of the ]V Company) and JEE BR
AE] (Xu Fu Co. limited) ("Borrower B’) (which holds 50% of the entire
issued share capital of the )V Company and is a connected person of the
Company), pursuant fo which Hangzhou Tuojiang has agreed to provide
an unsecured revolving credit facilities (the "Credit Facilities”) in the sum
of RMB 125,000,000 fo each of Borrower A and Borrower B respectively
for a term (the "Term”) of 36 months from the date of the facility
agreement. The cap for the Credit Facilities to be granted to Borrower
B by Hangzhou Tuojiang under the facility agreement during the Term is
RMB125,000,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Details of the above credit facility agreement was set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 29 June 2017.

The Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such transactions
carried out for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been entered
into {a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b] on
normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Auditor has performed procedures on the above continuing connected
fransactions and issued a lefter to the Board to confirm that nothing has
come fo ifs attention that causes it to believe that the above continuing

connected transactions:
i) have not been approved by the Board:;

i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the

relevant agreements governing such fransactions; and
i) have exceeded their respective caps.

Save as disclosed above, related-party transactions disclosed in the
Company's financial statements either did not constitute connected
fransactions/continuing connected fransactions or constituted connected
fransactions/continuing connected fransactions but were exempted from
all disclosure and independent shareholders” approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any subsfantial part of the business of the Company was entered info or

existed during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the
remunerafion commitiee which fakes info account individual performance,

qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company (including the
independent non-executive Directors| are recommended by the remuneration
committee, having regard to their duties and responsibilities, experience,
qualification and prevailing market conditions. Please see note 14 to the

financial statements for details of the Directors’ emoluments.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no expense in
relation to share-based payments recognised in the Company’s financial
statements, and no arrangement under which a Director or the chief

executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of ifs subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the Cayman Islands [being the jurisdiction in

which the Company is incorporated).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, save as disclosed in the
"Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this annual report, there
were no change in the Directors information subsequent to the publication of

the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2017.

CHANGE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Following the resignation of Mr. Reynold Hung became effective on 23 June
2017, Mr. lee Sheung Yee was appointed in place of Mr. Reynold Hung
fo act jointly with Ms. Chan Wai Mei as the authorized representatives of
the Company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of

the Laws of Hong Kong) with effect from the same day.

Following the resignation of Mr. You Defeng, Mr. Chen Jun was appointed
in place of Mr. You to act jointly with Mr. Hou Guangjun as the authorized
representatives of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 12 September 2017. Meanwhile, Ms. Cindy Liu, the Assistant
Controller of Group Capital Market Department of the Company, was
appointed by Mr. Chen Jun as his alferate with effect from 12 September
2017.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as af the latest practicable date prior
fo issue of this annual report, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained throughout the year of 2017 the amount of public float as

required under the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Directors were not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding

the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(1) On 26 January 2018, the Group distributed the dividend of
Perpetual Securities issued on 27 July 2016. The amount is
USD3,375,000 (approximately RMB21,572,000).

(2)  On 23 January 2018, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with R IEIHRE KB AR AT (Guangdong Zhengyu
Investment Group Co., ltd.) to purchase /0% equity interest in
Zhaoging Hengchang for a fotal fransaction amount of approximately
RMB1,855 million. Upon completion, Zhaoging Hengchang will
become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.
For further information, please refer to the announcement for the
Company dated 23 January 2018.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
Deloitte. There have been no changes of auditor of the Company in the

preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN Jun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR A (RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREENLAND HONG KONG
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greenland
Hong Kong Holdings Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group’) sef out on pages 140 to 281,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, mdudmg a summary of sigmficonf

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ["HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.
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Key audit matters

[GE S A

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

#fEH I R R BT IR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMLE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due fo the key management judgment is required
in determining the fair value and also the significance of

investment properties fo the financial statements as a whole.

Management has estimated the fair value of investment
properties to be at approximately RMB?,082 million at 31
December 2017, with a revaluation gain of approximately
RMB329 million recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

HAER THREMEGERERENETH  REARETAA
BERIRIZEEABNHE - URKEYEHREBUS
BERNEZIE -

RZE—+F+A=+—H0 BEEEHAREDENL
REER/HARKS,082,000,0007T  EfMHHIR/ARE
329,000,0007T « B RBE—_E—tF+-A=+—H
LHEENFABaREt2EMNERA -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties among others:

o Understanding the management's process for reviewing

the work of the Valuers;

o Evaluating the design and implementation of controls in
respect of the management's process for reviewing the

work of the Valuers:

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuers’ scope and
assessed whether the Valuers had sufficient expertise and

resource,

e Obtaining the valuation report issued by the Valuers for
all investment properties and interviewed the Valuers
fo evaluate valuation approach appropriate for use in

determining the fair value of investment properties;
BB EMELEETOREFOT |
o THEBEFVMMENTIENBIR

o TABEEBERMEMIIENBIRMAEEZ RiTR

B

o FHEGHEMTFEHENSEEN R EREMEL R
WEREAB R ER

o  HUSHERMAAEREMELANGBERS - WHERE
EEETTEE A HEEREVMEQIABEIEE
BEAMMETDE
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Key audit matters

PSS EIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAE IR EAR S EE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEMLEGER)

The Group has hired independent external valuers, Debenham
Tie leung limited ["DTZ") (the "Valuers’), in assisting the
management’s estimation of the fair value of investment

properties.

As disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, fair value of investment properties under
development are determined using direct comparison
approach and fair value of completed investment properties
are defermined using income capitalisation approach. The
revaluations are dependent on certain key input that require
significant management judgement, including capitalisation

rates, average unit market rent and average market unit price.

HIERA M HRERME22MEE - HETRREVENLA
EBEDRAEXLBAEE - MEEZRREMENAAEE
TIRAWREERNOEERE o METIBURRE TR EIEEE
HEBRHENEBERARE - BREEXMELLE - FHEMH
Se MY ELHHER

. Discussing with the valuers on the key assumptions and
evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions
included within the valuations, the namely reversionary
yield, including market unit rent rate, market unit price
and the rationale behind all significant movement during

the year on a property by property basis;

e Comparing the valuations on samples of properties to

our independently formed expectations; and

*  Assessing the reasonableness of estimated costs fo
completion of investment properties under development
by comparing, on a sample basis, the previous
budgeted costs to actual development costs incurred,
and checking to supporting documentation such as

quantity surveyors reports and signed confracts.

o HEEMISWIZR®K FEHEESNEEERRI
BEE  ERKEE  BREMTSEES  BUm
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o BB EES AR ARER A EEREL R

RAEITLLE - TR A RERIE » UREE
A MRRER (I TRORIERERDRZEL)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BB RS (/)

Key audit matters

[GE S A

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

#fEH I R R BT IR

Land appreciation tax provision

TR ER A

We identified the Lland Appreciation Tax ('LAT") provision as a
key audit matter due fo the significant management judgement
exercised by the Group in respect its provision in accordance
with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") tax laws and

regulations.

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The calculation of
LAT are highly dependent on the appropriateness of the rafes
used, which are defermined by the appreciation of land value.
The appreciation of land value is determined with reference
fo proceeds of the properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, including the cost of land use rights and all
property development expenditures. The Group estimated the
deductible expenditures according to the understanding of the
relevant PRC tfax laws and regulations. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and these differences will impact the income tax expense and
the related income tax provisions in the periods in which such

tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

As at 31 December 2017, the LAT payable amounted to
approximately RMB739 million and the LAT recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss and other comprehensive income
statement amounted fo approximately RMB629 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

HAIRER LR R ([ L3I (ER ) B AR = FA
RERZ BESRERENEARKME(PEDBEBERE
BIELEE - B PREEEEHNERFE -

IR A M MARM AP IE - EEEABMTE LT
BEN - tHIRERNAETORFAALEIEAE - M
PR R TZ T EERIENETE - TIEENEMNT2E
VEFEFRRMGFT A RS ETE - BRI EREN
RARFIEMERERX - EREREPEABREERE
BRI AR » R AR AT LR F L ek H A P T
- MERKTEETTRRERIEEPAMRETR &
TRBAPTIS TR -

RIE—tF+A=1T—08 ENIHEEHRORSARYE
739,000,0007T * MEAZE —FT—+F+-HA=+—HILF
EiRaBEmMEAME2EMNBRAERN THIRERORAR
#629,000,0007¢ °

Our procedures in relation fo the provision for LAT included,

among others:

o Understanding the design and implementation of controls
in respect of the principal assumptions and judgements

made in arriving af the provision for LAT;

o Engaging tax specialist fo evaluate LAT provision and

potential exposures as at 31 December 2017;

e Assessing the Group’s assumptions and judgements
through our knowledge of the tax circumstances and tax
regulation in the PRC and by examining fax filing records

and review of correspondence with the fax authorifies;

o Checking the relevant financial information, such
as proceeds from sales of properties, land costs,
borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures, used in the calculation of provision for LAT

fo the Group's historical financial data; and

e Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of the

disclosures in respect fo the provision for LAT.
HPIER LR ERBEBNEF (AT EHE)

o HEAELMIBRENRBEMAIEERREAEE - T
FRECIREIER RET A E G -

o ZERENBERNME _T—tFT_A=t—HHL1H
IRER R REERR

o EBRMEPBENBBIMN RRBEERNRE - A
REZERENBER 2 BN BRTLHEREH - &
E BB LA

o REMANELMIBEHRRENHEBYEER - WmiF
EMEMEA - LKA - BERARBBYER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
fo be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility fowards or accept liability to any other person for the
confents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, infenfional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's infernal control.

(c)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT
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(d)

(e]

(f)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the direcfors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
fo continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exists, we are required fo draw attention in our audifor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease fo confinue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. VWe
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. VWe remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

(d)

(e)

(f
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. VWe describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumsfances, we defermine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Wong Tin Chak, Samuel.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmRAMEEANER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—FE—+FF+A=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—T—tEF —E—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BfsE AREFx ARETTT
Revenue Wi 5 14,618,872 16,919,188
Cost of sales $HE R AN (11,027,571) (14,091,196)
Gross profit EF 3,591,301 2,827,992
Other income, gains and losses Hig A - s L EE 7 298,601 197,969
Selling and marketing costs $EE N TISHEER AN (587,187) (415,567)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (437,517) 499,687)
Other operating expenses HEmgEms 8 (13,403) (839,181)
Writedown of completed properties B AT S W 2 UK
held for sale (7,746) (4,892)
Net gain on disposal of interesfs HEFRREREZ W FHR
in subsidiaries 72,063 228
Results from operating activities REEEFHEE 2,916,112 1,266,862
Finance income REE A Q 95,619 70,574
Finance costs B R 10 (224,191) (135,088)
Net finance costs BB AFE (128,572) (64,514)
Share of (losses) profits of associates FEREE S A E (B8 ) & A (999) 370
Share of profits of joint ventures TE(HEEBEST 139,496 195,015
Revaluation gain on investment properties wEYEEHINE 22 329,268 687,638
Profit before income tax BRPr S R Fl 3,255,305 2,085,371
Income tax expenses FriSfiFA X 11 (1,419,687) (1,024,852)
Profit for the year from continuing KB FHES S T FEN
operations S A 1,835,618 1,060,519
Discontinued operations BRI EEETR
Profit for the year from discontinued RELIEREEBNFA
operations vl - 180,063
Profit and total comprehensive EEHRRR2EKEEE
income for the year 1,835,618 1,240,582
Attributable to: AT ALRELS -
Owners of the Company ViIN/NETE F SN 1,319,308 1,112,543
Non-confrolling interesfs e 516,310 128,039




ZE—LEFR

BWEBZRERAA

CONSOLUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Confinued)

FEBRBEREMEERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+F+_A=+—HIFEF

2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
faE ARETR ARETT
Earnings per share: BREH :
From continuing and discontinued REFE RSB
operations
Ordinary share (basic and diluted) TR (ERREE) 17 0.46 0.39
From continuing operations REFFBEEET
Ordinary share (basic and diluted) LB (EANES) 17 0.46 0.33
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

As at 31 December 2017
R-F—tF1+-A=1—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 ARETRT ARBFT
ASSETS &E
Non-Current Assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E =Y 18 1,228,459 1,282,241
Infangible assets WA E 19 1,296 1,341
Land use rights b {5 P AEE 20 24,042 24,608
Other financial assets HimsmEE 21 174,567 174,567
Investment properties LEME 22 9,082,000 8,216,000
Properties under development KR 23 14,976,268 15,082,454
Interests in associates Bt ARl 25 6,084 -
Interests in joint ventures SEDERERS 26 686,413 541,203
Deferred tax assets FEIETR I E E 31{iv) 817,628 210,427
Total non-current assets e S ELEE 26,996,757 25,532,841
Current Assets mENEE
Properties under development BEPYE 23 8,945,329 3,928,278
Completed properties held for sale BT EME 24 11,669,969 9,707,441
Trade, other receivables and FEURBR RN ~ E b e I8 &
advance deposifs SR 27 12,568,170 7,809,166
Tax recoverable Al IR IE 28 712,849 466,079
Other financial assets HEfb o phEE 21 - 866,059
Restricted bank deposits SIRHIRITER 29 2,401,495 1,436,984
Bank balance and cash RITHEBRNIIRE 30 5,455,227 4,358,259
Total current assets e LA 41,753,039 28,572,266
Total assets BEEE 68,749,796 54,105,107
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExREE
Capital And Reserves BERRGEE
Share capital f& 7 37 1,132,855 1,132,855
Share premium R&1D R (B 38 3,416,546 3,416,546
Reserves i 38 961,894 851,214
Perpetual securities KAESH 39 787,823 787,823
Retained earnings 1R F 3,560,011 2,641,360
Total equity affributable to owners ViN/NEIEZ SN
of the Company JE(E 45 9,859,129 8,829,798
Non-controlling inferests eI o 1,725,761 893,896
Total equity HERUREE 11,584,890 9,723,694




SE-LEFE BMESERARLD
CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  (Continved)
AEBBEAM R (E)
As at 31 December 2017
RoF—t#+=A=+—A
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE AREFx ARBT T
LIABILITIES =1
Non-Current Liabilities FEREEE
Inferestbearing loans HEEXR 32 9,081,312 5,770,601
Bonds (e 34 2,919,171 4,581,996
Deferred tax liabilities RIERRIBBE 31(iv) 957,999 899 639
Total non-current liabilities EREhEEEEE 12,958,482 11,252,236
Current Liabilities REaE
Inferestbearing loans EEW 32 1,480,500 3,713,620
Other financial liabilities Hmmesmas 21 98,178 329,543
Trade and other payables JEA BRFUR HoAth & (5 RRIR 33 16,948,717 14,277,517
Pre-sale deposits EEES 19,782,530 10,120,297
Tax payable FEFLIR 31 1,787,012 1,231,422
Bonds within one year —FRNEHBES 34 4,109,487 3,456,778
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 44,206,424 33,129,177
Total liabilities Bf548E 57,164,906 44,381,413
Total equity and liabilities ExREEEE 68,749,796 54,105,107
Net current liabilities REBEFE (2,453,385) (4,556,911]
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSER 24,543,372 20,975,930

The consolidated financial statements on page 140 to 281 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018 and

are signed on ifs behalf by:

Chen Jun
PRE

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer

EER T ERITHAR

F1402281 AMGEMBHRN_FT—/\F=H

T NAEREFEHAERBETE - WHATHE

RE

Hou Guangjun

ZAE

Chief Operation Officer

BEEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN == %
GEEERE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—FE—+FF+A=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—T—tF —ERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES MR
Profit for the year FRE A 1,835,618 1,240,582
Adjustments for: SARIER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE K& EITE 97,514 89,546
Amortisation of infangible assets B A EEH 45 45
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR AR 8 566 788
Change in fair value of investment properties WEMERAREEE (329,268) (687,638)
Losses (gains) from financial assets/liabilities RAREETERNEZ ([ERAREES
carried at fair value through profit or loss BRRES DWEREE BENEE
('"FVTPL') (Hzs) 335,812 (174,834)
Foreign exchange (gain) loss FE 5, (WS ) Eia (607,869) 811,487
Writedown of properfies under development  EFR¥ENRDERFE
and completed properties held for sale M3 2 OB 7,746 4,892
Write-down of impairment of receivables JRE SRR T Rk K - 13,030
Net finance expenses B R A F R 128,572 64,519
Share of net gains of associates and eI T & N Al &
joint ventures BEehEFWEE (138,497) (195,385)
Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries — H & T Az 2 FU s (72,063) (246,797)
Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, LEWE BB REE 2 ()
plant and equipment BR%E (1,128) 118
Income fax expense FriSif X 1,419,687 1,090,365
Operating profit before BESLEHRMN
changes in working capital R 2,676,735 2,010,718
Increase in trade, other receivables and FEUBR TR  Eith fE U IE K
advance deposits BRI (1,214,334) (2,001,343
[Increase) decrease in properties under BERPYE
development, completed properties held ERERGFEMER
for sale and other properties H bW (32 h0) Rk > (2,788,206) 1,127,546
Increase in frade, other payables and FERTARER « H e FRIB K
advance receipts FE U FRIE IR N 12,001,035 2,007,940
Income tax paid BATATER (1,709,283) (795,832)
Net cash inflow from operating EELIBERNTE
activities 8,965,947 2,349,029




ZE—LEFH BMEBERERAR
CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FEHERER@
2017 2016
—FT—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARETT AREET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFH
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - BB RREFTEHRIE
plant and equipment 3,519 348
Interest received B UF & 95,619 70,574
Proceeds from disposal of interests in HEFARIERIS IR
subsidiaries 106,715 279,204
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HESREEMMSIE 298,882 161,547
Decrease in restricted cash SRR HIIR e 576,826 404,785
Increase in restricted cash PR IR 18 10 (1,541,337) (1,220,151)
Amounts advance fo related parties FE{REE A 708 (4,294,004) (1,229,287)
Repayment from related parties BB ATER 760,753 255,631
Acquisition of subsidiaries g SN (2,262,530) -
Capital contribution fo a joint venture AAERELE (5,714) (50,000)
Capifal confribufion to associates mEEENRIHE (7,721) (150)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BB -« = LR (42,651) (65,094)
Acquisition of financial assets WHE© Rl & E = (380,230)
Net cash outflow used in BEESRS RN EE
investing activities (6,311,643) (1,772,823)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RUEEEN
Proceeds from interestbearing loans FTEERAMERIA 9,118,862 4,827,908
Proceeds from perpetual securities KA B FIA - 787,823
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITEAERIEA 2,697,623 2,956,815
Capital contribution from non-controlling JEIERR R E
shareholders 214,343 43,500
Advance from related parties KB BEATTENK 728,902 3,891,514
Repayment to related parties mREEA TR (1,930,141) (2,774,050)
Repayment of bonds BiEEA (3,360,550) 4,706,715)
Repayment of inferestbearing loans BEFTBER (7,788,220) (5,505,142)
Dividend paid B E (250,944) -
Perpetual securities dividend paid ERKAESRZ KR (45,838) -
Inferest paid EAFLE (907,743) (1,006,919)
Net cash outflow used in B EHRE KL BE
financing activities (1,523,706) (1,485,2606)
Net increase (decrease) in cash RERFEEFEYEMGRLD)iFE
and cash equivalents 1,130,598 (909,060)
Cash and cash equivalents at FVHRERIEEED
the beginning of the year 4,358,259 5,207,187
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JEREF BT E (33,630) 60,132
Cash and cash equivalents at FRORER
the end of the year NEZEY 5,455,227 4,358,259
REPRESENTED BY HTIEEARK :
BANK BALANCES AND CASH RITHEGR RIS 5,455,227 4,358,259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+FF=-HA=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS 1.
OF PREPARATION

1.1 General information 1.1

—REFREREE

— R EH

Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (the "“Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 April 2006
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies law, Cap 22 (law 3 of 2007, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company's registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, British West Indies. In 2006, the companies
comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
"Reorganisation’) fo rafionalise the Group's structure in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Hong Kong Stock Exchange’). On 30 June 20006, the
Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 10 October 2006.

Greenland Holdings Corporation Limited is the ultimate

controlling shareholder of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activity of its subsidiaries (together with the Company referred
fo as the "Group”) is the development for sale and rental of
residential properties in the People's Republic of China (the
"PRC’) and the operation of hotels.

S B BERBERAR(TERAT RN
ZETRFMAT=HRBEHEHS
RNEVEENE(ZZEZLFLEH R
BRI R 3EED) R S BT
B BAZEBRRERARF o ARAFEM
MERAHUE BCentury Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies e ZZERF + &
EHARARONREBHMERIME
RAF([EEBZA])ERED - &
REASBRNNARIETT —HEH
(TER])  AEAEENEESE
ft e RZZEZRFEARA=FTH AR
AR AREERRE TS FARIMNE
BATF e RABIRMNBEZZEZTRF
A+ BRES BN LW -

BB BRNBR AR REEE &
AR -

b

Z2EREMBHRRAAREB(TAR
B2 ARBTRARRNINEE
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RARR SR ARE DN EEEBE L
ErhEARKME(THEDFEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_F—+F1+-A=1—HAULFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION (Continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's net current liabilities
are approximately RMB2,453 million. The Direcfors consider
the Group is able to operate as a going concern, taken into
account the cash flows generated from operating activities, and
undrawn loan facilities from banks, amounting approximately
RMBS5,864 million, to meet its liquidity requirements in the next
twelve months. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis that the Group will continue to

operate throughout the next twelve months as a going concern.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (”IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year
The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

["LASB"| for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to IFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements

to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

1'

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

—REHREREE(F)

1.2 RREE

BE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—8H"
AEENRBEEFRENSARKE
2,453,000,000 T - EEF K E &
KREXEBHFSRERERALR
TRENERBESBNOARK
5,864,000,0007T & AT AR R+ =
BEANRBEST KL  RRAEH
REAERE - RAEMBHRRIIRE
AEEEBERR T _EAFERL
BHELEMARS -

2. FERIFR] REIERT PRI TR
HER (T EPRA R HR & 2R 1)

2.1 FEEEFERVBEFABRE

ZAIfERT

AEBERAFEEREA TS HE
Rest R =g ([ERE T EAIE
B RmrBERYBREENZ

ERT -

BIFR & ER BKEtEl
7R ZIEFT

B ER SR B I EIRRER
FE125RZ1EFT EREHIREE

BRI RE 2R BFRMiRE 2R

F129 2 185T —EUFERE
ZE—RF
BEARFE s
—#5

BTSN - RAFEEERBER
M EEA 2 BT HAREBRAF
R FERFE 2 BBRE ML,
FNZERA M RERAE KBS
BEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

4=

SRR M EE (7)

i =

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”)

(Continued)
2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an enfity fo provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will

be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i] changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; |iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in Note 48. Consistent with the
fransition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in Note 48, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.

2. FERHR] RAEIERTEIPRIA TSR
=R ([ PR R EER )

(&)

2.1

FEEEHEYMBPRM B R &
ZRIIET(4])

BB 51 RT3 2 67T 7B 51 )
REERAFEERERZSE -
REETRERBELRE - UEH
BHMAEAEA T ERE TR NES
MAEZ2S SERRSTERHE
ReFYMELNEE - IL5h - ME
RECMEAEEANRSRBEAMA
FRKRLRBHAABREEHE
ENRERE  ARSNARESR
AENZE -

BEEmME B ERBEUTREA :
(|MERSRELE ; (I|FEEHEE
TN T 3l E 3 75 O % AR T 2 AR A
ZF (i EXEHNTE (VAnE
BEEE)  R(vEMES -

B RZ SR B M) R R R 2 BBk
ERMIFE485RHE - REBERIAZEE
X AEEABBREEF ZLRE
£t o BRINKI S48 2 BIMNKERSL - FE
ZEER A BB REBRE P BERE
B E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)

RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

AR -—T—+F1+-A=1—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective:

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS @

IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS @
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments'

leases?

Insurance Contracts4

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration!

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based payment
Transactions!

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Confracts!

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Ventured

Plan Amendment, Curtailment and
Setilement?

long-ferm Interests in Associafes and
Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property!

Annual Improvements fo IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

FE R #a] R 448 5T B PR B4 F5 3R
=R ([ EPFRABHREER )

&)

It

2.2 CHEMEERE KRBT RAEE
] EIPRAA TSR & A
AN S 814 R FE AR T BB AR AL i R A
IREHTR] AR TR B 53R i 2 B

BRI HRE eI A
AERIZE 5
BRI SHhE REZFALN
AERIZE 1 558 Was R E AR
&5
BRI BRes HE2
ZERIZE 1 658
BRI sHRE RREL
AR 175%
BRI BHE INERFRIEN
REZES RE!
BRIEE 225
BRI RS FISHEREN
RnELZEg T 142
RIEF 2355
BRI SHRE BROIARSZ
HERIE 2R 2 DEENETE
1EE]
BRI ISsheE  EBREE®RE
HEBIFE A5 2 AERI A5
(£ [RBEE4]T
JiE FR B R B 75
s ZER B O
[T A
B s E AR BB RS K
FOIRZIERT IEEEER
BRI ISsheE A BEEEE
ZRIEI0HE KR AEIKEEE
B estEl HEEI0FA
F282IBE] EES
BB SEHERIE  FTEHEET ~ MRk
1057 Z4&3T X2
HESHERE REEARRAE
2855 2185 PER R B
B SEERIE B EmEEL
28572185 —ET-NEFERE
—E—RF
AR [E it
K —EB!
REErER EFEIREME
405 2 185]
BB AR BB B 7 R 5 2E Al
AR Z18E] —E-hER
T —+FHEH
B S D2
U RZE—N\F—A—HBxz%&MAE
K FEHIB AR ©
2 R-E—NF—A—HBxz&MAE
KIS HAB AR ©
8 RFE B Hisk 2 14 s B F [ HAfE

AR o
4 RZZT=—_—F— A —H=kZ%EMAHA
M HARI AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+tF1T-A=1—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERA#H:T REETERMFEER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HEA([ EPRAFBEREZER )
REPORTING STANDARDS (”IFRSs”) (48)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 EiEMHERERERFTREE

effective: (Continued)

Except as disclosed below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that application of the new and amendments to

IFRSs will have no material impact to the Group's consolidated

financial statements in the future.

IFRS @ Financial Instruments

IFRS @ infroduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general

hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial

assets.

Key requirements of IFRS @ which are relevant to the Group

are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IFRS @ are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose

objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and

A1 EPREA TSR S 2R - (4])
BRIXHAEREN  ARBEFEY
RIRERFAT MEEFTBIR B S
HAE TG BAEELGE P BHRE
RERFTE -

EIFR R 3R e BRI E O 2 A T A

BIBRE SRS E RN FEOSR S ABEE R
BE - oRAE  —REPEHEN
DELAEHBR L EBEENRE

EAEEAEZ BRI HREERIEC
TREVERARE ¢

o FABERMEHELERFEOR
HEANEEREHEERRY
RIS A A BEFTE -
AREmE - BNRKRaHNRE
MERFHRANFANEHR

B MENREREEREER
& R HAEER SN ENERER
B —RRERE S ERIREH
FXAETE o iR &R TR TR RS
BBRBMANBRERERLES
BMEEMED B ENEHEAAN
FE - MESOERNETEE S
TRARRAE RHRAEHE
FMENTERER - A—RIEA
REEIIRREMZEEA (R
AREEIIRNEMEERA D
AR TARMERMEBEESNE

that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assefs, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and inferest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI").

All other financial assets are measured at their fair

value at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, rEREE QAR BEE -
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irevocable election BESN - ARIRERR B IS 3RS 2R S
fo present subsequent changes in the fair value of an Q% - BRERI{EL AR E AR

B UREMEEKRA RS IE
KREUFEFEXZ B ARE
BENEZRES  MRAREKA
—RNIBaRER

equity investment [that is not held for trading] in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_F—+F1+-A=1—HAULFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

2. FERHR] REIERTEIPRIA TSR
HER ([ EPFRM R EER )

REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (#8)
(Continued)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 EEMERKREMRBIETREE

I BIRRRATS SR E A - ()
BB EER|FEOH /M T A
(&

effective: (Continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

REREERENS  REERS

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 o

requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity fo account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

FTERIEIORIB T REELRE
EERRAGERR - BRMB
BEEFEOFRERAREE
BEREAGE - BHEEERER
AR EERNSHRE A HKED
EEBRERZERBEREEN
PN URREERRES
REERARNES - hE2 - B
ABGREEEEHRIAERE
EEiE

BEREER-_ZT—tF+H8
=t—BENERIARERERR
B ARREFEPVLEBBEERY
BRELR BRI L ELE A T EER

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors
of the Company anticipate the following potential impact on

inifial application of IFRS 9:

Debt instruments classified as loan receivables carried
at amortised cost as disclosed in Notes 27, 29 and
30 respectively: these are held within a business model
whose objective is fo collect the confractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue 1o be subsequently measured at amortised

cost upon the application of IFRS 9;

%

=

SRR AL S R EIR
SRz BB TED BIRER
27~ 29130 : REFAWERE XY
RenEERBENEBETR
B AR EREEAS R AR
BEASFBNRHELRER
B o Fiit - RRBERTEHRE
EREOWE - RETREEN
B S PANET B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FER# T REETEERAAFEER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL A B ([ BEPRBAFSER &5 2R )
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”) (48)

(Continued)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 EEMHBREKREZRBIHTREE

effective: (Continued) T EPREA RS IR 2Rl - (48)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) EB R EEREOH M T A

(&)

Classification and measurement (Continued): DERFAEGE)

e Equity securities classified as available-for-sale o  WHHARFMHHERE (KA
investments carried at cost less impairment as disclosed HMBRRESBR) 2 B AN 78 H Rt
in Note 21: these securities qualified for designation 2R REEFIRERE
as measured at FVTOCI under IFRS 9, however, the B EEER|E O - FFEE
Group plans not fo elect the option for designating these EEREAABEIRNEME
securities to be measured at FVTOCI and will measure HIWAGTE - A - AEEEE
these securities at fair value with subsequent fair value RIEBZEBFETRAZARE
gains or losses to be recognised in profit or loss; BYIERREMEERAGTE - %

SEBLFERANMEBHEMNE  BHE
‘AR BERREEFNER
R

J All other financial assets and financial liabilities continue e FMEHMEREEREHREES
to be measured on the same bases as are currently BRI R TR A BIRR & 51
measured under IAS 39. RISE3OSRMAAREEAE -

Impairment JRl1E

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the —RimE - AARESTEHERBRE

application of the expected credit loss model of IFRS @ will RS R EOS M TBHE EEEE

result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet N EH A EERERBERY SRS
incurred in relation fo the Group's financial assets measured at YERFEOSRIE - BRANSE B I HE S A ANET

amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment B2 REBE A R MDAV R E B

provisions upon application of IFRS 9 by the Group. HHIEE 2 AR EEMNEEEERA

Rt o

The directors of the Company are still assessing the full impact RAREFEENAEAEREERE

of the application of the expected loss model on the results and NHAEBEE R BRIHEE

financial position of the Group, but expect the accumulated 2. R AERRN -_T—\F—A
amount of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group —HERNBEEEZRTSEAIER
as at 1 January 2018 may increase as compared to the RIRB R EH R 305 MR M R 5T

accumulated amount recognised under IAS 39. SEBAFTIEHN o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: (Continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
fo use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an enfity should recognise
revenue fo depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
cusfomers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be enfitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Specifically, the Standard infroduces a 5-step
approach fo revenue recognifion:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

confract
° Step 3: Defermine the transaction price
° Step 4: Allocate the fransaction price fo the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when 'control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 15
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2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FER# T REETEERAAFEER

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)
In 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:

o Sale of properties

. Running hotels and servicing fees

J Property management and other related service fee

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of IFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognized in the respective
reporting periods. However, application of IFRS 15 may have
impact on the following areas:

®  The Group has considered all the relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether the property sales
contacts contain significant financing component,
including the difference between the amount of promised
consideration and the cash selling price of the property;
and the combined effect of the expected length of
time between the Group transfers the property to the
customer and the customer pays for the property and
the prevailing interest rates in the relevant market. The
directors of the Company do not consider the financing
component fo be significant.

e Currently, the Group expensed off the costs associated
with obtaining the property sales contracts with
customers. Under the requirement of IFRS 15,
incremental costs of obtaining a confract is eligible
for capitalisation as deferred contract costs, if they
meet certain criteria. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company expects a recognition of deferred contract
costs would result an increase in opening retained profit
and recognition of deferred tax liabilities at 1 January

2018.

In addition, the application of IFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective: (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting freatments
for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 supersedes the current
lease guidance including IAS 17 leases and the related

inferpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases (off balance sheet) and finance
leases (on balance sheet) are removed for lessee accounting,
and is replaced by a model where a rightof-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees (i.e. all on balance sheet) except for shortHerm leases

and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. Furthermore, the
classification of cash flows will also be affected as operating
lease payments under IAS 17 are presented as operating cash
flows; upon application of IFRS 16, the lease payments will
be split into a principal and an inferest portion which will be
presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively

by the group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.
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2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FER# T REETEERAAFEER

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)
2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB59,167,000 as
disclosed in Note 43. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a rightof use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or shortferm leases upon the
application of IFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation

and disclosure as indicated above.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of RMB13,105,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of RMB9,340,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on
the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as

advance lease payments.
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2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERMET REETEHIRAFEER

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective: (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by observable evidence that a change in
use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations
other than the ones listed in IAS 40 may evidence a change in
use, and that a change in use is possible for properties under
construction. For example, change in use for transfer from
properties under development for sale in the ordinary course
of business to investment properties could be evidenced by
inception of an operating lease to another party. Currently, the
Group accounts for such transfer only upon commencement of

an operating lease.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments will result in early recognition of such
transfers on the Group's consolidated financial statements in
future periods should there be a change in use of any of ifs

properties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules’) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Fair value and historical cost

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties, which are measured at fair values, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS

2 Invenfories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Fair value and historical cost (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are cafegorised into Llevel 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted] in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
] has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TEE(E)
(Continued)
3.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

3.3 SHEEER)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;
J rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need fo be made, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders' meefings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
fo the non-controlling inferests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THHR(4E)
(Continued)

3.3 SHEEER)

3.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All infragroup assefs and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Croup's relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling inferests according to the Group's and the non-

confrolling inferests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
[if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between |i
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and [ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill], and liabilities of
the subsidiary atfributable fo the owners of the Company. Al
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary [i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly
to refained earnings as specified by applicable IFRSs). The fair
value of any invesiment refained in the former subsidiary af the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a

joint venture or an associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TEE(E)
(Continued)
3.4 Business combinations 3.4 ¥(BEH

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
fo the former owners of the acquiree and the equity inferests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or

loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the

accounting policy below); and

e assefs (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THHR(4E)
(Continued)
3.4 Business combinations (Continued)

3.4 EBESHER)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
inferests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assefs in the event of liquidation are inifially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of

the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable nef assets.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the measurement
period about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date. Measurement period cannot exceed one year

from the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
RE—F— = A=F—FIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TEE(E)
(Continued)
3.4 Business combinations (Continued)

3.4 EBHEHER)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and ifs subsequent setflement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in

profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control], and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior fo the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be

appropriate if that interests were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, fo reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that

date.

IRRENRABEEINERS
BRI G B RS EME R TIE
RRARENDETR - DERKE
HHHARETERERBRERANE
MatE MEREEBNEZAA
R DBREERBBENIRRER
HEBEAHMENAERAAEE "
AR R AR RN B FERR o

WERB A DOBEERER - AEEE
AR AR KEARRESREER
HAAEERSEGZEERNAR
BESHAE  MAKEEN KRR
EE(E) @ ERaP R - RIKE
H EART R 4% W N Bl e A B SR AT
EREMEEBATEINSE 5
EFOBEER - MULRENAER
EEmIE -

WERBAFNNT ST ERENE G &
EHBRERARDARZK  AREE2
BARATEKEFTRENAENERE
HomShReRearEdRE(REL
OHE - WeRAEIEEXEE
AR E AR KERMEFE
WEEREROIER - MiHAEE
AR KEFELAERNEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)

=)
ma

P E e )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HgE2—

F—+F+—H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.5 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established af the date of acquisition of the business
[see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment tesfing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benéfit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for infernal management purposes

and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit, or group of cash generating unites, o
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit, or group of
cash generating unites fo which goodwill has been allocated
is fested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated fo the
unit and then fo the other assets of the unit on a proTata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit, or the

group of cash generating unites.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the defermination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal or any of the cash-
generating unit within group of cash-generating units in which

the Group monitors goodwill.

3.6 Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a

business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
property under development at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain

purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

o A= AL

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX=:THR(4E)
(Continued)
3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures 3.7 REBEATREELERS

An associafe is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

A oint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like fransactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in nef assets of
the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership inferest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
or joint venture exceeds the Group's inferest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any \ong-ferm interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture|, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_F—+F1+-A=1—HAULFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TBIR(E)
(Continued)

3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

An investment in an associafe or a joinf venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the dafe on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint veniure, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assefs and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied fo determine whether
it is necessary fo recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
lincluding goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal] with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 fo the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

When the Group ceases fo have significant influence over an
associafe or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire inferest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an inferest in the former associate or joint
venture and the refained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of I1AS 39, the Group measures the refained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained inferest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assefs or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity fo profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment] upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint

venture.

The Group continues fo use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair

value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.7 Investments in associates and joint ventures

3.8

(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relafing to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified fo profit or loss

on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
fransactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statfements only fo the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not

related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities as described below:

(i) Sales of properties
Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when a
Group entity has delivered the relevant properties fo the
customers and collectability of the related receivables
is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior fo the date of revenue
recognition are recorded as advances from customers
and presented as trade, other payables and advance

deposits under current liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.8 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. Revenue in relafion to property
management and hotel operation is recognised when

the services are rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the projects by
the end of reporting period. The stage of completion
is assessed by reference to the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the

estimated fotal contract costs.

Rental income
The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the

accounting policy for lease below.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment
basis, by reference to the principal oufstanding and af
the effective inferest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that

assef's nef carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THHR(4E)
(Continued)
3.9 Foreign currencies 3.9 HhE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, fransactions in currencies other than the enfity’s
functional currency [foreign currencies| are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing af
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

costin a foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assefs under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjusiment fo inferest cosfs on

those foreign currency borrowings.

3.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of fime to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assefs until such time as the assefs are substantially ready for

their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assefs is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capifalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

year in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXETEIHBR(E)
(Continued)
3.11 Taxation 3.11 BilH

i

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before income tax”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductable temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected fo reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—_T—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THE(E)
(Continued)
3.11 Taxation (Continued) 3.11 BIE(4E)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is setfled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws| that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or seffle the carrying amount of its assefs and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed fo be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over fime, rather than Through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-F— 4+ A=f—AILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX=:THR(4E)
(Continued)
3.12 Government grants 3.12 BRF##HED

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

aftaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants

are infended fo compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support fo the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.

3.13 Leasing

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straightline basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than invesiment properties measured under
fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straightine basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter info
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straightine basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—F 5+ -A=+—ALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXET:IBR(E)
(Continued)
3.14 Employee benefits 3. 14 EEEF

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

The Group participates in state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, which are defined contribution schemes, pursuant
to which the Group pays a fixed percentage of ifts qualifying
staff's wages as contributions to the plans. Payments to
such refirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

A liability for a fermination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related

restructuring cosfs.

Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
ferm employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in

the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other longferm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash oufflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities” carrying amouts resulting
from service cost, inferest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except o the extent that another IFRS requires

or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For ended 31 December 2017
# tF = A=A — AR
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TBIR(4E)
(Continued)
3.14 Employee benefits (Continued) .14 EEEFI(E)
Share options granted to employees RTFESZIERE

Equity-sefled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity insfruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-seftled share-based payments
defermined af the grant dafe without taking info consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises ifs estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjusiment

to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred fo share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are sfill not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share opfions reserve will continue fo

be held in share options reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-—F—t#+-A=+—AIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THHR(4E)
(Continued)

3.15 Property, plant and equipment 3.15 % - BMEREE

Property, plant and equipment, including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
adminisfrative purposes are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assefs are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the sfraightline method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item (including the
relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly fo retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.16 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties (including and properties

under construction for such purposes) held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly aftributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property inferests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment

property are included in profit or loss for the period in which

they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under

construction are capitalised as part of the camying amount of

the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in

profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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F—+F+—H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.17 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assefs and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale fransaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
refain a non-confrolling interest in its former subsidiary affer the

sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate
or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criferia described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the investment (or

a portion of the investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+tF1T-A=1—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TBIR(4E)
(Continued)

3.18 Intangible assets .18 ELEE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately

are carried af cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An infangible asset is derecognised on disposals, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the assets, are recognised in profit

or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.19 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assefs
fo determine whether there is any indication that those assefs
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order fo
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Infangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the assefs may be

impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable

and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THHR(4E)
(Continued)

3.19 AR REREE (BRI ) BE

3.19 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the esfimates of future cash flows have not

been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit] is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced fo its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been deftermined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
RE—F—+F+=A=+—AILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:TBIR(4E)
(Continued)
3.20 Properties under development

3.20 #Rh¥E

Properties under development, representing leasehold land
and buildings located in the PRC under development for future
sale in the ordinary course of business, are sfated at the lower
of cost and nef realisable value. Cost comprises the costs of
land use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
and other direct development expenditure. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Properties under
development are transferred to completed properties for sale

upon completion of development.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property
fo earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for
sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced
by the commencement of an operating lease to another party.
Any difference between the fair value of the property at the
date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised

in profit or loss.

3.21 Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises the costs of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capifalised and
other direct development expenditure. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business less the estimated costs necessary fo make the sale.

The Group transfers a property from completed properties
for sale to investment property when there is a change in
use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of
business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an
operating lease to another party. Any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its previous

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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BE—_T—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXE:THE(E)
(Continued)
3.22 Provisions 3.22 ##4E

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, faking info account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to sefile the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is

material).

Present obligations arising under onerous confracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract
is considered to exist where the Group has a confract under
which the unavoidable cosfs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be

received from the contract.

3.23 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
aftributable 1o the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: financial assets carried
at FVTPL, loans and receivables and availablefor-sale
financial assefs. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

Effective inferest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rafe is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an infegro| part of the effective interest rate,
fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is
designated as at FVTPL or {iii) contingent consideration
that may be received by an acquirer as part of a
business combination.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

®  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages fogether and has a recent actual pattern
of shortterm profittaking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging insfrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held

for trading (or contingent consideration that may

be received by an acquirer as part of a business

combination) may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contfract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as af FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,

with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement

recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in

the manner described in Note 40.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assefs with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
restricted cash, bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

any impairment.

Inferest income is recognised by applying the effective
inferest rate, except for shortferm receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Availablefor-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or
not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period except for
unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount
of availableforsale debt instruments relating to inferest
income calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assefs are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured af cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financiol assefs are considered fo be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred affer the inifial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

For availobleforsale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

®  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency

in interest or prmcipo\ payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bonkrupfcy or financial re-organisation
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the financial asset's original effective interest rafe.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carmying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assef is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a frade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credifed to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an availablefor-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. In respect of
availableforsale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with substance of the contractual
arrangements entered info and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabiliies. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised af the proceeds received, net

of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity insfruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities are generally clossified

into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on inifial recognifion.

Inferest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading; or (i) confingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part

of a business combination fo which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term;

*  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of shortterm profittaking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any inferest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the 'other

gains and losses' line item.

Financial liabilities af amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables, longferm payables, amounts
due to related parties and bonds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

BWEBZRERAA

3. EXEBRE)

3.23 &Rt
(i)

IR(&)

EHEE (&)

EHAEE)
BARBEIENERNEREA
&

ESRABRIIKERSEN
k(i B A RIE RFEH & B (8
FABARR B 75 5 22 RIS 357 ) —
BB M AT BES T HIRIAMRAE - Bl
DRBEA A BEIRRNEEN
TRAE-

SREFATINERTHERS
EEERE

o IEARTANKRED
My :

° RARERRKERAEE
—HEENAENERT
BEAW—8n - A&l
BrRHEENNERRN
%

e  RUTHEIR - BIHEETE
REMTEA - TRIFEMY
IR -

AR BESE - BIEHRAE
RSB R R R
R - S EATRA S SRR
HEELTEA B AT
8 WEAT Rt i RS IR

=]
=
E

SRR A EN S RS B
SR B EIERIT RIS -
R BRR R RN 20E - B
AT - S B A OB R
% o ElE A EBR R R K
AEHE -

193



194

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

PSS

—E—+FF A= —HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value af the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the fiming of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge

relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are freated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and

the contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial guarantee confracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
ferms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, are subsequently measured at the higher
of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with IAS 37 provisions,
Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognised over guarantee

period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.23 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset fo
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues fo control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset fo the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profi or loss.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following critical accounting judgement and key sources of
estimation uncertainty are used in the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2017, the Group has recognised deferred tax
assets as set out in Note 31{ii). The ability fo realise the deferred tax
assets mainly depends on whether it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which related tax benefits under
the deferred tax assefs can be utilised. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or

loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

The Group recognises deferred tax in respect of the changes in fair
value of the investment properties based on directors’ best estimate
assuming future tax consequences through usage of such properties
for rental purpose, rather than through sale. The final tax outcome
could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements should the investment properties
are subsequently disposed by the Group, rather than consumed
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties by leasing over time. In the event the investment properties
are being disposed, the Group may be liable to higher tax upon

disposal considering the impact of land appreciation tax.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Valuation of investment properties

Debenham Tei Leung Limited ("DTZ"), having appropriate recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, values the Group's investment
property portfolio every six months. The fair values are based on
market values, being the estimated amount for which a property
could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing

buyer and a willing seller in arms’ length transaction.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuations
are prepared by direct comparison approach for investment
properties under development and income capitalisation approach
for completed investment properties, considering the capitalisation

rates, average unit market rent and average market unit price.

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants actually in
occupation or responsible for meeting lease commitments or likely
fo be in occupation after letting vacant accommodation, and the
market's general perception of their creditworthiness; the allocation
of maintenance and insurance responsibilities between the Group
and the lessee; and the remaining economic life of the property.
When rent reviews or lease renewals are pending with anticipated
reversionary increases, it is assumed that all notices and where
appropriate counternotices have been served validly and within the

appropriate fime.

Investment property under construction or development is valued by
estimating the fair value of the completed investment property and
then deducting from that amount the estimated costs to complete
construction or development, financing costs and a reasonable profit

margin.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and setflement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its PRC land appreciation faxes calculation and
payments with most of local tax authorities in the PRC. The calculation
of LAT are highly dependent on the appropriateness of the rates
used, which are determined by the appreciation of land value. The
appreciation of land value is defermined with reference to proceeds
of the properties less the estimated deductible expenditures, including
the cost of land use rights and all property development expenditures.
The Group estimated the deductible expenditures according to the
understanding of the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the income tax expense
and the related income tax provisions in the periods in which such

tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Impairment of non-financial long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of nonfinancial
long-lived assets (other than investment properties, properties under
development, completed properties held for sale and deferred tax
assets) may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered
impaired and are tested for impairment. An impairment loss is
recognised when the asset’s recoverable amount has declined below
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less cosfs of disposal and value in use. In determining the
recoverable amount, the Group estimates the future cash flows to be
derived from continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset and

applies an appropriate discount rafe fo these future cash flows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounfs
of properties under development and completed properties held for
sale. Based on management's review, write-down of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale will be made
when the estimated net realisable value has declined below the

carrying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed properties held
for sale, management refers to prevailing market data such as recent
sales fransactions, market survey reports available from independent
property valuers and infernally available information, as basis for
evaluation. As of 31 December 2017, the amount of the write-down
of completed properties held for sale was RMB25,908,000 (As of
31 December 2016: RMB101,233,000).

In respect of properties under development, the estimate of net
realisable value requires the application of a risk-adjusted discount
rate fo the estimated future cash flows to be derived from these
properties. These esfimates require judgement as fo the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in nearby
locations, marketing costs (including price discounts required fo
stimulate sales) and the estimated costs to completion of properties,

the legal and regulatory framework and general market conditions.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
allowance for doubtful debts is the difference between the debt's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. If difference occurs from re-estimation, it will influence the
carrying amount of debts in the re-estimation period. As of 31

December 2017, the amount of the write-down of receivables was
RMB69, 135,000 (As of 31 December 2016: RMB6?,265,000).

EXEHHE R G EEE
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5. REVENUE 5. W
2017 2016
—T—tF —EREF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
Sales of properties MEHE 14,101,515 16,430,695
Rental income HEUWA 36,321 41,609
Hotel operation income B EE WA 137,361 177,100
Property management income and YIEERWA R
other related services H b AE B AR TS 343,675 269,784

14,618,872 16,219,188
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has four reportable segments, as described below, which
are the Group's sfrategic business unifs. The strategic business unifs
offer different products and services, and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing strategies.
For each of the strategic business units, the chief operating decision
maker (the “"CODM"), Group's senior executive management,
reviews infernal management reports at least on a monthly basis. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's

reportable segments.

Sales of properties: this segment develops and sells residential
properties. Currently the Group's activities in this unit are carried
out in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu, Wuxi, Suzhou, Haikovu,
Nanchang, Taiyuan, Ningbo, Huangshan, Hangzhou, Xuzhou and
Nanning.

lease of properties: this segment leases commercial and residential
properties fo generate rental income and gain from the appreciation
in the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group's
investment property portfolio is located in Shanghai, Suzhou,

Nanning and Wuxi.

Hotel and related services: this segment operates hotels and
service apartmenfs fo generate accommodation service and related
income. Currently the Group's activities in this unit are carried out in

Shanghai, Suzhou and Huangshan.

Property management and other related services: this segment
provides property management services, project management
services, greenery construction services and other related services
to external customers and group companies. Currently the Group's
activities in this unit are carried out in Shanghai, Kunming, Changshu,

Huangshan, Wuxi, Nanning, Suzhou, Haikou, Taiyuan and Xi'an.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's CODM monitors the
results, assefs and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment

on the following basis:

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

S ERERE

XA - AEEA AR AR E - S
AREB R RAE MR TF AL o RAKMERTS B
RETRHEmRMRY - ARBEE TR
MR RS - FUB B IR - SR RESIE
EBBEUME  TBRERKE(KEEZ
RETREEAR)RDEAZMNANIERE
HE - U T EHARKEE A HHDHH
B -

MEHE  ADRBRMFEEEYE - B
RIASER LS BH - B B &
MO -8 KR -ZER- &L -7
M~ RN R R AR R I BB AT o

MERE A BHEREREEMEAE
HEHE AR R ETHERNKES - B A
AEBWBREMFEALN LE - &M - &

BEREERS : A0 RHE L E KRB
NE - AEEEBERBERABKRA - BATA
SER LA HFMEALLEHEMOE
& o

YEEE R EMBRRE - ADERINEE
FREBARHRHMEEERY - REEIRE
BR% - AREIER RIS IA R E A ABRA IR - B
RIASERLEE BH FH - Bl &
% BE - &M 80 KERETEE L
BT -

RAHEDBRERRE D WBEETEIRE
B AEEZTERERRERUATELESR
EEABRHRO A EE  BEREE

201



202

GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

i =

For the y:

ear ended 31 December 2017

BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets include all current and non-current assefs with the
exception of interests in associates and interests in joint ventures.
Segment liabilities include all current and non-current liabilities except

for bonds managed at corporate level.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to the revenue generated and the expenses incurred
by those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets atfributable o those segments. Segment results
do not include share-based payments, net gain on disposal of equity
inferests in subsidiaries, share of profit (loss| of associate, share of
profits of joint ventures and any other fransactions managed at the

corporate level.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

6.

S ERERE ()
SWAEEMERDRIRDEE (BB
SRRAERRAEDERII) - HDBER
BEFERDRIERDAE (B hbEEE
ERZEHN) o

Wes M T2 RA Bl MEE 2 WE Rk
XA BEE cEERTESBIEmEL
o OBREZEFEN - DREBEANBIER
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EEMHEEEEEEZRS -

BE—_T—t&+-A=1+—HI5EE

Property
management
Hotel and and other
Sales of Lease of related related
properties properties services services Total
BER YEEER
MEHE YERE EERSE  HitEmERE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Revenue from external customers R B 14,101,515 36,321 137,361 343,675 14,618,872
Intersegment revenue A e - - - 110,561 110,561
Reportable segment revenue EEE e 14,101,515 36,321 137,361 454,236 14,729,433
Reportable segment profit BRG] 1,240,463 330,281 14,772 88,726 1,674,242
Interest income FBMA 85,073 219 181 10,146 95,619
Inferest expenses MEER (210,393) (542) (12,372) (884) (224,191)
Revaluation gains on investment RENESHENE
properties - 329,268 - - 329,268
Depreciation and amorisation TEREE 9,621 - 84,751 3,753 98,125
Reportable segment assefs RRHBEE 61,028,600 9,082,000 839,987 1,824,027 72,774,614
Additions o non-current segment  FREMABIEREEE
assets during the year 32,004 866,000 410 13,747 912,161
Reportable segment licbilifies RRHHEE 47,661,577 4,813,692 410,840 971,918 53,858,027
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Confinued) 6. SYEBERE (M)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-—F—A"F+-A=+—HLEFE
Property
Hotel and management
Sales of lease of related and other
properties properties services  related services Total
BIER MEEER
WEHE WEME RER®  HtiBARS A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFT AREFT
Revenue from external customers — FMEFR P UL 16,430,695 41,609 177,100 269,784 16,919,188
Infersegment revenue Ak - - - 110,064 110,064
Reportable segment revenue EEEE e 16,430,695 41,609 177,100 379,848 17,029,252
Reportable segment profit AR LT 63,774 451137 27928 82,096 625,835
Interest income FISUA 53,155 105 1,617 15,697 70,574
Interest expenses FBER (127,234) (4,845 (2,362 (647) (135,088
Revaluation gains on invesiment B EE S
properties - 687,638 - - 687,638
Depreciation and amorisation WE R 11,089 - 74174 2,253 87516
Reportable segment assets RS HEE 47,182,765 8,336,000 1,181,965 1,025,003 57,725,733
Additions fo non-current segment  FRIENABIEFREEE
assefs during the year 2,123 950,710 606 4,320 957,759

Reportable segment liabilities BEE Rt 33,577,952 5,082,927 604,900 548,622 39,814,401
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BE T+ F=+—HIFEF
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit,

SERERE (4])
o] B R 53 SR M 2

Cifl c BERAR

assets and liabilities B BR
2017 2016
—T—tEF —EF—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFxT AREFT
Revenue W s
Reportable segment revenue Al B ER D ERU R 14,729,433 17,029,252
Elimination of infersegment revenue o abfEd s S 8 (110,561) (110,0064)
Consolidated revenue ez 14,618,872 16,919,188
Profit predl
Reportable segment profit ] B3R B3z ) 1,674,242 625,835
Elimination of infersegment profits o= ESK | (49,184) [7,498)
Net gain on disposal of interests in HeEF AT 2 W E5E
subsidiaries 72,063 246,797
Share of (loss) profit of associate FEMLEE A 7 (B8 ) s F (999) 370
Share of profits of joinf ventures JE(LEEESET 139,496 195,015
Consolidated profit after income tax M FT1S T g 47 A0 1,835,618 1,060,519
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets Al ERIRDEEE 72,774,614 57,725,733
Elimination of infersegment receivables 23 50 T JE U SR T ) 6 (3,721,779) (3,471,762)
Elimination of infersegment investments S EREIR A E 8 (995,536) (690,067)
Interests in associates /N 6,084 -
Interests in joint ventures B EET 686,413 41,203
Consolidated tofal assets A EEERE 68,749,796 54,105,107
Liabilities =1
Reportable segment liabilities RO BEE 53,858,027 39,814,401
Elimination of intersegment payables 53 B FE A~ OB £ (3,721,779) (3,471,762
Bonds EH 7,028,658 8,038,774
Consolidated total liabilities TEABARE 57,164,906 44,381,413
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.
Geographical information
In view of the fact that the Group mainly operates in the PRC, no

geographical segment information is presented.
Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no single

cusfomer contributes 10% or more of the total sales of the Group.

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

SEpERE (48)

b B EHL

AR E E B E - B R 25
RAER -

FHEEEFNEH
BE-TtHER-FT—AF+-A=+—
AIEFE  HESE - EFAMARERHE
#10%30A L -

HipgA - Wz R E5HE

2017 2016
—T—tE —TE-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFRT ARETTT

(Losses) gains from financial assets/liabilities & B A 7 EEYIBRA B

carried at FVTPL SREE BEEE WS

— Unrealised — REIE (254,464) 156,286

— Realised —B#R (81,348) 18,548
Foreign exchange gain R 607,869 -
Forfeited deposits from customers RERFPHNRUGEN S 13,894 7,648
Government grants (Note) BT (HEE) 1,746 6,014
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BE MEE 2 W (E18)

plant and equipment SRER 1,128 (118)
Others Hib 9,776 9,591

298,601 197,969

Note: The amount of government grants represents the incentive subsidies
received from the PRC local district authorities for the business activities
carried out by the Group in the disfrict. There are no specific conditions

attached fo the grants.
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8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 8. HEERZ
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Foreign exchange loss FE B 1R - 811,487
Write-down of receivables SR IE R - 13,030
Donations B 320 249
Others Hith 13,083 14,415
Total =1 13,403 839,181
9. FINANCE INCOME 9. BUEULA
2017 2016
—T—tF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFxX AREF T
Inferest income on bank deposits and RITERNRETEER
entrusted loans 2 WA 95,619 70,574
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAERAE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
Inferest expenses on bonds BEF B &R 375,792 531,937
Inferest expenses on interestbearing loans SEERANEER 596,952 481,948
Less: interest of bonds capitalised B B ESFE (299,985) (438,118)
interest of loans capifalised ERENERF S (448,568) (440,679)
Net interest expenses on interest-bearing FFEERKRESFE
loans and bonds &HF5 224,191 135,088
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11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income represents:

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

11. FiSHAX

(i)

FERBERE2EARARABRSE
BiiE -

2017 2016
—T—tE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETTT
Current tax (Note 31(i)) BPEAFIE (PHEES 1(i))
— in respect of current year —REE 1,345,185 618,074
— in respect of prior years —BEEE 43,458 19,145
— provision for land appreciation — REFE IS ET R
fax for current year 629,475 324,322
2,018,118 Q61,541
Deferred tax IEEFIE (PrEE3 1 (i) K (iii))
(Note 31(ii) and (iii))
— (credit] charge for current year —AREE (KRS (598,431) 74,157
— reversal for land appreciation fax — T B ER D = (10,8406]
(598,431) 63,311
Total income fax expenses FriSfiF > 8% 1,419,687 1,024,852
Enterprise income tax FEAEH

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not earn any income subject fo Hong Kong Profits

Tax during both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any

income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, the
Group's main operating companies were subject to PRC
income tax at a rate of 25% (2016: 25%).

Land appreciation tax

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on AT effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
fo LAT af progressive rafes ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, with an exemption provided for property
sales of ordinary residential properties if their appreciation
values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the fofal deductible
items. Land appreciation tax of RMB629,475,000 (2016:
RMB324,322,000) has been included in profit or loss during

the year.
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NP - REBBABMNERF S B
ERRBELBEPTEH

REBPEEEMERE  AEENE
BLER ARG AR 25%E B R BN
REIPTSH( =T —7R4F : 25%) o

T H AR

BRER—NNOF—A—BERZ(h
FEARAMBE L HIEEFREITIERGINIA
ER—NAAAF—A-+ERERZ
(g A RHFE L IR BRI TP
EARDNER - HEREERTE
ZEELiERE BFREMER
e 2 Fi B WA AL IS (B R IE T F 30%
EO0%2 RAETR @M L IEET -
HEMEBEEEZMERE ZEER
MBI HITIA B #5828 20%
AR E#H R - FRFFARBET R L
EERK/ARE629,475000T(=
T—RF : AR¥324,322,0007T) °
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income represents:
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax (Continued)

Deferred land appreciation tax is levied on investment
properties which is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume all of the economic benefits through
sale. During the year, no deferred land appreciation tax
has been included in profit or loss (2016: a charge of
RMB10,846,000).

The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

11. FiieHiREZ (&)

(i

(i)

FEEBREEANERAGAE
BiE - (&)

T EH (E)

RE BB & HREMA KL EMNEN
EBBEARNFENREMEBHRE
FELHIRER - FAMEFT ABRD
MER T IRER(ZF—RF : 5T A
AR¥E10,846,0007T) °

M EE SR
0F :

2017 2016
—T—tf e b ANCS
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREBTFT
Profit before tax from continuing PR 5 B FE TS R BR T AT A
operations 3,255,305 2,085,371
Tax at the applicable PRC enterprise 12 7 EliE A SRS E25%
income fax rate of 25% (ZE—RE : 25%)EtE 2 F18
(2016: 25%) 813,826 521,343
Tax effect of income not taxable P E T B TaRB TSR AR
for tax purposes W& (78,885) (50,501)
Tax effect of share of results of E(ER AN TR ENR R
associates 250 (92)
Tax effect of share of results of JE(L A SR ENTIGE 2
joint ventures (34,874) (48,754)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible KN BE AN BT E
for tax purposes 183,800 379,231
Underprovision in respect of BEFEEEBETR
prior years 43,458 19,145
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERT IS E 1B TR ISR £ 128,003 105,159
Tax effect of impairment losses not REER(EIR) R ERIER
recognised (realised) TR & (20,767) 28,217
Utilisation of tax losses previously not  F BB A R ERAIT 5 E 18
recognised (87,230) (164,002)
LAT provision for the year F R+ HIR(E R EE 629,475 313,475
Tax effect of LAT THIEEHRNHS T2 (157,369) (78,369
Tax charge for the year FEMIGER 1,419,687 1,024,852




NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

e
EHE—

F—+F+—H=+—HIFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

i)

The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
(Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

In accordance with the accounting policy sef out in Note 3.11,
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assefs in respect of
cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries for the year as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction

and entity.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

11. FiRHAZ (&)

(i)

FAREHRFA R EETRF R
W : (8)

BAENEHIAMEFEEEEEL
B AT ERRBUE MR R 16 5% 18 -

Hip R AR NOR AR RIEE B AE
REEAIRITHRGTE

RIBMIEES 1 PRESIM S SRR © |
REBD F AR AR BEAER B A

HEAHANER  BAKBEFA
AR BEABABERRELESIREE -

12. PERSONNEL EXPENSES 12. ETHX
2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Staff costs [including directors” emoluments) 8 TR A (BIFEEEE) 482,718 447,731
less: capitalised in properties under B BRPYERERT
development and investment REMENERNE
properties under development (97,459) (102,561)
Total HBEt 385,259 345,170
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FT—+tF+-A=1—HIFFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. £Eiafl
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
The following expenses(income) are ATEBRRA)BGTALS
included in results from operating sz (WA ) B 4E
expenses|income)
Cost of properties sold B EWEKAR 10,478,611 13,180,395
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREM BN &
— audif services — B IR 2,110 2,470
— auditrelated services —BEZAER RS 505 300
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREERTE
equipment 97,514 86,683
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 P AR 5 566 /88
Amortisation of infangible assets mILEESE 45 45
Writedown of completed properties B A E W 2 UK
held for sale 7,746 4,892
Operating lease charges LERES W 24,410 29,698
Gross rental income from investment REREYZENEREBA
properties 36,321 41,609
Less: direct operafing expenses incured 5 : BFANEERESWAR
for investment properties that REMEHRAELERY
generated rental income
during the year (22,397) (22,395)
direct operating expenses incurred RF NI EE LB WAL
for investment properties that did REMEHRAERLERAS
not generate renfal income
during the year (4,359) (4,907)
9,565 14,307




ZE—LES BMEBERERAAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FE B M )
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—_T—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE
14.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14. EE£&
Basic
salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’ and other benefit
Fee benefits schemes Bonus Total
E5Hg BHER
EEHE  EMREMEN AR 4l af
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
For the year ended HECE-t£
31 December 2017 +ZRZ+-HLEE
Executive Directors #irEs
Mr. Chen Jun e - 3,071 88 296 3,455
Mr. Hou Guangjun FERERLE - 2,204 88 519 2,811
Mr. Wy Zhengkui RIEELE = = = = =
Mr. You Defeng nEREE - 660 35 458 1,153
Mr. Wang Weixian IRERE o 338 32 = 370
Ms. Waong Xuling IHELT = 1,622 16 448 2,086
Independent Non-Executive Directors ik H{TEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry FEALE 338 = = S 338
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, J ALK L) 338 - - - 338
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRELE 338 = = S 338
Total At 1,014 7,895 259 1,721 10,889
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14. E5M&(48)
(Continued)
Basic
salaries, Contributions
allowances fo refirement
Directors' and other benefit
Fee benefit schemes Bonus Tolol
EXge SRR
ESNe EHREMEN HEIER Tt At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AEEFT AREFT AREFT
For the year ended BECE-5%
31 December 2016 tZR=t-BLEE
Executive Directors rEs
Mr. Chen Jun BELLE - 2618 83 467 3,168
Mr. Hou Guangjun FRERLE - 2072 83 258 2413
Mr. Wu Zhengkui REERE - - - - -
Mr. You Defeng LA - 1,604 83 249 1936
Mr. Wang Weixion TERERE - 323 15 - 338
Ms. Wang Xuling ThELT - 1,605 28 249 1,052
Independent Non-Executive Directors  Bird#i{TES
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry RRBLE 323 - - - 323
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP FREE(ATEL) 323 - - - 323
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRELE 323 - - - 323
Totol At 969 8,222 362 1,223 10,776

The emolument of the Executive Director Mr. Wu Zhengkui was

bome by Greenland Holdings.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services as direcfors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
execufive waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration during both

years.

MITEFER LR R LM S H AR M IE IR
o

EXFTRHITEEMNE T 2R BEREALD
AINAEEEBERRBM AT o
EXFRRBERITERNME T EREE

BEARRBERMmMA ©

FABEEEATETRABRERE BN
BERZFHNLYE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRRME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T—+F+_A=+—HIFFE

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

15. EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 15. EE#M<E

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprise four directors of the Company
(2016: four), whose remuneration is disclosed in Note 14. Details
of remuneration paid fo the remaining highest paid individual of the

Group are as follows:

AEEBE—T—tF T -_A=t—HLF
ENRESRSHFMALEEARROE(Z
T-RFNR)EF HMESCRME4
WE - MAREE SRR HMA LT
TFIFAT

2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Basic salary, allowances and other benefits ~ BEAF & « 285 R EMEF 2,472 2,107
Contributions to refirement benefit schemes — iERAEF| 58I 5% 88 83
Bonus TEAT 442 258
3,002 2,448
The emoluments of above individual are SEHEMA TSN A TEER :
within the following band:
Hong Kong Dollar {"HKD") BBl
3,000,001-3,500,000 3,000,001-3,500,000 1 -
2,500,001-3,000,000 2,500,001-3,000,000 - 1
1 1
16.DIVIDENDS 16. 22
2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETTT
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERBDIR LIRS

during the year

2016 Final: HKDO. 1 per share TERNERE  SRO.1ET

(2015 Final: Nil) (ZE—FFEREY : &)

244,139 -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of HKDO.15
per share (2016: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016 of HKDO.10 per share), in an aggregate amount
of HKD419,052,000 (2016: HKD279,368,000), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval

by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

RIFERARE - AR EZCREHE=ZT
—tF+-A=F+—RHIEFESRO.15FT
WARERE(ZE—RF  HEZT—F
TZA=+—HIFEFRO. 10ETHRE
fRE) - 8FEAE410 0520008 (= —7~
F 1 279,368,000 7T) + B FRRRE
[ERRARE EHES ATEER -
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REMBERRME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

17.EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. Bz & F)
2017 2016
—T—tF —E—RE
RMB RMB
per share per share

BRARY BRARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share BRER R EEE AT
From continuing operations REFELCEET 0.46 0.33
From discontinued operations RE RIS ER - 0.06
Total basic and diluted earnings per share AR E AR N #8248 %8 0.46 0.39
The eamings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used AESRERKEESRNAANENRER
in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as REARE BT -
follows:

2017 2016
—T—tF TR
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETFT AREET T

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and 51 & B IFEAR K #E 2 F

diluted eamings per share Fr AR & F 1,319,308 1,112,543
Distribution related to perpetual securifies KAFEH DK (45,575) [20,141)
Profit for the year from discontinued ATEEREARREERFMAN

operations used in the calculation of RE R EFETEF N R T

basic and dilufed earnings per share - (180,390)
Eamings used in the calculation of basic FTERBRHEREEBE

and diluted eamings per share from BREARREERFIFTAN

confinuing operations B F 1,273,733 912,012

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
’000 '000
T TR
Weighted average number of T AR Y DN 9 21

ordinary shares 2,770,980 2,770,980




ZE—LETY BUEBERERAF
NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FE B M )
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—T—+F+-_A=1+—HIFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BMERRE
Fixtures,
Leasehold Motor fittings &  Construction
Buildings improvements vehicles ~ equipment in progress Total
il RE 58
#¥ higReE RE Rikfh #RIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL AREFTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
Cost BE
Balance of 1 January 2016 RZE—"E-A-AfEH 1,468,355 76,863 46,717 408,239 90,071 2,090,245
Addition NE - 497 1,387 5,165 58,045 65,094
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFAR [191,134) - - 74,969) (147 885) 413,988)
Disposals &2 - - (958) (583 - 1,541)
Bolance af 31 December 2016 WoE—"Et-A=+—Af
i3 1,277,221 77,360 47,146 337,852 231 1739810
Addition NE - 1,882 1,273 13,395 26,101 42,651
Tronsfer fiom constuction in progress ~ EEAERT I - 11,650 - - [11,650) -
Acquisiion of subsidiaries BN - 677 - 2833 - 3,510
Disposal of o subsidliary HE-RTAR - - - (63 - (65]
Disposals &2 - - (745) (12712 - (13,457
Bolance at 31 December 2017 WoE—tE+-A=+—Hf
e 1277221 91,569 47 674 341,303 14,682 1772449
Depreciation &
Balonce f 1 January 2016 RZE—rE-A-AfEH 255,147 43729 31,844 212,619 - 543,339
Charge for the year FARE 47 577 8,621 7726 25,622 - 80,546
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFARA [125,245) - - 48,994) - (174,241
Disposals g2 - - (574) (501) - 1,075)
Bolance at 31 December 2016 WS- E+-A=+—Hf
b33 177 479 52,350 38,996 188,744 - 457 569
Charge for the year ERFE 71,356 2829 1470 21,859 - 97,514
Disposal of a subsidiory HE-RTAT - - - (27) - 27)
Disposals &2 - - (342) (10724 - [11,060)
Bolance af 31 December 2017 W_E—+E+-A=1-RAf
&4 248,835 55179 40,124 199,852 - 543,990
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"ETZA=1-H 1,099,742 25,010 8,150 149,108 231 1,282,241
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=1-H 1,028,386 36,390 7550 141,451 14,682 1,228,459

(i)

(ii

All buildings owned by the Group are located in the PRC.

] Asat 31 December 2017, property, plant and equipment
with a total carrying value of RMB522,476,000 (as at 31
December 2016: RMB404,000,000) were pledged as

collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

) AKEHENAEETHMLRPE -

i) HRZF—tF+=-—A=+—8
AEBCHEHFEEEABEARYE
522,476,000 (R=ZF— X FE+=
A=+—8 : AR 404,000,000
TORIME - BE RREIERAEREG
BRI -
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. BN EE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Cost RA
Balance af 1 January R—A—H/&EH 1,700 1,700
Amortisation EiH
Balance at 1 January R— B —HMsEE 359 314
Amortisation charge for the year FRHEHFX 45 45
Balance at 31 December P+ A=+—H8&EH 404 359
Carrying amounts BREE
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HB8&E% 1,296 1,341
38 years 38 years
Useful life for amortisation BiEn(FAEH 384 384

Intangible assets represent contractor qualification in PRC, for own use

BEVEESHERANTREARHER -

purpose.
20.LAND USE RIGHTS 20. T ih{sEFAHE
2017 2016
—T—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
Cost 5%
Balance at 1 January R—A—H&&E% 30,850 95,133
Disposal of subsidiaries HEF AT - 64,283)
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—RM&Ee 30,850 30,850
Amortisation HiH
Balance af 1 January R— B —HMEE 6,242 20,395
Amortisation charge for the year FNEEER X 566 1,020
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HEF R AU ER = (15,173)
Balance at 31 December P+ A=1t—Hr&E% 6,808 6,242
Carrying amounts BRE{E
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—B8%&E& 24,042 24,608
39-42 years 39-42 vears
Useful life for amortisation BiEnFAEH 39-425 39424

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring rights fo use

land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties.

T fE AR B R i A R E TR
RE - 2RMURTE - AEERYME -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRRME @)

i N =

For the year ended 31 December 2017

e
EHE—

21.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

F—+F+—H=+—HIFE

ZE—tFFH

BWEBZRERAA

21.HihEREE BB

2017 2016
—T—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Other financial assets HibemEE
Avudilable for sale investments o ERE
Equity (i W 174,567 174,567
Financial assets carried at FVTPL AR EETRRR B 2B ZE
Held for trading derivatives that are not W IREh TR RIEEH
designated in hedge accounting FEEENTETAMIE)
relationship (Note) - 485,829
Loans =774
Loans to related parties (Note 45.3) MEEA TEE B (PH7E45.3) = 380,230
174,567 1,040,626
Current E = 866,059
Non-current IEREY 174,567 174,567
Other financial liabilities HitemBaE
Financial liabilities carried at FVTPL %2\ 7 (B8R B0 EE
Held for trading derivatives that are not W IREh T RARIEE A
designated in hedge accounting FHEEEMTETAE)
relationship (Note) 98,178 329,543

Note: These being foreign exchange forward contracts entered into by the

GEE

Group fo manage the exposure of foreign exchange risk arising from

United States Dollars (“USD") loans and bonds.

EnAgBAEEAXT(IET)ERR
BHFELMSNERRMET ZHINE RIS

4o

() The Group holds the interests on the following i) FRERTHATFARER
companies:
2017 2016
—F—tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARBFT
Shanghai Jianbang Dining Limited LERARRERAF

Compony 1,800 1 ,8OO

Hainan Tianhong Jiye Real Estate BERMEEEEREERAR
Co., lid 'Tianhong Real Estate’) ([ XELEME]) 172,767 172,767
174,567 174,567

Since the above available for sale investments do not have

a quoted market price in an active market and the fair value

cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less

impairment.

R LAt Al B R E Y IR R T 5
BE - BARBETRAISEMAE

B IR ARG E
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+FE+ - f=1—HIFE

22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 22. B EME
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
SER RSP
a3 a=tyES st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREETTT AREETTT
FAIR VALUE NRfEE
As at 1 January 2016 RZZE—XRFE—HA—H 1,390,000 5,856,000 7,246,000
Additions NE - 950,710 950,710
Transferred B 1,982,000 (1,982,000) -
Disposals HE (668,348) - (668,348)
Net increase in fair value EEEERNAAEE
recognised in profit and loss EANFRE 542,348 145,290 687,638
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+=A
=+—H 3,246,000 4,970,000 8,216,000
Additions NE - 1,235,707 1,235,707
Disposal HE (408,975) - (408,975)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEFRAT] (290,000) - (290,000)
Net increase in fair value EERERAN AR EE
recognised in profit and loss 1 HERE 98,975 230,293 329,268
As at 31 December 2017 NR-_ZE—+EF+—H
=+—H 2,646,000 6,436,000 9,082,000

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases

AEBERERELEEERFFARRES K

fo earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on the respective dates by DTZ, independent

valuers not related fo the Group.

ARBERRENERZR AN BEEAG
B UDBERARSREWE -

AEER-_ZE—LFRZZT—RFTA
=+ HOEREMEARBEIRAERSE
B0 B A 9B N B R A R 21T R B
HETTR M EREEIES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HgE2—

22.

F—+F+—H=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

For complefed investment properties, the valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach, where appropriate. The
completed investment properties are valued by income capitalisation
approach by capitalising the net rental income derived from the
existing fenancies with due allowance for the reversionary income

potential of the respective properties.

For investment properties under construction or development that are
measured af fair value, the valuations have been arrived at assuming
that the investment properties will be completed in accordance
with the development proposals and the relevant approvals for the
proposals have been obtained. The key inputs in the valuations
include the market value of the completed investment properties,
which are estimated with reference to sales evidence of similar
properties in the nearest locality, with adjustments made to account
for differences in locations and other factors specific to the respective
properties based on the valuers’ judgement. Costs of development
are also taken into account including construction costs, finance costs
and professional fees, as well as developer's profit margin which
reflects the remaining risks associated with the development of the
properties at the valuation date and the retum that the developer
would require for bringing them to completion status, which is
defermined by the valuers based on its analyses of recent land
fransactions and market value of similar completed properties in the

respective locations.

There has been no change fo the valuation technique during the

year.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highesf

and best use of the investment properties is their current use.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

22. R EME(E)

MEERREVENS  CHEEZBER TR
RWABRCEETRHE - DERREDE
ERABRABRMOES B IEIRB P UER
ZHEERANFEBRRENERRSWEEM
BEESBAELEZSIRAE -

RIRAREBEEIRZEEZRERTREDE
s - HEDENMRRZERENEBRIE
ERMENEISNERREIETT
HENTEHAEBECERRENENT
B(I2Z OB RN HERERL
&t AR RBGERHEOTRMLERNZE
BUARZSMENEMTRFEETAE) -
ZEELENENRERAAAZRE - B
BRERAA  MBERMEXER  ARME
R AE R (R E B R ERBEOFIER
R MFAEAEMEFAE T IR ARG E
) ZEFERFRIURRGEMEIH LR
ZMARESEUS T THEDSEEND
#r o

R HERITERE .

MAHEREME AR EENS  REVER
BERENEKERR °
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4=

e ISR RMEE #)

For th

ar ended 31 December 2017

BE T+ F=+—HIFEF

22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's investment
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised info the level 3 fair value hierarchy as defined
in IFRS 13, fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is defermined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

At 31 December 2017, the Group's investment properties are
measured at level 3 category of fair value measurement and during
the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no transfers info or

out of Level 3.

Valuation
Techniques Key input
fEERH FEHAEIR

22. R EME(E)

TREJAEENRE MRIZEEIEEES
ENREMEAABE  FRAABERE
B mEERE 1 3R AR BEEMRE
ZARBEF=ZBRETETIR - RA(E
EMSEENERTE2E AT HERMAA
MBARBNABREREREMETE

R=F—tET=A=+—R  AEENRE
ERARBEREANOE= BN
BEZF—tE+-A=t+-ALE
 BEERLBEAREL, -

2

PR I 14

Range Notes
gE Pt &£

Completed investment Income capitalisation

properties located in approach BAREE
Mainland China WABAE

(LA B A Y Average unit market rent
SRR EME FBLIMISHEE

Investment properties under  Direct comparison

development located in approach P BAITIHER
Mainland China BELEE

Rz B A
HRTREME

Capitalisation rafes

Average market unit price

3.5%-8.5% (i)

RMB39 — RMB274
per sq.m per month
BATGFIA i)
ARKEIOTLE
AR¥E2747T
RMB2,203 — RMB105,900  {ii)
per sq.m
FFI7K
AR#2,203LE
AR#105,0007T

Notes: Descriptions of the sensitivity in key inputs and inferrelationship:

(i) The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the key

input that a lower factor will result in a higher fair value.

[i)  The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the key

input that a higher factor will result in a higher fair value.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has not obtained the State-
owned Land Use Rights Certificate for the investment properties,
which are amounted to RMB13 1,000,000 (as at 31 December
2016: RMB109,000,000).

As at 31 December 2017, investment properties with a total
carrying value of RMB571,000,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB860,000,000) were pledged as collateral for the Group's

borrowings.

BiaE - T RHABESRE KT MR

) ARBEFEEIZBHABEEA
10 - ARBE - AREERS -

i) DABEHEBRIEHAKELLT
1ER - MABE - AnEEYES -

RZZE—tF+A=+—0 FKEELK
RSEE L EAEENRENEREA
R#131,000,000t(R=F—RF+=A
=+—H: AR¥109,000,0007T) °

RZZE—+tF+A=+—R0 £&H
E &R mELE AR S571,000000 7T
(RZZT—RF+-A=+—H: AR%
860,000,0007T ) By#&% & M E IR IE R A S
BEfEERERM -



ZE—LES BMEBERERAAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_F—+F+HA=1—HIFE
23.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. R Y
2017 2016
—B—tE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFIT
Cost BRAR
Balance af 1 January R—HA— BB 19,010,732 24,304,385
Cost capitalised AR ARE KA 12,779,663 12,045,124
Acquisition of subsidiaries o SN 4,361,407 -
Transfer fo complefed properties ERECERTEMETE24)
held for sale (Note 24) (12,230,205) (17,338,777)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=1+—B8%% 23,921,597 19,010,732
Properties under development expected TEHA PO LA T B A ) B R R
to be completed: ES
— within twelve months —+=@EARA 2,220,131 3,928,278
— beyond twelve months —+-@R% 21,701,466 15,082,454
Inferest capitalisation included in the above: Bt A_E#lIE B M EAEFE ¢
Balance at 1 January W—HA—Br& 1,085,724 1,482,565
Cost capitalised BRARE AL 647,441 612,376
Transfer to complefed properties EREDENGFEDE
held for sale (403,396) (1,009,217)
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—HB8&E% 1,329,769 1,085,724

All the properties under development are located in the PRC.

borrowings and bonds is 4.80% (2016: 4.54%).

As at 31 December 2017, properties under development of

approximately RMBZ,111,580,000 (as at 31

RMB6, 194,409,000 were pledged as collateral for the Group's

borrowings.

The weighted average interest rate of capitalised interest of BE

PrEERTYEDMNHE -

RIEZOENMEN R IIEFIFIR S

4.80%(ZF—REF : 4.54%) °

December 2016:

(R

R_B—+F+-A=+—0 #%H
EEAEBEHNAREK7,111,580,0007T
T A"F+ZA=+—8: AR%

6,194,409,0007) W ERTMWEIE RS
EEENERD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FT—+tF+-A=1—HIFFE

24.COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR 24.EBERSEYXE
SALE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
Cost AR
Balance at 1 January W— A — B/ &% 9,808,674 5,097,866
Transfer from properties under EEaERPYEHEE23)
development (Note 23] 12,230,205 17,338,777
Disposal of a subsidiary HEF AT (190,295) -
Transfer to cost of sales IR S S EE Al N (10,152,707) (12,627,969)
Balance at 31 December N+ A=+—H8&E 11,695,877 9,808,674
Write-down of completed properties WO B 2K FEME
held for sale:
Balance at 1 January R—HA—HB&H% (101,233) (212,263)
Additions NE (7,746) (4,892)
Transfer to cost of sales BRI TS G A Al N 83,071 115,922
Balance at 31 December Rt+—A=+—HB8&E% (25,908) (101,233)
11,669,969 Q,707,441

All the completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC. A REEMESURPE -
R-E—tH+-A=+—8 HEERF
EERGFENEERARBEEENER
m(ZE—RFTZA=1T—H: AR%
397,900,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2017, no completed properties held for sale
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (as at 31
December 2016: RMB397,900,000).



NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

BE—_T—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE
25.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25.BiE A TR
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARET T
Cost of unlisted investments in associates BN BIE ETRIRE A 7,971 250
Share of postacquisition profits, FEIEH B RSN - FRERIE
net of dividends received (1,887) (250)
6[084 -

No associate was individually material to the Group for the year.

Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follow:

FAMEBRERARBEAEENSBMENE

K o

&

Place of incorporation

and principal place

B & B A R RRIREHRAFFNT -

Proportion of ownership interest and
voting power held by the Group

Name of associate Principal activity of business as at 31 December
R+=A=t+-H
BEAT &M TEEH AR EEEE FEERBEED RFTSRRELH
2017 2016
—B-tF “BAE
Shanghai Yingkun Investment Limited Investing and consulfing Shanghai, the PRC 23% 23%
Partnership Corporation
("Shanghai Yingkun") (Note i)
HERERAGHLE(ERAR) RE Rk HE LR
([ bimsgm |) (Fisti)
Guangxi Greenland Jinyao Property Property development Guangxi, the PRC 18% -
Co., ld ["Guangxi Jinyao”) (Note i)
ERi S REEERAT NELRRS MEER
([ EEER g |) (B 5Ein)
Guangxi Jiuguwan Automobile Industry Property development Guangxi, the PRC 15% -

Investment Limited
("Guangxi Jiuguwan'| [Note iii)

BREABZSEXCEFREERRT  MEBRRS HElER
([ EEE L |) (Pratin)

(i) Shanghai Yingkun is a limited partnership corporation. Shanghai
Daokun Investment Management Co., Lid, the subsidiary of the Group, is
the general partner of Shanghai Yingkun. The Group is one of the four
partners {including general and limited partners), while resolution about
any parinership-related events is made in an one partner one vote
approach, and must be approved by more than half of all partners.
Profits and losses of Shanghai Yingkun are distributed in accordance
with the subscription capital shares of the partners. Therefore, Shanghai
Yingkun was recognised as an associate.

(i

bteERA—RERABEE -AREMN
FARILEBREAEERARARR/LE
BENERERA - AREREZERA
(BE-—REEREEBAN)Z— e
HEEHHRBRDUERABA—A—
EMHAE - WEESBEHABAL
I o PBRENERRAEBANRHEAR
PR DEE - Et - EiEEEERER AN
AT e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

e VBRRWE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

25.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

In March 2017, Guangxi Jinyao was established by the Group and
other two shareholders. The Group occupied 18% equity inferests.
According tfo the Articles of Association of Guangxi Jinyao, only one
out of six directors of Guangxi Jinyao is appointed by the Group, while
a valid board resolution requires half of the total votes. The Group thus
does not have the power to control or jointly control Guangxi Jinyao.

Therefore, Guangxi Jinyao was recognised as an associate.

In December 2017, the Group obtained 15% equity interests of
Guangxi Jiuguwan. According to the Articles of Association of Guangxi
Jiuguwan, only one out of five directors of Guangxi Jiuquwan is
appointed by the Group, while a valid board resolution requires half of
the total votes. The Group thus does not have the power to control or
jointly control Jiuguwan. Therefore Guangxi Jiuguwan was recognised as

an associate.

25. Bk

BT (4E)

i) RZE—tF=A *EEHEBINMER
R EFSR o AEEE8%RIE < IRIR
ERSRNESEREME  BESBRA S
EEPEE—RAAEEEME MEEY
%%%%%ﬁ$%%%ﬁ%ﬁ@o$%@
A T 3 5 B P R A 4 A sk 2L

HIE o Et - EESRER A E QA

il RZZE—+tF+ZA REEDREEAN
%%57%%OEWFEHEQW@%E&
WA BEAMERZESTES—EH
AEBEZE MEFGRERFTEBIH
BEFRAR - AEEEMmMIERHFEER
BRSO TRk KRR - Bt - B
TN E SRR AR & AR

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material: WIEREBIE AL A TNELEER

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT

Group's share of fofal (losses) profits REBEEGFE (B8 )R N @58
for the year (999) 370

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ REBRZEE 2 A AIHERS

interests in these associates FRE&E 6,084 -

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of

certain associates as its share of losses of those associates equals or

exceeds ifs inferesfs in the associate. The amounts of unrecognised

share of losses of these associates, both for the year and

cumulatively, are as follows:

REBEDRITEREREE THEARNE
T@ TR E B R S A R IR RS

RSB E N Z FHE L AR R o BIGZ
FHE N RIBIENFA R R ARER AN
T

2017 2016
—t& —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBETTT
Unrecognised share of losses of associates  FE{GE & A A1 EF R
for the year ANEERE B 600 -

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses

of associates

FEARE S DR REHRTERE R

600 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

BE—_T—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE
26.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 26. SE D ERRS
2017 2016
—B—tE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARETR ARET T
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures & &b ¥ 3F_E IR E R A 361,807 356,093
Share of postacquisition profits, FE(E W BB 1R A -
net of dividends received MR B URRE S 324,606 185,110
686,413 541,203

Details of the Group's joint ventures at the end of reporting period is as

REBERNHERRNELLEFBTAT

follows:
Place of incorporation  Proportion of ownership interest and
and principal place voting power held by the Group
Name of joint venture Principal activity of business as at 31 December
R+=A=t+-H
BELEEH TEEE AR R EEEE I ARER A AERD R FISRREL
2017 2016
—E—tE ZTRF
Forever Rich Enterprise Limited Property development Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, 50% 50%
("Forever Rich’) the PRC
Forever Rich Enterprise Limited MEERRS REITEHEHMNT
([Forever Rich])
Haikou Chengjion Green Island londscape engineering  Haikou, Hainan Province, 32.5% 32.5%
landscape Engineering Co., lid the PRC
("Haikou Chengjian’) (Note i]
BORERE BRI IRERLR Bk Ti2 hEEmEEAT
(IO ) (Fa)

Both of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

(i) In March 2016, Haikou Chengjian was established by the Group
and other two shareholders. The Group occupied 32.5% equity
inferests. According to the Articles of Association of Haikou Chengjian,
the Group and other shareholders jointly control Haikou Chengjian.
Therefore, Haikou Chengjian is recognised as a joint venture.

Summarised financial information of a material joint
venture

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's

financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

LA EERGRERENZFEA M TSR

RAHR ©

(i) RIZ—XRFE=A BAREAFEER
FINRARBERKSL © AREE 32 SUAHE -
RIpBOMENERME - NEEREM
PR ARERIEOME - At - BARE
EHERBAEDRE -

EXSELXUBERME
TXHIAEEEERELEENHBER

BE - TXEMBENRERSLERER
RIZ BRI #3RE EAR R M B R AR

BECEBREDENZEFEMBIREA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

e VBRRWE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

26.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)
Forever Rich

26. SEEFER(R)

Forever Rich

2017 2016

—T—tEF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFxT AREFT

Current assets RENEE 1,747,608 2,187,062

Non-current assets IEREEE 233,235 80,484

Current liabilities mEaE 717,177 1,284,166

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: FHEERBESEBSE

2017 2016

—T—tE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFxT AREFT

Bank balance and cash RITEHREIES 160,788 217,743

2017 2016

—T—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREET T

Revenue Was 894,636 1,489,339

Profit for the year FE A 280,286 391,005

Tofal comprehensive income for the year FEEEmIMA LT 280,286 391,005
The above profit for the year includes P FEEREN R

the following:

Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 315 301

Finance income BEWA 26,233 38,331

Income tax expense FrisfiA 93,503 128,818




ZE—EFFH BMEBZRERAF 22/
NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
REPBRRME @)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T—+F+_A=+—HIFFE

26.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 26.8281#£#R(4E)

(Continued)

Forever Rich (Continued) Forever Rich(#&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the VA FBA 75 B BB B B AR A B TS SRR FE R
carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the HEPEERRABENER

consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Net assets of Forever Rich Forever Rich’# & &E 1,263,666 983,380
Proportion of the Group's ownership A& B A Forever Rich#) A #
inferest in Forever Rich T el 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's REE B Forever Richi#z H IR E B
interest in Forever Rich 631,833 491,690
Aggregate information of the joint venture that is not individually WIERIEREGELENELER
material:
2017 2016
—T—tF —EBRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREETTT

Group's share of total losses for the year AEEEGFEEBESE (647) 487)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ AEERZE & EMNERRAEEE
inferests in the joinf venture 54,580 49513
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FT—+tF+-A=1—HIFFE

27.TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 27.FEWiBR - HihrEWRIE R TE

ADVANCE DEPOSITS

fHzE

2017 2016
—T—tF AN
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Trade receivables JE U BR X 169,584 403,969
Less: allowance for doubtful debts TR REREE (25,735) (25,865)
143,849 378,104
Other non+rade receivables EAh3EE 5 W EIE 1,977,481 1,857,713
less: allowance for doubtful debts Vo FRERRME (43,400) (43,400)
1,934,081 1,814,313
Receivables due from related parties FEYRRRE A T FIE
(Note 45.3) (FfF5E45.3) 6,981,132 3,247,268
Advance payments to contractors SE NSNS 1,603,103 1,535,814
Advance deposits for acquisition of UeBE + (s RERTE R S
land use rights 1,120,000 431,886
Other tax prepayments HALTEREL K 786,005 401,781
Total BEt 12,568,170 7,809,166

The receivables due from related parties are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. Non-rade receivable balances,
deposits and advances to third parties are expected to be setiled or
recovered within one year. Other tax prepayments mainly represent
prepayment of value-added tax, tax surcharge during the pre-sale

stage of certain properties.
In general, the Group provides no credit ferm fo its customers.

Trade receivables due from related parties and the third parties
disclosed above include amounts [see below for aged analysis) that
are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable. The following is an aged analysis of
trade receivable that are not impaired based on the sales recognition

date at the end of each reporting period.

EREE AL RBRELRR RERANE
REFEE - IR SRUGIARES - RENTE
NE=THFABHR —FRBEKKE -
HiFR@n AT EERBEEE THEMBA
HIRER MR

AEE—RIGRTFPE{EES -

A EWEOEEEEALRE=TRREE
(BRE DT R T XORREHRD EBBIE A
M AGR B 5 REER R AR AR - oM
REERELENIREANEE - MAERFA
AR BRI SANE] © AT RRF R EBHRR
IRIHEHER B B AR E B R MR SRR iR
#r e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

Ve

e BTSRRI &)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

e
EHE—

F—+F+—H=+—HIFE

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

27.TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 27.fEliBR® + HEWIIERTE

ADVANCE DEPOSITS (Confinued) iz (8
2017 2016
—B—tF —FREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
0-90 days 0-Q0H 138,287 352,512
91-180 days Q1-180H 622 586
181-365 days 181-365H 3,656 25,006
Over 365 days HB3m365H8 5,153 -
147,718 378,104

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RAREEHEE
2017 2016
—T—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Balance af beginning of the year FARER 69,265 56,235
Impairment losses recognised on receivables  FEUGRIERER AR E E5 18 = 13,030
Amounts written off as uncollectible AR BEUR Bl B9 H AR R (130) -
Balance at end of the year FRES 69,135 69,265

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up fo the end of the
reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the

fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired frade receivables amounting to RMB25,735,000 (2016
RMB25,865,000) and impaired non-rade receivables amounting
to RMB43,400,000 (2016: RMB43,400,000) which have been
placed under liquidation. The impairment recognised represents the
difference between the carrying amount of these frade receivables
and the present value of the expected liquidation proceeds. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEBREREESNAIRDIEZER &%
BREUEERE BERR L EE R BEERE D
RIEWEMEERmEEE - ENTPEMRE
AMEERE  REERRNETESR
BR

RARBA P B IE S 8RR E &9 B AR A
R¥25,7350007 (=T —~F : AR¥
25,865,0007T) K & 18 Bl R (B #) At FE IR
TAARYA3,400,0007t(Z2—RF : AR
#43,400,0007) * EENBREFT - i
RHVBE R F R YRR RE BRI
BAFSFOAREL MR ERE - REELEE
A RESF B RS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
REMBERRME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

28.TAX RECOVERABLE 28. T EIFHIE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Enterprise income fax EMSH 259,848 110,445
Land appreciation fax T HbIBEF 453,001 355,634
712,849 466,079

29. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 29. ZRREIERITHERR
2017 2016
—T—tE KT
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Deposits for consfruction and development £ R EYIE LS

of properties 637,669 256,582
Deposit for mortgage loans RIBETIRE 1,342,601 427,558
Deposits pledged for inferestbearing loans it B EF R IR TA L ZIEM

and bank acceptance notes BRNIES 400,000 740,000
Others EHfh 21,225 12,844

2,401,495 1,436,984
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure BEEMIRITERIER RS TAEE 2 H
shortterm banking facilities granted to the Group. The pledged bank IRTTRYE A FIRITEVER - EHEIPRTT
deposits carry inferest at fixed rates which range from 0.3% to 2% FRIREE FEFENF0.3%E2%(ZF—<
[2016: 0.3% to 2% per annum. F 0 0.3%&E2%)5T R °
30. BANK BALANCE AND CASH 30. SRITEHRIAE
2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREET T

Cash at bank and cash in hand is AT SR EERNIRITER MRS

denominated in

RMB ARE 6,954,102 4,847,557
usb ET 733,481 113,534
HKD BT 169,139 834,152

7,856,722 5,795,243




ZE—tFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
REPBRRME @)

N =17

30.BANK BALANCE AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.3%
fo 2% (31 December 2016: 0.3% to 2%) per annum.

31.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—_FT—+FF+-_A=1+—HIFFEF

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds

out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC

government.

As of 31 December 2017, the carry amount of advance from i
customers under supervision is RMB524,631,000 (as of 31

December 2016: RMB371,781,000).

(LIABILITIES)

(i)  Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (i)

financial position represents:

30. SRITHER R & (4])
BITREBIRTIHER =
— N O.3%E2%)FTE ©

ARBAFEHRLBMER

—+tF&+=ZA=+—8 "
1451%}55
T(RZZE—XR"FE+=-A=+—8
371,781,0007T) °

&)

BWEBZRERAA

P FO.3%ZE2%(=F

R BEERAR
738 <7 R BT I RT O BE SLAR ]

,—4@'—#:},@

ERmEERARKE 524,631,000
NN

31.EMBE EEREEE(E

FEMBRR RO FHIBIALS

2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
PRC income tax hEFFFH
Balance brought forward RIS 586,537 261,764
Provision for PRC enterprise income FAHPEIDEFST A (1)
tax for the year (Note 11(i)) 1,345,185 683,587
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR I
(Note 11{i)) 43,458 19,145
Disposal of a subsidiary HEF AR (15)
PRC income tax paid EfREATER (927,196) (377,959)
Balance carried forward iERR L 1,047,969 586,537
PRC land appreciation tax hE B
Balance brought forward R 4 644,885 569,649
Provision for PRC land appreciation FRP IS ER B (FEE1 1)
tax for the year (Note 11(i)) 629,475 324,322
PRC land appreciation tax paid B A B £ R (E (535,317) (249,080)
Balance carried forward EepiEE 739,043 644,885
Total &5 1,787,012 1,231,422
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

31.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax assets recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year were as follows:

31.EMABIE BREBIEEE(R

&) (&)

(i) CHRPEERIEEE :

B A B IR R & RER BT B S 8
P RENSBHIT :

Temporary Temporary

difference difference

on revenue on land

recognition and appreciation

related cost tax and
of sales other accruals Tax losses Total

iR R AR TibsEERE

HERAN THEER
UhEE RibreztEE e it &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT ARETL AREFT
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~5-A—H 131,926 141,249 65,864 339,039
Disposal of subsidiaries HETFRH 4,182 [7.129) (2,921) [14,232)
Additions byl 37017 30,939 11,057 79,013
Realisation i) (64,236 (48,068 - (112,304
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"F+-A=+-AH 100,525 116,991 74,000 291,516
Additions 1 658,620 36,152 - 694,772
Realisation 25 (58,830 (5,299 (58,251 (122,380)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+-F=1+—H 700,315 147 844 15,749 863,908

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax
losses of RMB2,499,758,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB2,569,672,000) available to offset against future profits.
Deferred tax assefs have been recognised in respect of the
tax losses of RMB62,996,000(as at 31 December 2016:
RMB296,000,000) at the applicable income tax rafes of the
respective subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017. No deferred
fax assefs have been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of RMB2,436,762,000 (as at 31 December
2016:RMB2,273,672,000) because the management is of
the view that it is not probable that the individual subsidiaries
concemed can generate profits to utilise the tax losses before
the tax losses become expired. The unrecognised tax losses
for the year ended 31 December 2017 will expire in the

following years ending 31 December.

RN_ZE—+FE+-_A=+—H KEETH
REEARENORDAFBEEBEAAR
#2,499,758,000t(R=E—X~F+=A
=+—H: AR¥2 569 672,0007T) °
—T—+F+-A=+—8  RmREEEER
BRI FRRLEAZ S R EROIRERE
BEAANRE62006000T(R-ZFE—N
F+-—A=+—H : AR¥296,000,000
L) c AREEERABBERFARTAK
A RE A A e M AR FR S B 18 B BT B0 A9
TIsEE  ARTARERRBEEAR
#2 436,762,000t (M= —XF+=A
=+—H: AR¥2,273,672,0007T) ¥R
BELEHRBEE  -REBZ=_T—+F+=A
=+ HIEFENRERREEBENER
HE+tZ-A=1+—BILFEER -
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RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F 1+ - HA=+—HILFE

31.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (Continued)
(i) Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB18,165,000 (31 December
2016:RMB101,233,000). No deferred tax asset has been

recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference

as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences can be

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

1. EMABIE BREBHEEE(R
7)) (&)

ERBEEHIEEE - ()

RBEBR - AEBE AN L
ZHEAANAR®EI8,165000 7T (=
E-XR"F+ZA=+—RH: AR%
101,233,0007T) © BN AFI BEE
A T AN B 2 R A DA 8H P SR B
A - B L % S A IR A

utilised )

RIRLEFRIEEE ©
2017 2016
—FT—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREET T
2017 —E—+F - 311,683
2018 —E2-N\F 373,921 391,210
2019 —ZE-NF 441,071 454,492
2020 —E-FF 708,539 713,571
2021 T4 401,221 402,716
2022 T4 512,010 -
2,436,762 2,273,672

(iii) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year were as follows:

(iii) EEBEEHIERR

BEGARBRREER
5 RENSBIT ;

VIELRIA A (ER

Revaluation
of investment Fair value  Deferred land
properties adjustments  appreciate tax Total
HEmE AREE RiEL i
Bff Fik HEH =5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
At T January 2016 RZZ—R"F—HF—H 580,869 352,831 10,846 944 546
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRTE - 6,162 - 6,162
Additions #1n 162,010 - - 162,010
Realisation 238 (56,812 (64,332) (10,84¢) (131,990
At 31 December 2016 RZE—~F+=A
=f+-A 686,067 294,661 - 980,728
Acquisition of subsidiaries ¢ SR/N - 67,824 - 67,824
Disposal of a subsidiary HEFRT (18,234 - - (18,234)
Additions 10 91,745 - - 91,745
Realisation 2 (83,103) (34,681 - (117,784)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=A
=f+-A 676,475 327,804 - 1,004,279
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FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

31.TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ 31.fEft#HIE EEHRIEEE(E

(LIABILITIES) (Continued) &) (&)
(iv) Net-off of deferred tax assets and liabilities: (iv) MEHBEEHRIESEREE :
2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT
Deferred tax assets recognised EHERIRENIAE E 863,908 291,516
Net-off with deferred tax liabilities BRIETR IR B IR (46,280) (81,089)
Deferred tax assets RAET IR B BE 817,628 210,427
Deferred tax liabilities recognised EHRBELENIARE 1,004,279 980,728
Net-off with deferred tax assets BURIET IR B AR (46,280) (81,089)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIERE 957,999 899,639
32.INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 32.:tEER
2017 2016
—T—tF —EFRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR¥ETT
Current 4EHA
Secured bank loans (Note i and ii) BEMBRITER(E &) - 693,700
Unsecured loans EEAER - 370,000
Current portion of non-current secured BHEIPRITRBEKA NI S
bank loans 1,361,500 1,392,050
Current portion of non-current unsecured ERRRPERAIER S
loans 119,000 646,000
Current portion of equity pledge loans PR AR E SR BN ER R 5 - 611,870
1,480,500 3,713,620
Non-current RH
Secured bank loans (Note i and ii) BEMBRITER(ET Ki) 5,839,967 4,219,000
Equity pledge loan (Note iii) P A A B 3R (MY i) 2,970,000 3,059,351
Unsecured loans EEAER 1,751,845 1,142,170
Less: current portion of non-current secured 3l + BIRRITREFE A
bank loans BIHAEB (1,361,500) (1,392,050)
current portion of non-current unsecured EER BRI D
loans (119,000) [646,000)
current portion of equity pledge loans IR IR E R BN ER AL = (611,870

9,081,312 5,770,601
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BE_F—+F1+-A=1—HAULFE

32.INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Continued) 32.:tBEH(4E)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's secured loans were secured NR-E—+F+=-A=+—8  KXEENE

by the following: EIRE A TF S BIE AR

(i) Properties with a fotal carrying amount of RMB8,205,056,000 (i) N £ B W & E AR
(as at 31 December 2016: RMB7,856,309,000) (Notes 18, 8,205,056,000c(R=ZE—XREFE+=
22, 23 and 24); A=+—8: AR 856,309,000

TORIME (KHIFE18 ~ 22 - 23%24) :

li)  Pledged time deposits of RMB400,000,000 (as at 31 i) A2 a AR 400,000,0007T (7=
December 2016: RMB740,000,000). E-XRFT+_A=+—"H: AR¥

740,000,0007T) B9 6 IR E HIfF K

i) Equity inferests of certain subsidiaries of the Company. i) AEEETFRRNREESR -
The Group's non-current loans were repayable as follows: REERAERBERA T HAREE
2017 2016
—T—tF T REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BiE—FEMEA 3,607,871 3,864,456
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BEMEERFEARN 5,116,441 1,672,145
Over 5 years BEAFEN 357,000 234,000
9,081,312 5,770,601
The effective inferest rate of the year ended 31 December 2017 was REBE-T—+tF+-A=+—HILEFED
as follows: BHRFEMT -
2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBETT
Effective interest rate EIRH%E
Fixed-rate borrowings BEMREES - 2.70%

Variable-rate borrowings AENERER 2.47%-5.46% 3.98%5.57%
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BE—F—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

33.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. FE{TBR RN A H 4t FE - RRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

Payables due to related parties (Note 45.3)  FE{REE A = 5E (MI7E45.3)

— trade related —E 518 64,817 10,715
- non-rade relafed —JFE S 4,966,070 6,282,716
5,030,887 6,293,431
Trade payables JETERFK 9,361,992 5,612,084
Payable on purchase of land use right HE B - (F R 3R 620,555 620,555
Consideration payable on acquisition WiEF R R BB
of subsidiaries 274,484 -
Other taxes payable At R 1 28 173,190 143,226
Inferest payable ERFIE 161,951 180,261
Dividends payable FETRR B 234 238
Other payables and accrued expenses Hh e R RUEMIERE A 1,325,424 1,427,722
11,917,830 7,984,086
Total CH 16,948,717 14,277,517
The aged analysis of frade payables due fo related parties and the FERRAE A+ RE =M RFARER DT
third parties is stated as follows: W
2017 2016
—T—tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARMETTT

0-90 days 0-90H 7,074,106 5,149,707
91-180 days Q1-180H 290,866 24,801
181-365 days 181-365H 881,354 167,304
365 days=3 years 365H—3%F 1,180,483 270,272

9,426,809 5,612,084
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34.

E—t+F+ A=

BONDS

On 23 January 2014, the Company issued 5.50% bonds due
2018 (the "A Bond") with an aggregated nominal value of
RMB1,500,000,000 at a value equal to 99% of the face value. The
A Bond is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Bond carries
interest at the rate of 5.50% per annum, payable semi-annually on

23 January and 23 July in arrears. The A Bond matured and repaid
on 23 January 2018.

On 7 August 2014, the Company issued 4.375% bonds due
2017 (the "B Bond") with an aggregated nominal value of
USD500,000,000 at a value equal to 99.31% of the face value.
The B Bond is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The B Bond
carries interest af the rate of 4.375% per annum, payable semi-
annually on 7 February and 7 August in arrears and will mature on
7 August 2017, unless redeemed earlier. The net proceeds after
deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to approximately
USD492,287,000 (equivalent to RMB3,035,935,000). On 7
August 2017, the bonds matured and were repaid.

On 28 July 2016, the Company issued 3.875% bonds due 2019 (the
"C Bond") with an aggregated nominal value of USD450,000,000
at a value equal to 99.301% of the face value. The C Bond is listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The C Bond carries interest at
the rate of 3.875% per annum, payable semi-annually on 28 January
and 28 July in arrears and will mature on 28 July 2019, unless
redeemed earlier. The net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately USD443,986,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,956,815,000).

On 7 July 2017, the Company issued 4.50% bonds due 2018 (the
"D Bond") with an aggregated nominal value of USD400,000,000
at a value equal to 100.00% of the face value. The D Bond is listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The D Bond carries interest at
the rate of 4.50% per annum, payable semi-annually on 7 January
and 7 July in arrears and will mature on 5 July 2018, unless
redeemed earlier. The net proceeds affer deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately USD398,800,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,697,623,000).

The A Bond, B Bond and C Bond (the “Bonds”) have the benefit of
a keepwell deed from Greenland Holdings Group Company Limited,

the intermediate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Bt RREEERERAT

34. &%

RZT—NE—AZ+=0 ' ARARE
FIEEIBHIEEEITN T — \F2IH4E
HEE AR 1,500,000,0007t895.50E &
#([BBE#H ) - FEFNBBBR LT
FESFREMNESS0EFE - REF—A
“H=HRtA-+=BEFFHRHEL -
FEFN_FT-N\F—A-+=HZHRE

o

ol

RZZB-HWENALR  ARAFRERE
BEOO3I%MEERITR T —tF2H
# {8 500,000,000% ;W 4.375 B B %
([ZE#]) - 2ZEFNEBHRF LT -
LEHBRFRELI7SEFE REFZ
AEtBRENALBEFFHRMHE - X
RIE—EFN\ALBEHA(RRIEERTE
[E) o MR E K FEITRARNAEHIEF
K /492,287, 000X T (HERARK
3,035,935,0007t) - R-E—LFN\AL
B BEFIMADEE -

RIB—RFLAZTNB  AREIRER
EE9.301%MEBEHTN - —NFI
B4 {E450,000,000% T8 3.87 5B (EFH
([AE#H))  REFNEBBIM LT -
REFEFNKRIB/SEHNE  REF—H
“tNABREAZTN\BESFFHRNEE
YR —E-NFLA T N\BEHBERIE
ERFELD) - KM ERBETRARNM
1S FRIBF A /443,986,000% T (FHER
AER#2,956,815,0007T) °

RIZ—+FLtALH  ARRKRERE
E100.00%MEBEETN T —/\F2H
#2 T 18 400,000,000 3 7T #) 4.50 [ & %
(ITHE#D - TEFREBHRALT -
TEFERFENERLIS0EFE REF—H
tAREtALASFFHRREE @ LHR
- N\FLARAIB(RIFEIRERERE
B) - ZBMFEEBITRARNAEHREF
##4 /398,800,000 T (HERARK
2,697,623,0007T) ©

FEx  CEFEAGES((EHDHEELAR
AR AR AR I R B A TR A mlIR A
R RTT RIFRIBEF 2R
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34.BONDS (Continued)

The D Bond has an embedded issuer's redemption option, the

Company may, by giving not less than 15 nor more than 30 days'’
nofice fo the trustee in writing and to the bondholders, redeem the
Bonds, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 101 per
cent of their principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid

interest.

The issuer's redemption option is regarded as an embedded
derivative not closely related to the host contract. The directors
consider the fair value of the issuer redemption option to be

immaterial.

The movements of different components of Bonds are set out below:

34. /5% (&)

TEFEERAXBTABEDE - ARFH
BBAXTEARBFHAAZLTORISH
BTZRIOBMEMBA - RBEERESFE
SRI01%HELEZER R AN EED
2RO ES

EITABERERR SR A QL ETIRER
MRARITETE - EER /BT ABEEE
MRAEBELTEK -

EHFTREDWEBESIIT

Total

ast

RMB’000

AREBTR

As at 31 December 2016 N—_E—XRF+_A=+—H 8,038,774
Net proceeds from bonds issued BITESFSFEE 2,697,623
Interests charged T e 375,792
Inferest paid/payable 2 EAFLE (349,502)
Repayment of bonds B ES (3,360,550)
Exchange realignment PE H (373,479)
As at 31 December 2017 N_E—+F+-_A=1+—H 7,028,658

The Bonds represent the contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the rate of interest determined by the
market instruments of comparable credit status taken into account the
business risk and financial risk of the Company. The effective interest
rate is 4.355%-5.680% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2017.

B SEMNEFENNERRRSRE - 7
REERARARNEBRR &M ERRIEL -
BRESWAEENT S TAEE - 8E_
T—tF+-_A=1t—HLFE  BERFH
% /54.355%%5.680% o
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34.BONDS (Continued)

The Bonds was repayable as follows:

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

34. {55 (&)

BEHBNATFHRESR

At 31 December 2017 2016
R+=-—A=+—H —T—tF —TERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETFTT
Represented by T FIE B R
Bonds within one year —FRNERNES 4,109,487 3,456,778
Bonds &%
After one year but within two years —FREREAN 2,919,171 1,496,432
After two years but within five years MEREBRFRN - 3,085,564
2,919,171 4,581,996
35.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEME 35. ES:RKkstEl

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute 20%-22% of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme 1o fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the refirement benefit scheme is to make

the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB38,407,000
(2016: RMB43,901,000) represents contributions payable to these
plans by the Group af rafes specified in the rule of the plans. As
at 31 December 2017, contributions of RMB840,000 (as at 31
December 2016: RMB996,000) due in respect of the year had not
been paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent fo

the end of the year.

FEEZEEHRTERNERZBREL
RREMNFEZKE - ZFFRRAER
B8 #H & B AH20%-22% MR KB R 5 B4
Ko B ERERN o BLRKENE BT
CRNEE 2 E—BEREHPTRTBAM o

hf[[3

1B R A F X R A R ¥ 38,407,000
T(ZFE—RF : AR¥43,901,0007T)
DASBERZETERATANE XEN
FZEAEBOME - RZF—LF+ A
=t+—H  RFERNEHHKARKES840,000
T(RZE—ARF+ZA=+—0: AR¥
996,000 AN TH B8 - ZFER
HERFEREA -
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36.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. iR 1+

Share award scheme Rty BE Bh=T |

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 3 December ARBRZZE—TF+ A= HRMR M
2010. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and EhEtEl - IR BB EMWENEBABE TR
reward the contribution of the executives and employees (whether ARG BERBREAEENEEA
serving fulltime or parttime) and directors of the Group to the growth 8 - EE(TwEBIRBR REEALEE
and development of the Group through an award of the shares of the IR R ERFTEEAER A&
Company. Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the HBEEREARR ZE——FFR -

Company’s 2012 annual report.

On 2 April 2013, the Board of Directors approved to grant RZE—ZFWNA-_H EFEER
16,103,000 shares of the Company to the eligible participants, of AEBL2EER T 16,103,000 & A A
which 400,000 shares were granted to a director and 2,000,000 & - HP 4000001 F—REE R
shares were granted to four independent non-executive directors 2,000,000 7 BlI% F U BB FERITES
(500,000 shares each) respectively. The shares granted to the (&500,0000%) - B IERITERIREZ
independent non-executive directors were vested immediately. The RDEENEERE - S TR G 2 FE B
vesting date of the remaining granted shares is 31 March 2015. BRZE-—AF=A=+—H-

Movements in the number of shares held for the Share Award A1 SR =T EIFT I RO BB B T -

Scheme is as follows:

Shares
held for
the Share Awarded
Award Scheme shares
idviped e
PRt BRI
(thousand) (thousand)
(Fr) (FAR)
Outstanding as of 31 December 2017 NR-ZT—+FE+—-_HA=+—HK
and 31 December 2016 —E—XRF+=-_A=+—H
W ARTTE 22,697 -
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of shares held for the REZZ—tHF+-A=+—0  KRiHEB
Share Award Scheme was RMB49,279,000 (as at 31 December BT RO MEREE A AR 49 279,000
2016: RMB49,279,000). TMRZE—R"F+_A=+—8: AR¥
49,279 ,0007T) °
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no HE_Z—+ER-Z-—RE+TA=+—
expenses in relation to share-based payments is charged to HIEFEW BN ERNITERE B M

administrative expenses in profit or loss. HBRFX -
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37.SHARE CAPITAL

37.|’&

The Group and the Company
as at 31 December
2017 and 2016

FEEREXAT
RZF—tERZFT—RE
+=-A=+—H
No. of shares Amount
BRinEE &8
(thousand) HKD'000
(FR&) FAT
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.5 each FREEO. 5B TH L @A 7,000,000 3,500,000
Convertible preferred shares of BREEOC. 5B ITH) AT R SR AR
HKDO.5 each 3,000,000 1,500,000
Tofal ait 10,000,000 5,000,000

The Group and the Company
as at 31 December
2017 and 2016

FREREFAT
R-ZB—tERZF—FE
+-—A=+—H
No. of shares Amount
I8 E &8
(thousand) RMB'000

(FA%) AREET T

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
At 1 January and 31 December

B 2BOTRAR
R—A—BAkt+-A=+—H 2,793,677 1,132,855
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37.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital

(i)

(ii)

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entfitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at any general meetfings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual

assefs.

Convertible preference shares (“CPS”)

The holders of CPS will not have the right to attend and
vofe af a general meeting (except for the winding up of the
Company or for any resolution to vary or abrogate the rights
or privileges of such holder or vary the restrictions to which
the CPS are subject). The conversion period is any time after
issue, provided that the conversion right will be suspended to
the extent that it would result in the Company failing to comply
with the public float requirement. Each CPS [at the option
of the holder) will be convertible at any time (and without
payment of any additional consideration) to ordinary shares
on a one to one basis. Each CPS will confer on the holder
thereof the right to receive dividend pari passu with holders
of ordinary shares on the basis of the number of ordinary
shares into which each CPS may be converted and on an as
converted basis. On a disfribution of assets on liquidation,
winding up or a dissolution of the Company, the assets and
funds of the Company available for distribution: [a] will first be
paid to the holders of CPS pari passu among themselves in
respect of the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the CPS
held by them; and (b) the remaining assets will be distributed
pari passu fo the holders of any class of shares (including the
CPS). The CPS will be transferable without any restriction by
the holders thereof. The CPS will be non-redeemable. No
application will be made for the listing of the CPS on the Stock

Exchange or any other stock exchange.

No changes in the authorised and issued share capital of the

Company during the year.

37. Bx& (&)

EEREBITIRE
(i) ZEkK

(ii)

BREFEABRBENE IR K
B UBRERRRMEMERREAS I
RERE —BIRNES —ZA L
2EK T - AL BERIEIAARR AR
HREEFHRSERN -

W St oem

AR E IR ([ AT SR BT IR /)
AR E R E A EE L E R
RABRNE ERAMERERRER
S ERABER AR A A 2N
Y5 S AT BB A B SR AR P 2 2 BR
ZERDRERRIRSN) - BB RETT
BOEMAER  EHRSEBAARE
FETEFAARFRERT - UER
RSP - SRATERELRR
FEANEER) SRR (B BAXN
EREIME) IZ—H—EEBR AT
B - BT EIRE IR T
BAZHEEEBEFEAREZWE
REERN  BESRERAEHRESR
PR TR AR 2 BB SR B At E AR
BE T AE®% - EARRBR B
ERWBRDIREE - ARAAHD
RWEERES : (o) SEAFAEFER
BRI A AR BB EL RN
ERREEABEANBRELERSHE
AXA - MR EzBAERSEWA « &
(b)&r T & EAS AR RII ) (B
AEREER)NHEANIK - MKE
ZEERFHA - ATERETRZE
B NEE T SR E RS T AR
Bl o ATEBEERAAED o ST g
S Y 68 4488 5 PR T B B2 AT K AR AT EL A
BHR S ETMIRH A °

ARTEPVEERERTRABFED -
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38.SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(a) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by

the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

(b) Merger reserves
The merger reserves represent the difference between the
Company's share of the nominal value of the paid-up capital
of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the

ordinary shares issued by the Company.

() Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the shares repurchased which has been paid out of the

Company's distributable reserves.

(d) PRC statutory reserves
Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the arficles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors. The sfatutory reserves consist

of:

(i) General reserve fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the general reserve
fund were made in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company's subsidiaries and were

approved by the respective boards of direcfors.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund can
be used 1o cover previous years' losses, if any, and may
be converted info capital in proportion fo equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the balance affer
such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered

capital.

(i) Enterprise expansion fund
Transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries and

were approved by the respective boards of directors.

For the entity concemed, the enterprise expansion fund
can be used for business development purposes and for
working capital purpose. This fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation. Transfers to this fund must
be made before distribution of dividends to the equity
holders.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT
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38.

39.

ended 31 December 2017
tFF=—A=F+—HIFE

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(Continued)
() Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property reclassified
from owner-occupied fo investment properties. For such
reclassifications, the cumulative increase in the fair value of
the property at the date of reclassification in excess of any
previous impairment losses is included in the revaluation

reserve.

PERPETUAL SECURITIES

On 27 July 2016 (the “Issue Date’), the Group issued USD
denominated senior perpetual capital securities ["Perpetual
Securities’) with an aggregate principal amount of
USD120,000,000. The Perpetual Securities confer the holders a
right to receive disfributions at the applicable distribution rate from the

Issue Date semi-annually in arrears in USD.

The principal terms of the Perpetual Securities were disclosed in the

Group's 2016 consolidated financial statements.

As the Perpetual Securities only impose contractual obligations on the
Group to repay principal or to pay any distributions under certain
circumstances which are at the Group's discretion, they have in
substance confer the Group an unconditional right to avoid delivering
cash or other financial asset fo setile contractual obligations, therefore
they do not meet the definition for classification as financial liabilities
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. As a result, the
whole instrument is classified as equity, and distributions if and when

declared are treated as equity dividends.

Distribution of USD6,750,000 (equivalent to RMB45,838,000] has
been provided and paid by the Company for the year.

38. Bt (E R fGEiE (48)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group conducts its operations in the PRC and accordingly is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These include
risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and
legal environment, influence of national authorities over pricing

regulation and competition in the industry.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial

insfruments:

. market risk (including currency risk and inferest rate risk)
° credit risk

o liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure fo each of
the above risks, and the Group's obijectives, policies and processes

for measuring and managing risk.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group's risk management framework. Management
establishes policies to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, fo set up appropriate risk limits and confrols, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limifs. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly fo reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities. Through training and management standards
and procedures, management aims fo develop a disciplined and
constructive confrol environment in which all employees understand

their roles and obligations.

40.1 Categories of financial instruments

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

40. £fITH

AEBAEFBELERYE  RAXBERER
BEARRFE  HhBRERE  KBERES
BRI BRBEERERENNZERITE
BREERR

REEFRNSMIAEFUTRER
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AEEGEERARNEE - BEREF
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EEEERAREYYEERAEENARE
BRE - EEEBRYBRER T HANMDN
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MIEHEIEA R ZRRESER G SBEA -
[\ E TR ORI R A E BT TR B A S BR
MSRENAEBRLEDNEL - EEE
BAREIIMERRERER  BHERYA
RN RERMEMIETIRR  FEFEET
MTEREHBBESNAERETR -

40.1 £R4TEEHR

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFx AREET T
Financial assets SREE
Total bank balances and cash IRITEBR IR BT 7,856,722 5,795,243
Loans and receivables B E N IE 9,059,063 5819,915
Financial assets carried at FVTPL BRARBEYENESHNESREE - 485,829
Available for sale investments AEEHERE 174,567 174,567
Total &5 17,090,352 12,275,554
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost AR 34,365,763 31,650,243
Financial liabilities carried at FVTPL BARBEIIENESHNESREE 98,178 329,543
Total &5 34,463,941 31,979,786
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. €T R(4E)

40.2 Foreign currency risk management
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuations in exchange
rates between RMB and HKD/USD. The exposure in HKD/
USD arises mainly from the Group’s bank balances and cash,
frade and other receivables, trade and other payables, Inferest-

bearing loans, and Bonds.

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures manages the net
exposures to this risk by utilizing forward foreign exchange

contracts.
The management closely monitors foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency

40.2 SMEEPREE
AEETEMEARKEET FLME
KRBHER - BT/ ETHRBREERE
AEBRITHEBKEIRE - BURRFRE LR
WsoE - R R EAMERNFOR - SRR
RRES -

BRMMNEHBENEREERARE  A&E
BRERINESKERFRAR -

BEEETEINERRI ENTERE
R EARINERR

R|MERR  AEBEUEBEERER AR

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities af the HEMINEEREEELT ©
end of the reporting period are as follows.
Denominated in HKD 2017 2016
LIETTEHE —E—tF —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
Trade and other receivables JFE UK B 3k R EL A R LK R TR 73,769 88,358
Bank balance and cash RITEBREES 169,139 834,397
Trade and other payables JREASH AR R e LAt FE A5 5RIR (953,698) (375,28¢)
Inferestbearing loans HEER (326,001) (1,227,970)
Overall exposure FalEl (1,036,791) (680,501)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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40.2 Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

ZE—tFFH

40. €T R(E)

BWEBZRERAA

40.2 VSRR EE(ER)

Denominated in USD 2017 2016
LAETTEHE —T—tF —FT—RF

RMB'000 RMB'O00

ARETR AREETTT
Trade and other receivables JFE Ui B 3% B L A R LK R TE 2,356 14
Bank balance and cash RITEREE S 733,481 113,413
Bonds % (5,528,808)  (6,542,342)
Trade and other payables JEAS BRI HoAth & 15 SR IR (1,687,053) (1,617,195)
Inferestbearing loans SEEW (1,718,307) (2,525,068)
Overall exposure 48 [ (8,198,331) (10,571,178)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis IMERRE ST

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
[2016: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% represents management's assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensifivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rafes. A
positive number below indicates an increase in posttax profit
where RMB strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For
a 5% weakening of RMB against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and the

amounts below would be negative.

TRER  EAREHEUTFINETE
—ANEF  SHRMERT

KEESH(—F

FEENBRE - SRNEBREHSE
A BRSNS FE K BEEY Y FTA - BRRE

DMEBERGAINETE 2 EME

B - SN B R IR 5% R

REFERAZREREE - THEHKTR
ARG BEEBFHES%E AR R
EAIEN o AR LAREINERZE

5% HafefRRSERARNEE
THEeEEERAH -

2017 2016
—T—tE ZERF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARETTT
Profit or loss i Mg 18
HKD BT 51,840 25,519
usb EV 409,917 398,212
Equity =
HKD BT 51,840 25,519
usDh eI 409,917 398,212
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

40.2 Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

40. 2RI TR (&)
40.2 SMESEPEER(4R)

Forward foreign exchange contracts EHIMESH)
The Group enters info forward foreign exchange confracts fo REBRTERSNES HIABEETT
manage the exposure of foreign exchange risk arising from ESR R EHEERNINERE KRR o

USD loans and bonds.

TRHFAR-_F—tEF+-A=1—
ARRFREDINERL -

The follow table details the forward foreign currency contracts,

outstanding at 31 December 2017

40.3

Average Fair value
exchange Foreign Notional assets
Ovutstanding contracts rate currency value liabilities
AREE
REBEH FERE it EHEE EERE
USD’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FEX ARBTR ARETRT
Cash flow REnE
Buy USD =E
within one year —FR 7.0251 200,000 1,405,020 (98,178)

Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed fo fair value inferest rafe risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank deposits and bonds (see Notes 30 and 34

for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variablerate bank balance [see Note 30 for details)
and variable-rate interest-bearing loans (see Note 32 for

details).

The Group manages the net exposure to interest rate risks
by maintaining sufficient lines of credit to obtain acceptable
lending costs and by moniforing the exposure to such risks on
an ongoing basis. When appropriate and at fimes of interest
rate uncertainty or volafility, inferest rafe swaps may be used to

assist in the Group's management of interest rate exposure.

40.3 FlZEEpREE

A& EEYEBEEHRRTERE
B35 (R RHE30R34) A A BE
R A -

AEEIRE B ] E R RIRTE R
(FfB ﬁW?S’O)&T“ﬂ?ﬁ B
(FHBRMEI2) RS REN KR

B o

AEBEBBERAERNEEREAE
fEERARRR AR KT MR B E
EEZERBREENEFREE - £
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
40.3 Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensifivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure fo interest rates for non-derivative instruments
af the end of the reporting period. For variable rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding

for the whole year.

(a)  Inferest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's inferestbearing borrowings and bonds by the
end of reporting period.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

40. @R TR(E)
40.3 FIEEIZEE(R)

FEBRE 7 HT

TR 5 TR IR s BR IR AT
ETAMERBMERE o 3hA &=
BEME @ MEZDONE DHERRNE
mﬁﬁﬂiik1aiaﬁ1%/i\§ﬁ¥££¢i’]7%ﬂi

o
Cﬁa

o) FIEER
T%%ﬁ%ﬁ¢%$$ﬁgm%
SERRESTIELR

2017 2016
—F-t% ZEF
Effective Effective
interest rate RMB'000 inferest rafe RMB'000
BRfHE ARETR ERAE  ARETR
Fixed rate borrowings BT BEE
Secured interest bearing loans B B ER - - 2.70% 693,700
Bonds &% 4.81% 7,028,658 485% 8,038,774
7,028,658 8732474
Variable rate borrowings oA
Secured interest bearing loans BRI EER 4.70% 8,809,967 4.70% 7,278,351
Unsecured inferest bearing loans BB ET 4,08% 1,751,845 4.94% 1,512,170
10,561,812 8,790,521
Total borrowings eyt 17,590,470 17,522,995
Fixed rate borrowings as EEFIRLESHESRE
percentage of fofal bormowings BAK 40% 50%
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

ended 31 December 2017
tFF—A=1—HILFE

40.3 Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(b]  Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been defermined
based on the exposure to interest rates for interest-
bearing loans at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting inferest rate risk internally to key management

personnel and represents management's assessment of

the reasonably possible change in interest rafes.

If the market lending interest rafes had been 100 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's posttax profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 would have decreased/increased
by RMB79,214,000 (2016: decreased/increased
by RMB80,514,000). This is mainly attributable to the

Group's exposure fo interest rates on its variable-rate

bank balance and cash and inferest-bearing loans.

40.4 Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due

fo failure fo discharge an obligation by the counterparties and

financial guarantees provided by the Group arises from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised

financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement

of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in Note

42.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for defermination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

40.4

40.5

Credit risk management (Continued)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure fo credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 27.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
influences on credit risk, but fo a lesser extent. At 31 December
2017, The Group's concentration of credit risk as 25% (at
December 2016: 79%) of the total trade receivables was due

from the largest counterparty.

Bank balance and cash and restricted bank deposits are
placed with a group of banks and financial institutions which

management considers have good credit ratings.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's policy is
to regularly monitor ifs liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
banks to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

ferm.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of

financial assets and liabilities.

40. RIT A (4E)

40.4

40.5
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

40.5 Liquidity risk management (Continued)
40.5.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial

liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables

have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash

flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on

40. &R TR (%)
40.5 WENEEMEER(5])

4051 T RFIE ARSI
TREFILA S B A i B K AR
BT S RE EIR T AR
MHEABIBER - TRIVEAE
EAERENFNRT B RE
% RESHABRORURRS

which the Group can be required to pay. MEBEE -
Weighted Within Within
average Within ~ 2years 5 years
effecive  1yearor  butover  butover Over Carrying
inferest rate - on demand lyear  2years  5years Total  amount
MRy -FRd WERE  EERE 1%
ERHE BEX  -ENL mENE Wt it W
% RMBO0O  RMBOCO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O RMB'000
bOAREBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETRT  ARETR
31 December 2017 “E-tF+Zf=1-H
Trade ond ofher payables EREZREMERNFE - 16,775,293 - - - 16,775,293 16,775,293
Voriable interest rate loans TEFIEER 459% 1,554,012 3,866,402 5947369 493,484 11,861,267 10,561,812
Bonds &% 4.81% 4,327,678 3,054,330 - - 7,382,008 7,028,658
Financiol quarantees issued: ~ BLiH ARIBIEIER :
Maximum amount quaromeed — REZRE - 9,922,333 - - - 9922333 -
32,579,316 6,920,732 5,947,369 493,484 45940901 34,365,763
31 December 2016 “EE+t-A=1-H
Trade ond ofher payables ERERREMERNTE - 1385976 270272 - - 14127248 14,127,248
Variable inferest rae loans AEHEER 474% 3171402 4133753 1883748 330479 9519382 8,790,521
Fixed inferest rote loans EEHZER 2.70% 712411 - - - 71240 693,700
Bonds &5 485% 3592311 1602214 3242614 - 8497139 8038774
Financiol quarantees issved: Bt ARBTEER -
Moximum amount gucron?eed RaERE - 7274193 - - - 7274193 -
28607293 6,000,239 5,126,362 330479 40,130,373 31,650,243
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. &R TH(4E)

40.5 Liquidity risk management (Continued)
40.5.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
The amounts included above for financial guarantee
confracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be forced to setile under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that such an amount will not be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the

counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

40.6 Fair value measurements
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial

liabilities.

40.6.1 Fair value of the Group’s financial asset and
financial liability that is measured at fair value on
a recurring basis
A certain financial asset is measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined,
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised based
on the degree to which the inputs fo the fair value

measurements is observable.

40.5 mENMERIREE(E
4051 mEHER f/@ﬂ/ﬁ’?ﬂé@ (&)

LI BERE NS RIIERER
HFEMFHPARE - ARER
BA LR EE BN ERD
REELHE o RERRE RO
H AEERSEEMLHTE
SRR E TR « AW - It
AR EFEMRERTR
TEHERRAIARMEE) - Mk
FARERTIBURN ZIERH B F
BFANTRERFEREE
BEERRTTEE -

40.6 AREEE
LM R A A R B A A 508
ERMAERSMABNA R EENE

4061 FEBEULE M BERLE

B EHTHEERHMEE
HIR R 1EE

REREPRR - BRESHEE
BAREBEFE - TREHRNE
B DERREeREERER
BEARBENMETE - ARR
BARBEFERABEN UE
EMIEEMAENRAAEENE
MR EEER -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

40.6 Fair value measurements (Continued)

40.6.1 Fair value of the Group’s financial asset and

financial liability that is measured at fair value on

40. 2RI TR (&)
40.6 AREETE(E)
1061 FEBUAEEEEEZ DA
it B2 HEEREHAR

a recurring basis (Continued) HIR 1B E ()
Fair values Fair value  Valuation fechniques
Financial assets as of 31 December hierarchy  and key inputs
SHEE RtZBE+-BHAREE MEERS HESIREERANGE
2017 2016
“3-tE E5F
Forsign curency sctured forvord B BIRA: EEHIE Liability = Assef - level2  Discounted cosh flow.
cortracts classfied os financiol RERNEREEN RMB98,178,000 RMB48S,829,000 BZE  Future cosh flows are esfimated based on
assels caried ot FVTPL [Note 21) INELRME A BfE- BE- forward exchange rates (from observable
(kist21) ARH98,178,000%  ARH485,829,000T forward exchange rates af the end of the
reporing perioc] and contracied forwerd rofes,
Uob'\\iry - discounted o a rofe that reflects he credit risk
RMB329 543000 of various counterpartes
8-
ARE329 543 0007 TREgiE -

40.6.2Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value
Except as defailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated

ARESRENBEEMINES (RE8
EERTBRNEMEES) RaNE
EXfGt FRTREIRRSRETEL
WiEERER

062 FHLURREETSEHTHE
EREHEBHNAEE
B TRATFELS) - EERBES
MBRERAMERNSREER
ERBENREEREAREEBR

financial statements approximate their fair values. e
2017 2016
Bt TE-RE

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
fREE AfREE EEE RAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR UN: ARETT ARETT
Bonds &% 7,028,658 7,004,283 8,038,774 7,993,453
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BE—_FT—+FF+-_A=1+—HIFFEF

41.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that enfities in the Group
will be able to continue as going concems while maximising the
refurn fo stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

year.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors ifs capital
structure on the basis of a net gearing ratio (total interest-bearing
loans and bonds less cash and cash equivalents (including restricted
cash) over fotal equity). Therefore, the Group defined debts as

inferestbearing loans and bonds.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements.

The Group's risk management committee reviews the capital structure
of the Group on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
committee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with

each class of capifal.

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

4]. EXERE

a&r

AEBEREAUBRAEERRANDFRES
BERBFECELELE  FKFEBIE
SERGETE - AREAIER AR - A&
ERERREEFRETE

RIBITREN  AEEABBELTFEGH
BERFEFRERERERREEEY
(BRI ERIARREE)ERE
EERNFBHERE - Qitt - AKBEREFER
RETBERRES -

ARRIWEZINEIEINEE AR EFTARIR

AEENEREEZBSEELFHAREN
BEARBETERR - ZESFRBEDY &
ZRESRAREERESHENER -

WEHIRAOBERLL KT ©

2017 2016

—T—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETTT

Debts 518 17,590,470 17,522,995
Bank balance and cash RITHEBR MRS (7,856,722) (5,795,243)
Net debts SFEIR 9,733,748 11,727,752
Equity 2 11,584,890 9,723,694
Net debts to equity ratio HEIR(G R LR 84% 121%
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BE—F—+FE+ - f=1—HIFE

42.FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 42, TSR

As at the reporting date, the Group has issued the following

guarantees:

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for certain
purchasers of property units and provided financial guarantees fo
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. The outstanding
guarantees amounted fo RMB9,922,333,000 as at 31 December
2017 (as at 31 December 2016: RMB7,274,193,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i] the issuance of the redl
esfate ownership cerfificate which will generally be available within
six months affer the buyer takes possession of the relevant properties;
and (ii) the safisfaction of the mortgaged loan by the buyer of the

properties.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors consider the possibility of default by
the parties involved fo be remote. Accordingly, no value has been
recognised in the statement of financial position as af 31 December

2017 and 2016.

REHE - AEEDZEHUTHER

AEBEAIEDMEBNME HIRHIZE
B UHZEETNERETRETH
ER -RZFE—+F+=-_A=+—HB" B
REHMERAS AR O022,333,000 5T
(R—BE—RE+-A=1+—0: AR¥
7,274,193,0007) » ZEHERUTRE
HRIARIE - (IR ERT AR (—REE
FHEEBBMEENERRNEL) R K(ii)
MERFERRBERE -

ARBEERR  ARBEUBEREONE
RERBHOAABERE MEERREH
RIHITEQNE RN - Bt - WER_-F
—tFRZT-AF+TA=+—BNH%
ARRR P REREFIEE ©

43. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 43. EEHERH

The Group as lessee

FHREERAEA
2017 2016
—F—tF —ERE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT

Minimum lease payments paid FAZTEERE 2 HEBENRK

under operating leases during the year

24,410 29,698

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

REEHR - AEEF T5I2 8 2 TR
REREMB RRSEHEE M FAALE :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 10,153 10,384
In the second to fifth year inclusive MFRBERFR 35,221 18,518
Over five years BERTE 13,793 -
Total =y 59,167 28,902

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain office premises. leases are negotiated for a term ranging
from 1 to & years with fixed rentals.

REMENFEAEERE THIEMEN
ENEE - KERERZBERNF—EXF
2 REERE -
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43.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 43.&EZ2HEREE(E)

(Continued)
The Group as lessor AEEESHBEAN
2017 2016
—T—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREETTT

Property renfal income, net of negligible MEBELWE - MRFALEEED

oufgoings under operating leases NEERSZ
during the year 36,321 41,609
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with MBEHR - NEBBRBF R FIIARKR
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REERRK
2017 2016
—T—tE ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREET T
Within one year —FR 52,422 21,211
In the second fo fifth year inclusive MEBREBRFR 184,531 64,221
Over five years BBRF 44,335 28,634
Total a5t 281,288 114,066
Property renfal income represents rentals receivable by the Group. MEHSREEAEBREES - LHEER
leases are negotiated for a term ranging from 1 to 10 years with ZHEENF—2+F 2B RETHES -
fixed rentals.
44, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, A K1E
2017 2016
—T—tF —EBRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREETTT

Property under development and investment B ET4MB AR AR E BTSRRI
properties under development contracted BRPDERERPIREYE

but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 11,138,547 6,571,193
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i

Tt F A=t —ALEE

45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As Greenland Holdings, the holding company of the Company, is
controlled by the PRC government, the directors consider that the
Company is ultimately controlled by the PRC government and the
Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the PRC government. Apart from the transactions with Greenland
Holdings and ifs subsidiaries, and other related parties as disclosed
in Note 45, the Group also conducts business with other government
related entities in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, these transactions are considered
as individually and collectively insignificant to the operation of the
Group. The directors consider those govemnmentrelated entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group's business transactions

with them are concerned.

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this nofe. Details
of transactions between the Group and other related parties are

disclosed below.

45.1 Related party disclosure
During the year, transactions with the following parties were

considered as related-party fransactions:

Name of Party
AREAALE]

45.FEATR S

B R BB A RIAR AR B o B IR
26l - FEER /AN R &L BB
> MAREQEENKBERERER
PEBTATES] - KRZEGIRBEEEATE
NHERIELE - [REGBEREE T AT
IARMIFEAS BN EMEEALETR S
S AEEERBEBBIZ I EEAM KT
HABREEBER - ARRIEZRR %
ERXHEREBEHASENEEMS LT
WEBEKN - EERA > RARBEZER
FFHERER CHNEBRISME - RFBRT
HRAERABLE=T] -

AABEFRA(TIARBNEEAL)ZH
MEBRER S CREARBRYEE - AE
AW REREE - AEBEEMEIEA L 2
MR ZHBWELT

45.1 BEEANTIRE
FREATALEITNZ SR AMIE
ATZS

Relationship

FAfR

Greenland Holdings
S SuEalily

Mr. Wang Weixian
FRELE

Boom Rich Investments Limited

Boom Rich Investments Limited

SPG Investment Holdings Lid
SPG Investment Holdings Ld

Shanghai Greenland Taiyang Property Co., Limited
|"Greenland Taiyang’)
PR EEBR AR ([ GG |)

Ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company

ZAYNIE St

Honorary Chairman of the Company; Substantial

shareholder of the Company
ARBEELIFE  ARREERR

Shareholder of the Company
ZAYNSINE S

Shareholder of the Company
ZAYNSIE S

A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

AT R By F 2 B
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45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45.FEANLTXS(E)

(Continued)
45.1 Related party disclosure (Continued) A5.1 BREANTHRE (&)

Name of Party Relationship

BREAANLTEE [E20E

Shanghai Greenland Construction Engineering Co., Lid. A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
("Greenland Engineering’)

EBMEETERRAR([HHIE]) FR AR I AR HI Y T A F)

Greenland Hong Kong Investment Group Limited A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

FBBREEEGRAR FR AR I AR HI Y T A F)

Shanghai Greenland Construction (Group) Co., Lid A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
("Greenland Construction’)

gt (B ARAE ([ 4R ) FR AR MBI AR AT 518 T2 7

Shanghai Senmao Landscape Co, . ltd. A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
"Greenland Senmao’)

EBgHARKEMNER AR ([ #hFHFE]) FR AR IZE AR HI ) F A B

Vite White Infernational Limited ("VWIL') A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

HRFEER AR AR ([ 4Y58R]) FR AR AR HI ) F A B

Greenland (Group) Taiyuan Property Co., Lid A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

FEERREEZARAR FR AR IZE AR HI ) F A B

Greenland Financial Investment Holdings Group., Lid A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

it e RS B B AR AR FR AR IZE AR HI A F A B

Nanchang Greenland Shenbo Property Co., Lid A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

MESMAEEXERAA FR AR IZE AR HI ) F A B

Nanchang Greenland Shenfei Property Co., ltd A subsidiary confrolled by Greenland Holdings

MESHEBAREXBRAA FR AR IZE AR HI ) F A B

Nanchang Greenland Shenxiang Property Co., Lid A subsidiary confrolled by Greenland Holdings
B ENEREERAR FR AR IZE AR HI ) F A B

Nanchang Greenland Shenxin Property Co., Lid A subsidiary confrolled by Greenland Holdings
BB EEERAR FR AR IZE AR HI ) F A F)

Shanxi Greenland Deyi Property Co., Lid A subsidiary confrolled by Greenland Holdings

WP IS — B AR AR A AR IZBAE HIR) T2 7

259



260  GREENLAND HONG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)
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45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45.FEALTXS(E)

(Continued)

45.1 Related party disclosure (Continued) 45.1 BN LT HE(R)
Name of Party Relationship
AEAALES Bz

Shanghai Greenland (Group) Jiangxi Shenjiang Property A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
Co., lid ["Jiangxi Shenjiang")

PEpEETRRTIEEERAR(IESI)) A AT R Y F 2 B
Shanghai Greenland Kanghe Property Co., ltd A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
EESIMERE X ER AT A AT R ey F 2 B
Nanchang Zhuoyue Property Development Co., lid A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
e EHFEEREARDR A AT R ey F A B

Greenland Financial Overseas Investment Group Co., ltd. A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings
Greenland Financial Overseas Investment Group Co., ltd. FR AR I A2 Il 80 TR A

Greenland Chan Ba Property Co., Lid. A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

HINEEEREXERAT AAT I R ey F A B

Greenland Xi'an Changsheng Industry Co., Lid. A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

I EER T ERERZAR AT AAT I R ey F A B

Xi'an Yuhuayongjia Property Co., Lid A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

AZBEXREXFRAT AAT I RE By F A B

Nanchang Greenland Shenrong Property Co., ltd A subsidiary controlled by Greenland Holdings

MEMRAREXBRAR AAT M RGE By F 2 B

China Resources Land Co., lid ("China Resources”) Ultimate controlling shareholder of Super Talent

EHEMARAG(EHER ) R B BRASIEAR AR

China Resources Land (Suzhou) Development Co., ltd A subsidiary controlled by China Resources
("China Resources Suzhou’)

ERHEMEN) BRER DA ([ ZEFEEFM ) HEHE RGN TR

China Resources Land (Xuzhou) Development Co., lid A subsidiary controlled by China Resources
("China Resources Xuzhou')

EHEMERNM) BRER DA ([ ZEFEERM ) HERE N TFRA

China Resources Land Nanjing Development Co., Lid A subsidiary controlled by China Resources

|"China Resources Nanjing’|

FHEHERERARQA([ERBER]) mERE TGN FRF



Bt RREEERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—F—+FE+-A=+—HIFE
45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 .FAEATR5(E)
(Continued)

45.1 Related party disclosure (Continued) A5.1 BREANTHRE (&)

Name of Party
AREANLERE

Relationship

A%

Great China Properties Holdings Limited
A EMEEIR A R AR

Xu Fu Co. Limited ("Xu Fu")
BEERAR(TRE])

CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Lid. ("CIFI")
rEERR (RE) AR AR([HEHE])

Super Talent Resources Limited ("Super Talent’)

BEERAEAR(EE )

Guangxi Real Estate (Group) Co., ltd

EFE(RE)BRAF

Wuxi Metro Group Co., Lid

EHEEEER QR

Yingxiang Holdings Limited

EAEREEER AR

Shanghai Yiwo investment and management Co., lid

EERRREERARAF]

A non-confrolling equity holder of Success Yield Group
Limited
RS E B R A AR IR R A A

A non-confrolling equity holder of
Xu Bao Co., lid ("Xu Bao BVI'|
BEBRAF([EEBVI) AR AERE A

Ultimate controlling shareholder of Xu Fu

JB & ) B AR R AR AR

A non-controlling equity holder of Xuzhou Mingzhi
Property Co., lid ("Xuzhou Mingzhi’)

TRINSRE I ER AR A A ([HRINERE ) &Y 3EE AR
AR A

A non-confrolling equity holder of Guangxi Greenland
Xingtie Property Co., lid ("Guangxi Xingtie') and
Guangxi Greenland Xintie Property Co., Lid
("Guangxi Xintie")

BEFirt i EEAR AR ([ EEESE ) M=
PrERE B A

A non-controlling equity holder of VWuxi Guangcheng
Metro Above-Station Property Development Co., Ltd
["Wuxi Guangcheng’)

EiH R FEBEXAR AR ([ EBER )
FEPEIRBAERF B A

A non-controlling equity holder of Wujiang Shenying
Real Estate Development Co., lid ("Wujiang
Shenying’)

RTHEFEERZEARAR ([ RITHE )M
SRR RSB A

A non-controlling equity holder of Suzhou Lvwo
Amusement Equipment Co., lid ("Suzhou Lvwo')

BRINAOR PR A PR A A ([ BRINERIR |) B FEE AR
PR A A
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45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
45.1 Related party disclosure (Continued)

Name of Party
AREAALES

45.FEATRX B (&)

45.1 BREAN LR (4R)

Relationship

(153

Shanghai Yingkun
labi=3 ]
Guangxi Jinyao
Vit

Guangxi Jiuguwan

E AL

Haikou Chengjian.
psgmbrigd

Forever rich

An associate of the Group
REEME QT
An associate of the Group
RE B E N T

An associate of the Group
N SE )L N

A joint venture of the Group
REBEEDRE

A joint venture of the Group

Forever rich AEEG &R
45.2 Transactions 45235
2017 2016
—F—tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT
Services provided MR
Greenland Chan Ba Property GHEBEGEEAREANT
Co., ltd 1,002 -
Greenland Xi'an Changsheng I EBRT R ESE
Industry Co., Lid BRAE] 73 -
Shanghai Yingkun HEEE 1,347 -
Xi'an Yuhuayongjia Property Co., lid ~ FaZefa{bkmEEBR AR 7,165 -
9,587 -
Receipt of construction services W ER 2 2 AR 7%
Greenland Construction 4R 167,671 841,145
Creenland Engineering 4R T2 1,929,084 548,755
Greenland Senmao SR FRTK 115,198 176,098
2,211,953 1,565,998
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BE T —+FF+_A=+—HIFE
45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 .FEANTRZS(E)
(Continued)
45.2 Transactions (Continued) 45.2 % 5 (48)
2017 2016
—T—tF —BRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Interest expenses incurred BEEF BRI
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei HERREEAR AR
Property Co., lid 3,829 -
Jiangxi Shenijiang JIPERT 11,558 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenxiang MEMREAEERRAR
Property Co., ltd 12,328 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenbo AR RIEERARAR
Property Co., lid 1,283 -
Nanchang Zhuoyue Property HERBEMEREERAR
Development Co., ltd 12,825 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenxin MR EEAR AR
Property Co., ltd 15,198 -
57,021 -
Provide entrusted loan RMHETER
China Resources EHEH - 380,230
Receipt of entrusted loan WEREFEER
China Resources FHEH 380,230 -
China Resources Suzhou AR = 356,270
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei MEPRREEXAR AR
Property Co., ltd - 170,000
380,230 526,270
Repayment of entrusted loan from BEZRTER
China Resources Suzhou AR 522,170 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei M ESHEBRRE X AR AR
Property Co., lid 370,000 -

892,170
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45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45.FEATRS(E)
(Continued)
45.3 Balances 45.3 4t
2017 2016
—F—tE “TRE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT

Other financial assets [Note 21) Hie e EHE21)
China Resource EHEH - 380,230

Receivables due from related parties (Note 27) FEMRREEE A L FE (BN EE27)
Trade receivables FEUER

Greenland Chan Ba Property Co., lid BHEREREEARAR 290 -
Greenland Xi'an Changsheng Industry Co., Lid B EERTEREXRRAR 33 -
Xi‘an Yuhuayongjia Property Co., ltd ARBKEEERRAR 2,118 -
Shanghai Yingkun iistid 1,428 -
Advance payments fo related parties AREEALTR
Greenland Engineering FMTIE 375,248 288,697
Greenland Senmoo SEHARE 20,758 6,516
Greenland Construction IEIERER 114,264 21,680
Guangxi Real Estate (Group] Co., lid ERE(EE)BR A 3,367 -
Non-rade balances due from related parties RSB A T B B A 84
Haikou Chengjian BORE 19,325 -
Guangxi Jinyao ik 89,478 -
Guangxi Jiuguwan EREHE 30,891 -
Greenland Holdings R 10 -
China Resources HEEEM 280,000 75,000
Greenland Consfruction SRR 7,171 5,694
Greenland Taiyang S8R 992 992
Great China Properties Holdings Limited APEMERREBR AT 64,741 69,280
Shanghai Greenland Kanghe Property Co., lid DS ENEEERAR 10 10
Forever Rich Forever Rich 20,458 21,719
Greenland Senmao FITRK 1,000 30
Greenland (Group) Taiyuan Property Co., Lid GHEBAKRBEERAT 182,364 243,472
Nanchang Greenland Shenbo Property Co., lid HESMHEEEBRAT 841,573 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei Property Co., lid HEMBREXBRAT 1,114,230 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenxin Property Co., ltd HEMRMEEERDA 272,813 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenrong Property Co., lid HEARREEERLA 29,900 -
Xi‘an Yuhuayongjia Property Co., ltd ALK EEEARAR 34 -
Boom Rich Invesiments Limited Boom Rich Investments Limited 12 -
Shanxi Greenland Deyi Property Co., Lid LB E—EXBRATF 39 39
Yingxiang Holdings Limited EAEREEERAR 14 -
Greenland Financial Overseas Invesiment Greenland Financial Overseas
Group Co., lid. Investment Group Co., lid. = 693,700
Guangxi Real Estate (Group] Co., lid BREE(ER)ARAF 1,477,668 209,396
VWIL BER 2,340 2,484
Mr. Wang Weixian and the companies controlled FTERERERTES EEEH
by Mr. Wang Weixian N - 1
CIFl JLER 2,028,563 1,608,558
6,981,132 3,247,268
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45.RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 .FEANTRZS(E)
(Continued)
45.3 Balances (Continued) 45.3 HER(4&)
2017 2016
—B-t% ZERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBETT
Entrusted loans ZiEER
China Resources Suzhou ZHEM - 522,170
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei Property Co., lid BERREZRRAA = 370,000
- 892,170
Payables due to related parties (Note 33) JERT A= AL FA (HF33)
Trade balances due to related parties JERBEATIEMERT &R
Greenland Senmao BIARK 10,287 10,715
Wauxi Mefro Group Co., lid EHMEEEERAR 5,325 -
CIFl i 5 -
Greenland Engineering FMTIE 48,035 -
Shanghai Yiwo Investment and Management FRERREEEARAA
Co., Id 1,165 -
Interest payables due fo related parties FERBZEALHE
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei Property Co., lid HERREZERDA 3,829 -
Jiangxi Shenjiang JIFET 11,558 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenxiang Property Co., lid HESUEANERBRAR 12,328 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenbo Property Co., Lid HEHREEEARAA 1,283 -
Nanchang Zhuoyue Property Development Co., Lid HERNEHEREERAR 12,825 -
Nanchang Greenland Shenxin Property Co., ltd e RMEEERDA 15,198 -
Non-rade balances due fo related parties ENEEALHESEH
Mr. Wang Weixian and the companies confrolled FTRELERTEBLEES
by Mr. Wang Weixian GOYNG]
~ dividends payable RS - 6,805
- other payables —H{t T H0R 1,158 5,332
Nanchang Greenland Shenbo Property Co., lid e EEEERDA 20,000 20,000
Nanchang Greenland Shenxiang Property Co., ltd HEARERER DA 160,000 160,000
Nanchang Greenland Shenxin Property Co., lid HEMRNERERAR 237,000 237,000
SPG Invesiment Holdings Lid SPG Investment Holdings Lid 1 -
Jiangxi Shenjiang P 151,767 150,000
Greenland Financial Invesiment Holdings BRI ERREE
Group., ltd BRRA - 739,850
China Resources Xuzhou FRRN 62 140
China Resources Nanjing [y 442 318
Nanchang Zhuoyue Property Development Co., Lid HERNEHEREERAR 200,000 200,000
Guangxi Real Estate (Group] Co., Limited ERinE(EE)BR A 1,738 83,090
Greenland Hong Kong Invesiment Group Limited BB EREEEBR AR 136,457 949,928
Super Talent e 590,988 032,419
Greenland Senmao BRI 229 1,050
Nanchang Greenland Shenfei Property Co., lid HEMEREEERAR 50,000 50,000
Waxi Metro Group Co., Lid BN HEEARAT 646,788 -
Yingxiang Holdings Limited EPEREEERAT 78,492 -
Shanghai Yingkun w5t 66,000 306,384
Great China Properties Holdings Limited AP EEERBR A 64,785 69,326
Greenland Construction R - 50
Xi‘an Yuhuayongjia Property Co., lid ARBKEEERRAR 1,730 -
Xu Fu BE 921,725 978,545
CIFl feE 892,955 950,447
Greenland Holdings SRR 686,732 686,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-FT—+tF+-A=1—HIFFE

45.

46.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

45.3 Balances (Continued)
Non-trade balances due to related parties amounting to
RMB& 17,000,000 were unsecured and inferestbearing, and
all other non-rade balances due to related parties were non-

interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

45.4 Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid fo the Company's directors as disclosed in Note
14 and five of the highest payment fo employees as disclosed

in Note 15, was as follows:

45.FAEANTX 5 (H)

45.3 HER ()
ENBEALHNIESRBERARE
617,000,000t BEERRELE - T
PTB R ENBEA T IFE B AR
REER  REYBRBREER -

A5 ARAREIE A\ S %
HREEASFHEEEMT 4T
BXNTARRE RN HMMAENE
1SR ERBEXNTRAUESHHMHESH
B BT

2017 2016

—T—tF ZT—RF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFTT

Salaries and other emoluments T& K% H b EN 12,877 11,917

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 22 March 2017, the Group completed the acquisition
of Q0% interest in Wuxi Guangcheng for consideration of
RMB1,247,000,000. Wuxi Guangcheng is principally engaged in
property development business and was acquired with objective of
improving the Group's property development business. The Group
accounted for the acquisition of the 90% of issued share capital of

the Wuxi Guangcheng as an acquisition of asset.

On 11 September 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% interest in Foshan Hongyi Real Estate Investment Co., Lid.
["Foshan Hongyi") for consideration of RMB1,056,080,000. Foshan
Hongyi is principally engaged in property development business
and was acquired with objective of improving the Group's property
development business. The Group accounted for the acquisition
of the 100% of issued share capital of the Foshan Hongyi as an

acquisition of asset.

46. WHEF AT
R-F—tHF=A=1+=B  "EEZKHK
BEHEKOOUDBRITEA  REASARK
1,247,000,0007T - 5K F B{EEME
FIEER - WM B NRREAKEY XM
BEY - ARBERWIBEHEKOO%E ETT
BRAARR A EEWES -

RZZE—tFAA+—H  AEEZKK
BHRUMBEEXRREERQA( L
EIED) 100%EBITRA  RER/ARK
1,056,080,0007T - LB ER R
FIEER - WM BN RNREAKEY XM
BER - AEBEBUREILIBE100%E %
TTBRANRSEENRE -
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46.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
On 2 November 2017, the Group completed the acquisition

46. WHEF 2B (&)

RZZE—+EF+—HAZH xEEZTHK
BRITHEOOLDEHITHRAE - RERBARK
257,895,0007T - WHEEIZWIBEARR - R
THEEMEREER KB AEER
ESEIkYESGE:E S0k Sl

of 99% interest in Wujiang Shenying for consideration of
RMB257,895,000. This acquisition has been accounted for using
the acquisition method. Wujiang Shenying is engaged in property
development business and was acquired fo confinue the expansion

of the Group's property development business.

Consideration transferred CERE
Wouxi Foshan Woujiang
Guangcheng Hongyi Shenying
B BLLBE RTHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥TT AREETFTT
Cash B& 1,247,000 1,056,080 257,895

KWIEEMMEKBEERCHEZ AR

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows: T :
Wouxi Foshan Woujiang
Guangcheng Hongyi Shenying
BEGRERL HLTEE RiTHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment L E =Y - 1,575 1,935
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 51 B oAb FE LUK R TE - 2,031 22,609
Properties under development RPN 2,417,721 1,176,051 767,635
Bank balance and cash RITHEB RS 315 2,354 21,292
Trade and other payables FEATBRFX N EL b FEAST 508 (1,032,480) (125,931) (485,147)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMIERE - - (67,824
Net assefs acquired B FEE 1,385,556 1,056,080 260,500

No goodwill arose from the Wujiang Shenying acquisition.

The non-controlling interests in VWuxi Guangcheng and Wujiang
Shenying recognised at the acquisition date were measured at
their proportionate share of net assets acquired. The non-controlling
interests of Wuxi Guangcheng and Wujiang Shenying approximately
amounted to RMB138,556,000 and RMB2,605,000 respectively.

RTHEYEEENEELRE -

UL RS B ERRE R Y 4R 85 B AR I SR A EE IR
B DERESAREREFEENEL
FrEtE - |HEK R RIS EIEIERER
DRI B ANREE138,556,0007T kAR
2,605,0007T °
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46.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 46.WBEFATI(E)

(Continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisitions WeRBRYIR &7 Hi%EE
Wouxi Foshan Woujiang
Guangcheng Hongyi Shenying
HEBRERN HLLIRE RILHE
RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT ARETTT
Cash consideration paid ENREeRE 1,247,000 1,056,080 257,895
Less: bank balance and cash B BUREEIRTT SR NIR S
acquired (319) (2,354) (21,292)
Less: consideration payable B EARE - (216,080) (58,404)
1,246,685 837,646 178,199

Included in the losses for the year are RMB22,721,000,
RMB786,000 and RMB2,026,000 respectively attributable to the
additional business generated by VWuxi Guangcheng, Foshan Hongyi
and Waujiang Shenying. No revenue from the date of acquisition fo
31 December 2017 are atiributable to Wuxi Guangcheng, Foshan
Hongyi and Wujiang Shenying.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2017, total
group revenue for the year would have been RMB14,765,439,000
and profit for the year would have been RMB1,794,052,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is it infended to be a

projection of future results.

FABEDREBIEARE22,721,0007T -
AER#786,0007T X AR #2,026,0007T -
ET BN EHENX -« fILRE R R T E R
EEMRBEMEBHAN - WEARE—T—+
FH-A=1t—8  BEEHEK - L%
BRI B A W -

HRBEN —F—tF—A—HBEX X
SERRBEBRARK14,765,439,000
7T MFERENRIRARE, 794,052,000
T BEEMERFBZA T —FERTR
HRBR —F—tF - A HERKAEE
AERRGHRREREEEE - TTRIES
RREERTRA -
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ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

47.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 47 HE—RF AT

On 5 April 2017, the Group disposed of its entire 50% equity
interest in Shanghai Xingi Investment Management Co., Lid
("Shanghai Xingi’) to an independent third party for a cash
consideration of approximately RMB112,012,000.

The effect of disposal of Shanghai Xingi is analysed as

RIB—FHARR  AEER—BEL
F=URRELHARKE112,012,0007T
HEER LEFHREEEARAR ([ LB

I D 2 EBSO%ARME -

HE LBHEMIESHTIOT -

follows:
RMB'000

ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB R#& 38
Investment properties REMHE 290,000
Properties under development BRPYE 190,295
Trade, other receivables and advance deposits JEURERFR b FEURRIE N FA U IR 13,221
Bank balance and cash IRITEER IR 5,297
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAE E (18,234)
Inferestbearing loans FEEM (102,159)
Tax payable JE IR (15)
Trade and other payables JEAS BRI EoAth JE - 5K IR (298,545
Net assefs disposed of BEHEZFEE 79,898
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEFATE :
Consideration received B E 112,012
Net assets disposed of BHEFEE (79,898
Non-confrolling interests eSS 39,949
Gain on disposal of Shanghai Xingi HE Ba R 72,063
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMRERMANFE :
Total cash consideration received BUERSARE 112,012
Bank balance and cash disposed of BEHEMRITESR LR S (5,297
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEFRARIMGFHIEA 106,715
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48.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 48.7kBEMEESHELENAEENE

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BR

The table below defails changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRFLMAEERETHNELENEEESD
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. (BERSRIIEELEE) - ETHAES
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash MEBEELABERNAERGARSRER
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's AP BEAREIHELRE

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities:
Loans from
related Interest
Borrowings Bonds parties payable Total
REMEAL
E &% 6N FERHIB &t
RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At T January 2017 RZE—tF—-A—H 9,484,221 8,038,774 6,227,416 180,261 23,930,672
Financing cash flows BERERE 1,330,642 (662,927) (1,201,239) (907,743) (1,441,267)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEFRF] (102,159) - - - (102,159)
Forsign exchange SNE (150,892)  (373,479)  (117,128) - (641,499)
Inferest expenses FIBEX = - - 972,744 972,744
Interest expenses adjusiment FEHX A% - 26,290 - (26,290) -
RZE—+F
At 31 December 2017 +ZA=+—-H 10,561,812 7,028,658 4,909,049 218,972 22,718,491
49. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 49. EEAEEH
(1) On 26 January 2018, the Group distributed the dividend of (1) RZZE—NF—A=+7H Xx&E
Perpetual Securities issued on 27 July 2016. The amount is HIB—RFELA - +HEBEBETHX
USD3,375,000 (approximately RMB22,053,000). ABHEDRRE - €% A3,375,000
ET(HAREE22,053,0007T) °
[2)  On 23 January 2018, the Group entered info the equity 2] RZE—NF—A=Z+=H x5E
transfer agreement with Guangdong Zhengyu Investment HERESKRESERGRARRTR
Group Co., lid to purchase 70% equity interest in Zhaoging HEERE  ANBEETEEER
Hengchang Industrial Investment Co., Lid (the "Target ERBRRR([BRRRE])70%MHE
Company”) for a fotal fransaction amount of approximately BREHARAR,855000,000
RMB1,855 million. Upon completion, the Target Company TT e AR - BIRAREKAREE
will become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the WEEIFREF AR o

Group.
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50.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 50. ATEMBEIRRE
OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
—FT—+tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
ASSETS BE
Investment in subsidiaries FRaRE 13,750,666 13,958,444
Total non-current assets IERBEEMETE 13,750,666 13,958,444
Trade, other receivables and FEUER SR - HAbEUEIE K
advance deposits EZE 81,472 758,703
Other financial assets Hivem&EE = 141,654
Bank balance and cash RITEBNIES 298,284 46,335
Total current assets MENVEEARRE 379,756 046,692
Total assets BELLE 14,130,422 14,905,136
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGEHE
Share capifal [N 1,132,855 1,132,855
Share premium & mE 3,416,546 3,416,546
Reserves [Ee= 309,670 309,670
Perpetual securities KA S 787,823 787,823
Accumulated losses ESy (1,159,730) (315,587)
Total equity attributable fo RRRBEHER B ARG RRE
equity holders of the Company 4,487,164 5,331,307
LIABILITIES afE
Bonds &% 2,919,171 4,581,996
Inferestbearing loans FTRER 1,632,845 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBAGEETE 4,552,016 4,581,996
Interestbearing loans FEEW 924,967 1,207,200
Trade and other payables JEAS BR R e B Ath A~ FRIE 56,788 327,855
Bonds within one year —FRNEIBHES 4,109,487 3,456,778
Total current liabilities MEBERTE 5,091,242 4,991,833
Total liabilities af5meE 9,643,258 9 573,829
Total equity and liabilities En R A FEE 14,130,422 14,905,136
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50.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  50. ASIERIR T (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves
it
Capital
Share Share  redemption  Contributed ~ Perpetual  Accumulated
copital ~ premium reserve surplus  securities losses Total

Bx  RieR A4RORR 0 RERER  AXEBR RiiGR &it
RBO00  RVB'OOD  RMB'ODO  RVB'OOD  RMB'OOD  RWB'ODD
ABBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR

(Note i
(Hriti)
At 1 January 2016 A=§-7~%-B-H 1132855 3416546 1231 308,439 - (517888 42341183
lsue of perpetual securtes K NEE - - - - 787 823 - 787823
Profi and foal compehensie income. ~ EEEHREEANAE
for he year - - - - - 202,301 202,301
At 31 December 2016 R-§-AE+ZA=1-8 1132855 3416546 1,231 308,439 767,823 (315587 5331307
loss ond folo comprehensie expense  FEBEREAFRAE
for he year - - - - - 554,166] 554,166]
Dividends recogrised as disibufion BB TR - - - - - (244139) 244139)
Dividends poid fo perpefual securfes AKAESL MRS - - - - - (45,838 (45,838
At 31 December 2017 R-¥-t&+R=1-H 1,132,855 3,416,546 1,231 308,439 787,823 (1,159,730) 4,487,164
Note (i]: The excess of the consolidated net assets represented by the shares of MLl - T FRRIRND 2R E FEEBBAR
the subsidiaries acquired over nominal value of the shares issued by ARBARZITUARBZERNEEZZE
the Company in exchange under the Reorganisation was transferred REREARNFUHRRNEHBRE -

to the contributed surplus account in the Company's financial

statements.
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S51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows.

51. X AFEXEFAEHE

ARRR_E—FR=_ZE—X~"F+=A
=t+—BZEEFREFBEOT -

Proportion of
ownership interest and

Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FEER+=R=1-B8
FAEEH TREH dfEx SMRILNERAY  HEEESRFRRAMELH
2017 2016
ZBtf 32 5F
PG Invesiment Lid. Invesiment holding USDI Britsh Virgin lslands, 100% 100%
REER 157 2 March 2004
KBRS
“EEME=A=A
Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Property development, UsD67,670,000 the PRC, 98.24% 08.24%
Co., lid. sales and lease 67,670,000 25 August 1998
LERE+E (5B) ARAF FiERE  HERHES e
—MANENAZTEHA
Shanghai SPG Property Semvice Property management RMB5,000,000 the PRC, 98.42% 08.42%
Co., ltd. services AE®S5,000,0007T 17 January 2001
LERENERBERAR NEERRB e
ZZT-45-AttA
Shanghai SPG Hotel Development Co., Lid. Hotel operation, property RMB405,500,000 the PRC, 98.24% 08.24%
HERREEERERAT developmen, sales ARE405,500,0007 1 December 2006
and lease HE
BELE  BhERE “EETRE+ZA-R
HERES
Shonghai Orienfol Combridge Property  Property development, RMB650,000,000 e PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., lid. scles and lease ARE650,000,0007 26 September 2002
TR RREHERRER AR BHERY  HEREE -

“EE-EAAZTAA
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51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Defails of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

51. X AT X EFAEFHE(E)

ARNBRZE—FER_TE—XRF+=A
=+—BZTEFRAFHBOT - (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest and
Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FEER+-A=+-BH
FAREH TEER EMEX HMBINHEREY  AEEERRAERAELS
2017 2016
—F-t% ZTRE
Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge Property development RMB280,000,000 e PRC, 100% 100%
Property Development Co., Lid. and sales AR#280,000,0007T 24 September 2003
TERERRIERMEREARAR  RHEREREE i -
“EE-FAACTEA
Huangshan SPG Property Hotel development RMB270,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., Lid. and operafion ARE270,000,0007 7 January 2004
BLRETERNELRERAT BEREREE HE
“ZTNE-A+H
Kunming SPG Land Development Property development, RMB142,500,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd. scles and lease ARE142 500,0007 9 Novernber 2006
ERREENERERAA FHERY  HEREE hE
“EENET-ANA
Kunming SPG Grand City Property development, UsD40,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., Lid sales and lease 40,000,000% 7T 15 June 2007
RRRSAHEHEERERAA BHERE  HEREE i -
“ZZtE ATEA
Suzhou Runjian Property Co., lid. Property development, RMB300,000,000 ihe PRC, 100% 100%
BN EREEERAT sales and lease ARE300,000,0007 28 September 2007
FHERY  HEREE HE
ZZTHEAAZTNR
Suzhou SPG Property Hotel Operations, RMB500,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Management Co., lid. Property management AEES500,0007 5 March 2009
BMBENERBERAA senvices e
BELE  NEERRH —ZTNF=ATH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F 1+ - HA=+—HILFE

ZE—tFFH

BWEBZRERAA

51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL S51.X2TEFEFAGEHFHBE)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Defails of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

KRR _EBE—tER-_ZT—X~F+=-A
=+—BZFEFRTFHBEOT - (8)

Proportion of

ownership interest and

Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FREN+=A=+-88
FARER TRER afEx EMRINEREY  HERERRFRRAMEL
2017 2016
—%-tE ZENE
Wuxi Guosheng Property Property development, HKDT,196,530,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., lid. scles and lease 1,196,530,000% 2 November 2007
BERREEREERAT BHERE  HEREE -
ZZTtE+T-AZH
Wauxi Shenglian Property Property development, HKD1,105,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., lid. scles and lease 1,105,000,000/7T 2 November 2007
BERMEEREERAR BHERY  HEREE e
“ERHET-AZA
Hainan Jiangjco Property Co. lid. Property development, RMB115,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
BEREEEARLF sales and lease ARE115,000,0007 4 January 2008
FERE  HEREE e
—TT\$-AEA
Hubei Huazhong Consfructing Construction and RMB 100,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd. decoration services ARE100,000,0007T 21 May 2009
A ERRERNEREALT RERKERS e
“ZENFRA-T-H
Changshu SPG Land Development Property development, RMB200,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., lid. scles and lease AR#200,000,0007 12 July 2007
RARRREREERAT FiERE  HERHEE e
“ERLELAT A
Changshu SPG Real Estate Property development, RMB550,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., lid. sales and lease ARE550,000,0007 24 October 2007
BABMEEERAR) FiERE  HERHEE e

“TTLEHASTRA
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51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Defails of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

51. X AT X EFAEFHE(E)

ARNBRZE—FER_TE—XRF+=A
=+—BZTEFRAFHBOT - (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest and
Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FRERt=A=+-88
FAEER TEEH EMEE EMBIMERES  AEEERRARRMELS
2017 2016
—B-tE ZTRE
Shanxi SPG Land Development Property development, UsD20,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd. sales and lease 20,000,000%7C 27 August 2009
RS ERERERAA FHERE  HEREE HE
ZESNENAZTEA
Ningbo SPG Cicheng Property Property development, RMB600,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Development Co., Lid. sales and lease AR#600,000,0007 21 March 2011
ERBREENELRERAT FHERY  HEREE e
“2——%=A-t-H
Hangzhou Tuojiang Zhiye Co., lid. Property development, USD582,000,000 the PRC, 50% 50%
MMETIEZARAA soles and lease 582,000,000%7 22)uy 2013 (Note i) [Note i
FHERE  HEREE e (Psdi) iEi))
“F-=FtA-t-A
Haikou Greenland Hongxiang Property development, RMB600,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Property Co., lid sales and lease ARE600,000,0007 27 November 2013
BOBEAESERAA FHERE  HEREE G
“E-ZE+-ACTA
Shanghai Dackun Investment Invesfing and consulling RMB 10,000,000 ihe PRC, 100% 100%
Management Co., Lid BERZH AR#10,000,0007 9 June 2015
TEEREEEREARLR e
“E-RERANA
Shanghai He Mao Property Property development, RMB630,000,000 the PRC, 50% 50%
Co., ltd sales and lease AR%630,000,0007 11 December 2013 (Note i) [Note i}
TRAREHERRARRA FHERE  HEREE G (Bitai) iE)

“F-=F+-Rt-H
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S1.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Defails of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

ZE—tFFH

BWEBZRERAA

51. X AT XEFAFFHE(E)

KRR _EBE—tER-_ZT—X~F+=-A
=+—BZFEFRTFHBEOT - (8)

Proportion of

ownership interest and

Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FREN+=A=+-88
FARER TRER afEx EMRINEREY  HERERRFRRAMEL
2017 2016
—%-tE ZENE
Naonning Greenland Yingkai Property development, RMB558,500,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Investment Co., Ltd scles and lease ARE558,500,0007T 1 November 2013
HESMREREERARA BHERE  HEREE -
ZE-ZET-A-F
Success Yield Group Limited Investment of subsidiaries USD200 the BV, 50% 50%
KREEARAF RETAF 200%7T 6 May, 2011 (Note i) (Note i)
KBRS - (Betzti) (B3
ZZ——%0ARA
Xu Bao BVI Investment of subsidiaries HKD2 the BVI, 50% 50%
JBEBVI RETFRAE 28T 6 September, 2012 (Note i) (Note i
EBRNAE (Bitzi) (B 1)
“E-ZENARH
Xuzhou Nanbu Property Co., lid Property development, USD50,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
BNETEEREERAR scles and lease 50,000,000% 7T 23 January 2014
BHERL  HEREE e
“E-mE-AZt=H
Xuzhou Mingzhi Property development, HKD1,414,000,000 the PRC, 50% 50%
BNSAERHEREERAT scles and lease 1,414,000,000%7T 3 March 2014 (Note i) (Note i)
BHERY  HEREE - (Bt (B3
“Z-ME=A=H
Shanghai Xiongxuan Zhiye Co., Lid Property development, RAMB20,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
LS EEARAT sales and lease ARE20,000,0007 17 Jonuary 2014
FiERE  HERHEE e

ZZ-mE-A+A
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S1.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Defails of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

51. X AT X EFAEFHE(E)

ARNBRZE—FER_TE—XRF+=A
=+—BZTEFRAFHBOT - (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest and
Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FEERt=A=+-88
FAEER TEER #ME% EMEIREREE  AEEERRARRAELE
2017 2016
—E-tE ZERE
Greenland [Kunming] Property Property development, RMB517,272,222 the PRC, 55% 55%
Co., lid |'Greenland Kunming'| sales and lease ARES517272,2221 17 December 2012
wHEE (BH) EXERAA FHERE  HEREE HE
(MR8 “E-CHtZATtH
Greenland [Kunming Wuhua) Property development, RAMB528,000,000 the PRC, 55% 55%
Development Co., lid scles and lease AR#528,000,0007 19 December 2012
HEE (RALE) BHERS FHERE  HEREE HE
ARRF ZZ-ZE+ZRtAR
Shanghai Wali Property Co., Lid Property development, RMB6,000,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
HEREEEBRAT sales and lease AR#6,000,000,00070 21 February 2014
FHERE  HEREE e
“2-mF-A-t-A
Nanning Greenland Hongkai Property development, HKD700,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Property Co., lid sales and lease 700,000,000 20 May 2014
HERMBEEEER AT FHERE  HEREE HE
“Z-MmERAZTH
Haikou Wuyuan Property Co., lid Property development, RAMB200,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
B IREEERAT sales and lease ARE200,000,0007 26 Jonuary 2014
FHERE HEREE HE
“Z-ME-AZtRH
Hainan Tionhongjiye Shiye Co., Lid Property development, RMB100,000,000 the PRC, 50.1% 50.1%
('Tianhong Shiye'| sales and lease ARE100,000,0007 21 December 2009 (Note i) [Note )
BERIEEEEERAA NERE  HERME e (Psdi) iEi))

([REAEZ))

ZENFEFZAZ+-R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F 1+ - HA=+—HILFE

51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL S51.X2TEFEFAGEHFHBE)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Defails of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December AAFIR-_E—+ER T —F+_HA
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued) Zt+—HAZEZTFREFBEOT - (8)
Proportion of
ownership interest and
Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FREAN+=RA=+-8H
FARER TRER afEx EMAIRERAY  AEERGRFARRAELH
2017 2016
—%-tE B
Hainan Tianhongjiye Invesiment Property development, RMB180,000,000 the PRC,. 50.1% 50.1%
Co., lid ('Tianhong Investent'| sales and lease ARE180,000,0007 12 January 2010 (Note i) (Note i)
EEALEEREERAT NERE  HERAE e (Bersi) (B zE1)
([RBxE]) “Z-T45-AtZH
Nanning Greenland Xinyuan Property development, RMB300,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Property Co., Lid scles and lease ARE300,000,0007 27 November 2014
BESMEREFERARA NERE  BERME hE
“F-MFt-A-tLA
Suzhou lyjie Property Co., lid Property development, USD2,250,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
BNGAEEBARAF sales and lease 2,250,000,000% 7T 22 October 2015
NERE  BERME e
“E-RFTA-TZR
Shanghai Greenland Finoncial Financing RMB100,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Information Semvices Co., Lid BE ARE100,000,0007 23 January 2015
SR RESRBARLE hE
“Z-n%¥-A-t=H
Nanchang Shenyang Property Property development, USD25,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
Co., ltd sales and lease 25,000,000%7L 24 December 2015
HERGEEERAT NERE  BERME e
“E-RFT-A-TmA
Guangyi Xingfie Property development, RMB3,000,000 the PRC, 60% 60%
=il e sales and lease AE®3,000,000T 4 August 2015
NERE  HERAE e

—Z-n%/\AEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
FREMBHRRMT #)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—+F 1+ -A=1+—HIFE

51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Defails of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

51. X AT X EFAEFHE(E)

ARNBRZE—FER_TE—XRF+=A
=+—BZTEFRAFHBOT - (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest and

Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FEERt=A=+-88
FAEER TRER #ME% EMBIMERES  HRRRRRARRRELS
2017 2016
—E-tE ZERE
Guangyi Xinfie Property development, RMB 100,000,000 the PRC, 60% 60%
ER&H sales and lease AR#100,000,0007 29 Apiil 2016
NERE  HEREE HE
2 RERAZTHE
Suzhou lvying Property Co., lid Property development, RMB20,000,000 the PRC, 100% 100%
BNGAEEERAR sales and lease AR#20,000,0007 13 July 2016
NERE  HEREE HE
“E-"FLAT=R
CGuangxi Greenlond Hengrun Property development, RMB100,000,000 the PRC, 65% 65%
Property Development Co., Lid soles and lease ARH100,000,0007 5May 2016
ERGHEREEERARAA NERE  HEREE e
“E-AFRAEA
Suzhou Lvwo Commercial management RMB 12,750,000 the PRC, 80% -
BINER BEEE AR#12,750,0007 1 Janvary 2017 (Note ii)
HE (Fitaii)
“E+E-A-8
Wuxi Guangcheng Property development, RMB20,000,000 the PRC, 90% -
BHER sales and lease AR20,000,0007 19 December 2013 (Note iii)
NERE  HEREE e (Bt
“F-=ft-AthA
Wojiang Shenying Property development, RMBS50,000,000 the PRC, 99% -
RIBE sales and lease ARE50,000,0007 14 July 2011 (Note iii)
NERE  HERHE e (Bitaiii)

—F—F+A+EA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)

RE SRR T )

For the year ended 31 December 2017

AR -—T—+F1+-A=1—HIFE

S1.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Defails of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows. (Continued)

ZE—EFFN BMEBERERAT

51. AATEEFAEFHEE)

KRR _EBE—tER-_ZT—X~F+=-A
=+—BZFEFRTFHBEOT - (8)

Proportion of
ownership interest and

Place and voting power held by
Registered date of the Company as at
Name of subsidiary Principal activity capital incorporation 31 December
FREN+=RA=+-BH
FARER TRER afEx SMAILHERAY  HERRERARRMELS
2017 2016
—E-tE ERE
Foshan Hongyi Property development, RMB 100,000,000 the PRC, 100% -
flE sales and lease AE100,000,0007 3 July 2007 (Note iii)
NERE  HEREE el (Beraiii)
“ERHELAZH
Jixing Luzhan Real Estate Co., Lid Property development, RMB326,150,000 the PRC, 70% -
(Jiaxing Luzhan') sales and lease ARE326,150,0007 1 September 2017 (Note ii)
RREGREZERAT ([REGRI)  VXFRE HEREES hE (Bitaii)
“Z-t¥NA-H
Jiaxing Qinghua Real Estate Co., Lid. Property development, RMB156,381,000 e PRC, 70% -
(Jiaxing Qinghua’| sales and lease ARE156,381,0007 1 Seplember 2017 (Note ii)
ERFZERXERAY ((REEE]) 7ERE HEREE e (Pit=tii)
ZZ-t¥NA-H
Jiaxing Tongchuang Real Esicte Co., id - Property development, RMB222,669,000 the PRC, 70% -
(Jiaxing Tongchuang') sales and lease ARE222 669,000 1 September 2017 (Note ii)
ERMAIZEERLR ([REMR)  VEFRE HEREE e (Bitaii)

Note i: The Group has the right to appoint a majority of directors fo the
board of directors. Hence the Group has the power over these

entities and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
Therefore, these entities are accounted for as subsidiaries of the

Company.

Note ii: The subsidiary is newly established in 2017.

Note iii: The subsidiary is acquired in 2017.

Except for SPG Investment Lid., all the subsidiaries are indirectly held.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities af the end of

the year.

No minority inferest was individually material fo the Group for the

year.

e L

it AEEARZTESENBIEES -
I AEEHZEEREGES XA
TEREENTEREMDR - BENIL - &
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
R UBEREE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEERRHEMEEFEER
Year ended 31 December 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
EEt-A=t+-HLEE k- -3 ke SN2 —Z-1fF —Z-NF —T-=f
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFL AREFL AREFT

Revenue s 14,618,872 16,919,188 5,687,953 2,840,025 5447 768
Cost of sales EEMAK (11,027,571) (14,091,196 (4,647,388 (2,060,909) (4,001,353
Gross profit £7 3,591,301 2,827,992 1,040,565 779,116 1,446,415
Other income, gains and losses HiA -~ s R 298,601 197 969 176,430 11,808 63,515
Selling and marketing costs EERTSHERA (587,187) (415,567 (318,911) (265,450) (87,532)
Adminisirative expenses THER (437,517) (499,687) (428,641 (427,585) (329,707
Other operating expenses HitmgH% (21,149) (844,073) (887,192) (12,697 (344,454)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of HEFRARE 2 s

equily interest in subsidiaries (BiR) 28 72,063 228 590 (500) 214,354
Results from operating activities REEEEHEE 2,916,112 1,266,862 417,159 84,692 962,591
Finance income MEWA 95,619 70,574 58,947 82,980 99,057
Finance expenses BB (224,191) (135,088) (199,114) (186,180 (415,331)
Fair value changes on financicl derivatives — fTE& BT AR A EEES - - - - 112,812
Net finance expenses BRERAEE (128,572) (64,514] [140,167) (103,200 (203,462
Share of profits (loss) of associates LA N REFI(BB) (999) 370 (1,007) 94 (114,096
Share of profit floss) of joint veniures EEAENERTI(EE) 139,496 195,015 4 (2,726) 48,175)
Revaluation gain (loss) on BENEERYEER)

investment properties 329,268 687,638 1,115,249 522,212 180,539)
Profit (loss) before income tax KRETEH AR (&) 3,255,305 2,085,371 556,920 501,072 516,319
Income fax expense FIEHAY (1,419,687) (1,024,852 (540,664) (436,951 (483,169)
Profit for the year from REFRCEEHNERRT

continuing operations 1,835,618 1,060,519 16,256 64,121 33,150
Discontinued operations RIFEEER
Profit for the year from KRB A

discontinued operations EREF - 180,063 15,389 - -
Profit and total comprehensive EERFHR2ERNEE

income for the year 1,835,618 1,240,582 31,645 64,121 33,150
Attributable to: VAT AL :
Owners of the Company AATER A 1,319,308 1,112,543 220,240 107,690 34,513
Non-confrolling interests RS 516,310 128,039 (188,595 (43,569) (1,363]
Earnings (loss) per share BREN(BR)
Basic eamings per share (RMB) BREABF(AREL) 0.46 0.39 0.08 0.04 0.02

Diluted earnings per share [RVB) BREBRF(ARETL) 0.46 0.39 0.08 0.04 0.02




ZE—LEFH BMEBERERAR
SUMMARY OF CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continved)
FEMBERE (#)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEUVBRRE
Year ended 31 December 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
EZt-RA=t+-BLEE —E-tE X% 1% —ZT-F =%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTL AREFL AREFT ARBFIL
Assets aE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRE 1,228,459 1,282,241 1,546,906 1,619,850 022,979
Intangible assets EBVEE 1,296 1,341 1,386 1,431 1,476
lond use righs LB 24,042 24,608 74,738 76,924 74,953
Other financial assets HSmEE 174,567 174,567 174,567 2,800 2,800
Invesiment properties REWME 9,082,000 8,216,000 7,246,000 5,722,000 1,719,000
Properties under development BERE 14,976,268 15,082,454 15,587,580 17,599 647 6,832,762
Investments in associates BENTRE 6,084 - - 3,603 3,509
Inferests in joint ventures AR EER 686,413 541,203 296,187 038,022 677,111
longterm receivable REEIZ - - - 596,096 673,627
Deferred tax assets EREREEE 817,628 210,427 209,727 185,915 212,882
Total non-current assets FrEEEGE 26,996,757 25,532,841 25,197,091 26,746,288 11,121,009
Current assefs REEE
Properies under development ERmyE 8,945,329 3,028,278 8,716,805 4,489 993 2,205,091
Completed propetties held for sale BHENGENE 11,669,969 9707 44 4,885,603 1,727 423 2,651,528
Trade, other receivables and advance JEUBRS - Eofth FEUZIA I
deposits EffRe 13,281,019 8,275,245 5,214,650 2,760,960 3,964,698
longerm receivable with one year —ERIHNREERT - - - 125,561 125,561
Other financial assets HEiEmEE - 866,059 143,000 - -
Resfricted cash RRHES 2,401,495 1,436,984 621,618 156,693 749 693
Bank balance and cash RITEBLES 5,455,227 4,358,259 5,207,187 5,032,763 922,037
Total current assets e EEEE 41,753,039 28572266 24,788,863 14,293,393 10,618,608
Total assets EEEE 68,749,796 54,105,107 49985954 41,039,681 21,739,707
Equity And Liabilities EARERE
Capital And Reserves BRR
Share capital R 1,132,855 1,132,855 1,132,855 1,068,154 1,068,154
Share premium BRiTRE 3,416,546 3,416,546 3,416,546 2,362,986 2,362,986
Reserves & 961,894 851214 829,466 834,203 833,173
Perpetual securities KA ES 787,823 787823 - - -
Retained earnings RERF 3,560,011 2,641,360 1,550,565 1,353,595 1,355,871
Total equity attributable to RATIHAAELS
owners of the Company i 9,859,129 8,829,798 6,929,432 5,618,938 5,620,184
Non-controlling interests iR 1,725,761 893,896 758,676 371,648 86,889
Total equity HEZs 11,584,890 0,723,694 7,688,108 5,990,586 5,707,073
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continved)

FEMBERRE #)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

GEMBRRR(E)
Year ended 31 December 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Z+-A=t-HLEE k- -3 ke SN2 —Z-1% —Z-NF —T-=f
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFL AREFL AREFT
Liabilities B
Non-current liabilities ERBat
Interest bearing loans HEER 9,081,312 5,770,601 6,577,283 4454928 1,441 839
longrerm payable REERR - - 26,494 30,437 33,935
Bonds &% 2,919,171 4,581,996 4,714,521 8,763,401 4,224,594
Deferred tax liabilities ERHERE 957,999 899,639 875,234 491,791 359,537
Total non-current liabilities FrEEEEE 12,958,482 11,252,236 12,193,532 13,740,557 6,059,905
Current liabiliies RHERE
Interest bearing loans HEER 1,480,500 3,713,620 3,265,938 1,227,105 1,725,007
Other financial liabilifies Hi4meRE 98,178 329,543 - - -
Trade, other payables and advance receipts — FEfTBRZ » H A ENFIAR
JEUEE 36,731,247 24,397 814 21,471,556 19.314,718 7325317
Tox payable ERNTIIB 1,787,012 1231422 831,413 760,715 916,405
Bonds within one year —ERNIHNES 4,109,487 3,456,778 4,529,407 - -
longferm payable within one year —ENF R R EENT - - 6,000 6,000 6,000
Total current liabilities TEEEEE 44,206,424 33,129,177 30,104,314 21,308,538 0972729
Total liabilities BfREE 57,164,906 44,381,413 42297846 35,049,095 16,032,634
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 68,749,796 54,105,107 49,985,954 41,039,681 21,739,707
Net current (liabilities) assets REN(BREETH (2,453,385)  (4,556911]  (5315451] (7,015,145 645,879
Total assets less current liabilities  BEERREERE 24,543,372 20975930 19,881,640 19,731,143 11,766,978




No.193, Xiehe Road,
Changning District, Shanghai, China

LiEm REEHIME1935%
Tel E5E: (86) 21 6135 3777

www.greenlandhk.com
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